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Auditors’ Report on the Annual Accounts

(Translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy the original Spanish-language
version prevails.)

To the Shareholders of
Fluidra, S.A.

We have audited the annual accounts of Fluidra, S.A. (the “Company™), which comprise the balance
sheet at 31 December 2009, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the statemeni
of cash flows for the year then ended and the notes thereto, the preparation of which is the
responsibility of the Company’s Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual
accounts taken as a whole, based on our audit which was conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards in Spain, which require examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the annual accounts and evaluating their overall presentation, as weli
as the appropriateness of the accounting principles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimnates made.

In accordance with prevailing Spanish legislation, these annual accounts for 2009 also include, for
each individual caption in the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statements of income,
changes in equity and cash flows, comparative figures for the previous year. We express our opinion
solely on the consolidated annual accounts for 2009. On 27 March 2009 we issued our unqualified
audit report on the consolidated annual accounts for 2008.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts for 2009 present fairly, in all material respects,
the equity and financial position of Fluidra, S.A. at 31 December 2009 and the results of its
operations and changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and contain sufficient
information necessary for their adequate interpretation and understanding, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in Spain which have been applied on a basis consistent that
used in the preparation of the figures and information for the preceding year.

The accompanying directors’ report for 2009 contains such explanations as the Directors consider
relevant to the situation of Fluidra, S.A., the evolution of its business and other matters, and is not an
integral part of the annual accounts. We have verified that the accounting information contained
therein is consistent with that disclosed in the annual accounts for 2009. Our work as auditors is
limited to the verification of the directors’ report within the scope described in this paragraph and
does not include a review of other information other than that obtained from the accounting records
of the Company.

KPMG Auditores, S.L.

(Sigued on the original in Spanish)

Alessandro Peirano Calliano
Partner

26 March 2010




FLUIDRA, S.A.
Notes to the Annual Accounts
31 December 2009

SUMMARY

{Free transiation from the original in Spanish.
In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails)

¢ Financial statements

®  Balance sheets
B [ncome statements
=  Statements of changes in equity

¢ Stalements of recognised income and expenses
¢ Stalements of comprehensive changes in equity
n  Statements of cash flows

+ Notes

Nature and Principal Activities

Basis of Presentation

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible assets

Investments in group companies and associates
Non-current investments

Trade and other receivables

Equity

10. Current and non-current loans and borrowings
11. Derivative financial instruments

12. Payables to group companies and associates
13. Trade and other payables

14. Risk management policy

15. Revenues

18. Personnel expenses

17. Transactions with group companies and associates
18. Information relating to Directors

19. Income tax

20. Fees of the Auditor and the Auditor's Group and Related Companies
21. Envircnment

22. Subsequent evenls

CoeNOoT AN

= Directors’ report

= Appendices

= APPENDIX I Infarmation relating to group companies

= APPENDEX1 Petails of investments and positions held by the directors in other companies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts for 2009,




FLUIDRA, S.A.

Balance Sheets

31 December 2009 and 2008

(Expressed in thousands of Euros)

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

Assetfs

Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

Non-current investments In group companies and associates

Non-current investments
Derivative financial instruments
Equity instruments
Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Trade and other receivables
Current investments in group companies and associates
Loans to companies
Other financial assets
Current Investments
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Profit for the year
Treasury shares
Vaiuation adjustments
Hedging operations
Total equity

Liabitities
Non-current payables
Loans and borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current provisions
Totai non-current liabilities

Current payables
Loans and borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Group companies and associates - current
Trade and other payables
Total current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an ittegral part of the annual accounts for 2009,

Notes 31/12/2008 31/12/2008
5 170 76
4 61 81
6 247.963 252.865
1.888 1.695
7 and 11 - 1
7 258 319
7 1.630 1.365
19 4.213 2.062
254,205 256.779
8 22,767 3.334
138.503 142.926
8 4.121 4.450
6 134.382 108.476
- 4
11 - 4
7.888 6.060
169.158 122.321
423.453 379.100
112,629 112,629
92.831 92.831
48.753 42.668
8.828 7.513
(5.491) {4.862)
(222) (487)
- (487)
9 257.328 250,202
35.097 18.070
0 34.949 17.364
1 148 706
19 3.526 4.013
66 65
38.688 22,148
47.782 87.774
10 47.519 87.768
11 263 6
12 78.638 18,207
13 1.017 589
127.437 106.680
423.453 379.100




FLUIDRA, S.A.
Income Statements

31 December 2008 and 2008

(Expressed in thousands of Euroes)

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

Revenue
Dividends

Other operating income

Personnel expense

Otros gastos de explotacién
Other operating expenses
Impairment losses on non-current assets

Amortisation and depreciation
Results from operating activities

Finance income
Investment income and other financial instruments
Group companies and associates
Other
Finance income
Group companies and associates
Other
Change in fair value of financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments
Recognition of available-for-sale financial assets
Exchange differences

Net finance income

Profit before income tax
Income tax

Profit from continuing operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts for 2009.

Notes  31/12/2008  31/12/2008
14.000 10.170

15 14.000 10.170
16 (585) (258)
(4.692) (2.209)

(1.331) (1.276)

6and7 (3.361) (933)
4and5 {41) (35)
8.682 7.668

640 283

640 283

640 283

(1.985) (2.194)

(1.985) (2.194)

(93) 249

(93) 249

(142) 420

(1.580) (1.242)

7.102 6.426

19 (1.726) (1.087)
8.828 7.513




FLUIDRA, S.A.

Statements of Changes in Equity
for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008

A) Statements of Recognised Income and Expenses
{Expressed in thousands of Euros)

{Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

Notes 31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Profit for the year 8,828 7,613
Cash flow hedging 11 379 (696)
Tax effect (114) 208

Total income and expenses recognised directly in

equity 265 (487)

Total recognised income and expense 9,093 7,026

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual aecounts “or 2009,




Statement of Cash Flows
for the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008
{Expressed in thousands of Euros)

(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year before tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation and depreciation
Impairment valuation aflowances
Finance income
Finance expense
Change in fair value of financial instruments
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Other cash flows from operating activities
Interest received
interest paid
Income tax received/(paid)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing aclivities

Payments for investments in intangible assets

FLUIDRA, S.A,

Payments for investments in group companies and associates
Proceeds from disinvestments in financial assets

Cash flows from/{used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Acqguisition of own equity instruments
Disposal of own equity instruments
Issue of loans and borrowings

Payments for debts with group and associated companies
Redemption and repayment of loans and borrowings

Dividends paid

Cash flows used in financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

Cash and cash equivalents at year end

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual zecounts for 2009.

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
7,102 6,426

485 41 35
68&7 3,361 934
(640) (283)

1,985 2,194

11 93 (249)
2,366 (1,199)

580 (3,436)

640 283

(1,696) (1,988)

(38) 1,537

13,795 4,254

5 (116) (40)
6 (8) (7,848)
6 1,612 -
1,487 (7,888)

(3,123} (7,590)

5,066 -

25,008 36,940

11,538 (13,187)

(47,959) (8,233)

(4,000} (10,136)
(13,472) (2,208)

1,810 (5,840)

6,060 11,900

18 -

7,888 6,060




7
FLUIDRA, S.A.
Notes to the Annual Accounts

{(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

1. Nature and Principal Activities

Fluidra, S.A. (hereinafter the Company) was incorporated in Girona with limited liability under Spanish law on 3
QOctober 2002 under the name of Aquaria de Inv. Corp., S.L. lts name was changed to the current one on 17
September 2007.

The statutory and principal activilies of the Company consist of the holding and use of shares, stocks and other
securities and advising, managing and administrating companies in which it holds an interest.

The registered offices of the Company are located at Avenida Francesc Macia, n° 60, planta 20, in Sabadell
{Barcelona).

The Company is the Parent of a group, the principal activity of which consists of the manufacture and
commercialisation of accessories and specific products for swimming pools, irrigation, and water treatment and
purification systems.

Fluidra, S.A. is the Parent of the Group formed of the subsidiaries (hereinafter Fluidra Group or the Group)
details of which are included in Appendix |. The Group also holds interests in other entities and in joint ventures,
which are detailed in Appendix 1.

As a result of the general economic downturn in 2008 and 2009, which has particularly affected the Spanish
market, the Group is currently re-organising its production capacily with the aim of achieving distribution
synergies.

This process includes a re-definition of the Group's organisational set-up (see note 6). The directors of various
subsidiaries have also prepared merger projects, which have been approved or presented for approval by their
respeclive shareholders. These concentration and merger procedures have not implied that any operations have
been discontinued and the majority of the assets previously existing in these companies have not been
impaired.

2. Basis of Presentation

a) Fair view and comparative information

The annual accounts at 31 December 2009 have been prepared on the basis of the Company's accounting
records and in accordance with prevailing mercantile legislation and the Spanish General Chart of Accounts
approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 to present fairly the Company’s equity and financial position at 31
December 2009 and results of operations, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended.

The directors consider that the annual accounts for 2009 will be approved without significant changes.

The figures disclosed in the annual accounts are expressed in thousands of Euros, the Company's functional
and presentation currency, rounded off to the nearest thousand.

b) Comparison of information

The balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and notes thereto
for 2009 include comparative figures for 2008 which formed a part of the annual accounts approved by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 5 June 2009.

Based on the reply from the Spanish Insfitute of Accountants and Auditors published in BOICAC 79 (Spanish
Institute of Accountants and Auditors’ Official Gazette) and taking into consideration that the Company’s ordinary
activity involves the holding of shares, the Company has reclassified the Euros 800 thousand balance for 2008
relating to the impairment of investments in group companies and associates, classified under “Impairment and
gains/{losses) on disposal of financial instruments” and the Euros 133 thousand balance relating to the impairment
of financial assets, classified under “Proceeds from available-for-sale financial assets” to the “Losses due to
impairment of non-current investments” caption of the income statement, which forms part of the resuls from
operating activifies.
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FLUIDRA, S.A,

Notes to the Annual Accounts

¢) Group of companies

As mentioned in note 6, the Company holds shares in subsidiaries and therefore, in accordance with prevailing
legislation, it is the Parent of a Group. In addition to the individual annual accounts, on 26 March 2010 the
directors prepared the consolidated annual accounts of Fluidra, S.A. and subsidiaries at 31 December 2009
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-
IFRS), which show losses attributable to equityholders of the Parent of Euros (6,896) thousand and equity of
Euros 301,376 thousand. The consolidated annual accounts will be deposited in the Barcelona Mercantile
Registry.

d) Critical issues regarding the valuation and estimation of relevant uncertainties and judgements used
when applying accounting principles

Relevant accounting estimates and judgements, estimates and assumptions have to be made when applying the
Company's accounting principles to prepare the annual accounts. A summary of the items requiring a greater
degree of judgement or which are more complex, or where the assumptions and estimates made are significant
to the preparation of the annual accounts is as follows:

+ Relevant accounting estimates and assumptions and judgements when applying accounting principles

The Company's annual accounts for 2009 include estimations made by Management to quantify certain assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and obligations recognised therein. These estimations basically refer to the
following:

Impairment of investments in group companies and associates

An analysis of the impairment of investments in group companies and associates implies an analysis of the
recoverable amount of these investments, which is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of cash flows expected to be received. To calculate this recoverable amount cash flow
projections based on past results and expectations on the performance of each of the markeis are used (see
note 3 d x). The calculation of the recoverable amount implies the use of estimations by Management. Key
assumptions to determine the fair value less costs to sell and value in use include growth rates, yield, discount
rate and tax rates. The estimations, including the methodology used, could have a significant impact on
impairment and impairment loss.

- Fair value of financiat instruments and certain unquoted assets (see notes 3d & 3e)

- Fair value of the Company's commitment with the management team regarding investment in share capital
(see note 8).

* Changes in estimation
in addition, although estimates are calculated by the Company's directors based on the best estimale available at
31 December 2008, future svents may take place requiring these estimates to be modified in subsequent years.

The effect on the annual accounts of modifications which, where applicable, resuit from adjustments to be made
in subsequent years are recognised prospeciively.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The annual accounts at 31 December 2009 have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
and measurement standards set out in the Spanish General Chart of Accounts approved by Royal Decree
1514/2007.

A summary of the most significant accounting policies is as follows:
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FLUIDRA, S.A.
Notes to the Annual Accotints

a} Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions have been translated into Euros using the exchange rate prevailing at the
transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilittes denominated in foreign currencies have been translated into Euros at the closing
rate, while non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost have been franslated at the exchange
rate prevailing at the transaction date.

in the statement of cash flows, foreign currency transaction cash flows have been translated into Euros at the
exchange rates at the dates the cash flows occur.

The effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivatents denominated in foreign currencies is
recognised separately in the statement of cash flows as effect of exchange rate fluctuations.

b) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition. Property, plant and equipment are carried at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment valuation allowances.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated by aflocaling the depreciable amount of an asset on a systemalic
basis over its useful life. The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, less its residual value.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the following criteria:

Depreciation Estimated years
method of useful life
Motor vehicles Straight-line 6.25

The Company reviews residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods at each financial year end.
Changes to initially established criteria are accounted for as a change In accounting estimates.

Subsequent to initial recognition of the asset, only the costs incurred which increase capacity or productivity or
which lengthen the useful life of the asset are capitalised. The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is
derecognised. Costs of servicing are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

The Company evaluates whether there are indications of possible impairment losses fo verify whether the
carrying amount of these assets exceeds the fair value, which is the higher of fair value, less costs to sell and
value in use. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and are only reversed If there has been a change
in the estimates used to calculate the recoverable amount of the asset.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. The increase in the carrying amount of an asset
aftributable to a reversal of an impairment loss may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised. After an impairment
loss or reversal of an impairment foss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the asset is
adjusted in future periods based on its new carrying amount.

¢) Intangible assets

Intangible assets, which fully comprise industrial property and software, are measured at cost or cost of
production and are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 to 5 years.

Subsequent costs on intangible assets are recognised in profit and loss, unless it increases the expected future
economic benefits attributable to the intangible asset.

The Company measures and determines impairment valuation allowances to be recognised or reversed based
on the criteria in the preceding section (property, plant and equipment).
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FLUIDRA, S.A.
Notes to the Annual Accounts

Financial instruments

i} Classification and separation of financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a
financial liability, a financial asset and an equity instrument.

For the purpose of measurement, financial instruments are classified as financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, loans and receivables, debts and payables, investments in equity of group
companies, associates and jointly controlled entities, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
liabilities. This classification depends on the characteristics of the financial instrument and the purpose for
which it was acquired.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised at trade date, when the Company
undertakes to purchase or sell the asset.

ii) Offsetting principles

A financial asset and a financial liability can only be offset when the Company has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts or intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

fif) Financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading

These include derivative financial instruments which have not been designated as hedging instruments.

Equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are not classified in this category

Financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue are recognised as an expense when incurred.

After initial recognition they are recognised at fair value through profit and loss. Fair value is not
reduced by transaction costs incurred on sale or disposal. Accrual interest and dividends are
recognised separately.

iv) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables comprise trade and non-trade receivables with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market other than those classified in other financial asset categories. These
assets are recognised initially at fair value, including transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Nevertheless, financial assets which have no established interest rate, which mature or are expected to be
received in the short term, and for which the effect of updating is immaterial, are measured at their nominal
amount.

v) Investments in equity of group companies, jointly controlled entities and associates

Group companies are those over which the Company, either directly or indirectly, through subsidiaries,
exercises control as defined in article 42 of the Spanish Commercial Code, or when the companies are
controlled by one or various individuals or entities acting jointly or under the same management through
agreements or statutory clauses.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity or business so0 as to obtain
henefits from its activities, in assessing control potential voting rights held by the Company or other entities
that are exercisable or convertible at the end of each reporting period are considered.

Associates are companies over which the Company, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
exercises significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policles. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are exercisable or convertible at the end of each reporiing period,
including potential voling rights held by the Company or other enfities, are considered when assessing
whether an entity has significant influence.

Jointly controlled entities are those which are jeintly controlled by the Company or one or more group
companies, including parent entities or individuals, and one or more third parties.
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FLUIDRA, S.A,

Notes to the Annual Accounts

Investments in group companies, jointly controlled entities and associates are initially recognised at cost,
which is equivalent to the fair value of the consideration paid, including transaction costs are subsequently
measured at cost net of any accumulated impairment losses.

i an investment no longer qualifies for classification under this category, it is reclassified as available-for-
sale and is measured as such from the reclassification date.,

At least at year end, valuation allowances for impairment losses are made if there is objective evidence
that the carrying amount of an investment will not be recovered. The valuation allowance will be
equivalent to the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount of the
investment, the latter being the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
estimated future cash flows from the investment, {(see section x).

vi) Available-for-sale financial assets

The Company classifies in this category debt securities and equity instruments which do not comply with
the requirements for inclusion in the aforementioned categories.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

After initial recognition, financial assets classified in this category are measured at fair value and any gain
or loss Is reclassified from equity to profit or loss, except for impairment losses. Fair value is noti reduced by
transaction costs incurred on sale or disposal. On disposal of the financial assets amounts recognised in
equity are reclassified to profit or loss as described in section x). However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends are recognised in profit and loss using the policy described in
section vifi).

vii) Interest and dividends
Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividends from investments in equity instruments are recognised when the Company is entitled to receive
them and are recognised for the net amount of revenues given the Company’s activity. If the dividends are
clearly derived from profits generated prior to the acquisition date because amounts higher than the profits
generated by the investment since acquisition have been distributed, the carrying amount of the investment
is reduced.

vii} Fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. In general, the Company applies the following
systematic hierarchy to measure the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

e  Firstly, the Company applies the quoted prices from the most advantageous acfive market to which it
has immediate access, adjusted as necessary to reflect any difference in credit risk between the
instruments usually traded and the cne being valued. The bid price is used for an asset held or liability to
be issued and the asking price is used for an asset to be acquired or liability held. When the Company has
assets and liabilities with offselting market risks, it may use mid-market prices for the offsetting risk
positions and apply the appropriate bid or asking price to the net open position

o |If market prices are unavailable, the price of recent transactions are used, adapted to current
conditions.

¢ Otherwise, the Company applies generally accepted measurement techniques using market data as
much as possible and, to a lesser extent, specific Company data.

ix} Amortised cost

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liahifity is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. For financial instruments in which the variable related to
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FLUIDRA, S.A.

Notes to the Annual Accounts

the fees, basic points, transaction costs, discounts or premiums, is changed based on market rates prior to
the expected maturity, the amortisation period is the term until the following change in conditions.

Effective cash flows are estimated considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between pariies
to the contract, such as transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. In those cases when it is not
possible for the Company to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument, it
uses the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term.

x)  Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more evenis that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event or events have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

= Impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Company recognises valuation allowances for impairment of loans and receivables and debt
instruments when a reduction or delay is incurred in the estimated future cash flows, due to debtor
insolvency.

The amount of the impairment toss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not besn
incurred) discounted at the financia! asset's original effective interest rate. For variable income financial
assels, the effective interest rate is used corresponding to the measurement date under the contractual
conditions.

The amount of an impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss and may be reversed in subsequent
periods if the decrease can be objectively related to an event cccurring after the impairment has been
recognised. Nevertheless, the reversat may not result in a carrying amount that would exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

= |nvestments in group companies, associates and jointly controlled entilies and equity instruments are
carried at cost.

An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the latter of which is
understood as the higher of the asset's value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

Value in use is calculated based on the Company’s share of the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from ordinary activilies and from the disposal of the asset, or the estimated cash
flow expecled to be received from the distribulion of dividends and the final disposal of the investment.

Nonetheless, and in certain cases, unless there is better evidence of the recoverable amount of the
investment, when estimating the impairment of these types of assets, the investee’s equity is taken into
consideration, adjusted, where appropriate, to generally accepted accounting principles in Spain,
corrected for latent unrecorded goodwill existing at the measurement date.

In subsequent years, reversals in impairment losses in the form of increases in the recoverable amount
are recognised, up to the limit of the carrying amount that would have been determined for the
investment if no impairment loss had been recognised.

The impairment loss or reversal is recognised in profit and loss.

The impairment allowance for an investment is limited to the amount of the investment, except when
contractual, legal or implicit obligations have been assumed by the Company or payments have been
made on behalf of the companies. In the latter case, provision is made.
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FLUIDRA, S.A.

Notes to the Annual Accounts

®  |mpairment of available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
has been recognised in recognised income and expense and there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, the cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss, even though the financial
asset has not been derecognised. The amount of the cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss s the difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity instruments are impaired the carrying amount of the asset cannot be recovered
due to a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value. The Company considers that equity
instruments are impaired when their fair value has declined over a period of one and a half vears,
equivalent to forly percent of their listed price and when they have not been recovered.

Impairment losses for investments in equity instruments are not reversed through profit or loss.
tncreases in the fair value after the impairment loss was recognised are classified in equity.

If the fair value of debt instruments increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the increase is recognised in profit and loss up to
the amount of the previously recognised impairment loss and any excess is accounted for in recognised
income and expense.

xi) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, which are not classified at fair value through profit
or loss, are initially recognised at fair value less any transaclion costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial liability. After initial recognition, liabilities classified under this category are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Nevertheless, financial liabilities which have no established interest rate, which mature or are expected to
be setiled in the short term, and for which the effect of discounting is immaterial, are measured at their
nominal amount.

The Company derecognises a financial liability or part of it when it has complied with the obligation for the
liahility or is legally released from primary responsibility for the liability either by process of law or by the
creditor.

Derivatives and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to currency and interest rate risks
arising from its activilies. In accordance with the treasury policy established by the Fluidra Group, the
Company does not acquire or hold derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. However,
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.

Derivative financial instruments which qualify for hedge accounting are initially measured at fair value, plus
any transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, or less any transaction costs
directly attributable to the Issue cof the financial instruments.

At the inception of the hedge the Company formally designates and documents the hedging relationships
and the objeclive and strategy for undertaking the hedges. Hedge accounting is only applicable when the
hedge is expacted to be highly effective at the inception of the hedge and in subsequent years in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk, throughout the period for which
the hedge was designated (prospeclive analysis) and the actual effectiveness, which can be reliably
measured, is within a range of 80%-125% (retrospective analysis).

For cash flow hedges of forecast transactions, the Company assesses whether these transactions are
highly probable and if they present an exposure to varfations in cash flows that could ultimately affect profit
or loss.
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- Cash flow hedges

The Company recognises the portion of the gain or loss on the measurement at fair value of a hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge in recognised income and expense, The
ineffective porlion and the specific component of the gain or loss or cash flows on the hedging
instrument, excluding the measurement of the hedge effectiveness, are recognised under change in fair
value of financial instruments.

The separate component of equily associated with the hedged item is adjusted fo the lesser of the
cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument from inception of the hedge and the cumulative
change in fair value or present value of the expecied future cash flows on the hedged item from
inception of the hedge. However, if the Company expects that all or a portion of a loss recognised in
equity will not be recovered in cne or more future periods, it reclassifies into change in fair value of
financial instruments the amount that is not expected to be recovered.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financiai asset or a
financial liability, the associated gains or losses that were recognised in equity are rectassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liabilify assumed
affects profit or loss and under the same caption of the income statement.

The Company discontinues prospectively hedge accounting if the foreseen circumstances affecting fair
value hedges arise. In these cases, the cumulative gain or foss on the hedging instrument that has
been recognised in equity remains separately in equily until the forecast transaction occurs. If the
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as change in fair value of financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposits with financial institutions. They also
include other shorf-term highly-tiquid investments that are readily convertible into cash with original
maturities of less than three months.

The Company recognises interest received and paid under cash flows arising from operating activities.
Dividends received from subsidiaries and associates are classified as operating activities, while those paid
out by the Company are classified as financing activities.

The Group classifies cash flows relating to interest received and paid as operating activities. Dividends paid
by the Company are classified as financing activities.

Own equity instruments

Where the Company purchases treasury shares, the consideration paid is deducted from equity and
presented in a separate category of equity called Shares and treasury shares. No gain or loss is recognised
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments during the year.
Consideration paid or received is recognised directly as a reduction in equity.

Incremental costs direcily attributable to the issue of equity instruments, except those incurred on the issue
of equity instruments as a result of the acquisition of a business are recognised as a deduction from equity,
net of any related tax incenfives or tax effect.

Dividends relating o ecjuity instruments are recoghised as a reduction in equity when approved by the
shareholders.

Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

The Company classifies assets and liabilities in the balance sheet as current and non-current. Current
assels and liabilities are determined as follows:

+ Assels are classified as current when they are expected fo be realised aor are intended for sale or
consumption in the Company’s normal operating cycle, they are held primarily for the purpose of
trading, they are expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pericd or are cash or
a cash equivalent, unless the assets are restricted from being exchanged or used to seftle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
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e Liabilities are classified as current when they are expected to be setfled in the Company's normat
operating cycle, they are held primarily for the purpose of trading, they are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting period or the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer
selilement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

¢ Financial liabilities are classified as current when they are due to be seltled within twelve months after
the reporting period, even if the original term was for a period longer than twelve months, and an
agreement to refinance, or fo reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed afier the
reporting period and before the financial statements are authorised for issue.

o Deferred tax assels and liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet under non-current assets or
liabilities, irrespective of the date of realisation or settfement,

Compensation for termination of employment

Except in the case of jusiifiable cause, the Company is liable to pay indemnities to employees whose
services are discontinued. Termination benefits are recognised as a liability when the Company has a
detailed formal plan for the termination and there is a valid expectation among the affected employees that
termination will arise either because the plan has already started to be implemented or because its main
characteristics have been published.

Termination benefits for voluntary redundancy are recognised when an offer has been made and the
Company is without realistic possibility of withdrawal and are measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer.

Obligations with personnel

As agreed with management, in the case of permanent disability a percentage of the salary earned
previously is paid on an annual basis until death. At 31 December 2009 and 2008 there s no related hablllty
as this commitment has been externalised.

Share-hased payment transactions

The Company recognises services received from employees in a share-based payment transaction as a
personnel expense when they are received and recognises a corresponding increase in equity if the
services are received in an equity-settled share-based payment transaction or a related liability if services
are received in a cash-seltled share-based payment transaction. .

The Company recognises equity-settlied share-based payment transactions, including capital increases
through non-monetary contributions, and the corresponding increase in equity, at the fair value of the goods
or services received, unless that fair value cannct be reliably estimated, in which case the value is
determined by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

Equity instruments granted as consideration for services rendered by Company employees or third parlies
which supply similar services are measured by reference to the fair value of the equily instruments granted.

Income tax expense
The income tax expense and tax income for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets or liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the
taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
halance sheet date.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the
year, except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or
a different year, directly in equity, or a business combination.

Government assistance that is provided in the form of deductions and benefits in determining taxable
income that has the consideration of government grants is recognised as a reduction in the income tax
expense in the year in which it is accrued.




16

FLUIDRA, S.A.
Notes to the Annual Accounts

In conjunction with certain Group companies, the Company files consolidated tax returns, with Fluidra, S.A.
being the Parent of this tax consolidated group and responsible for filing the corresponding tax returns with
the Spanish taxation authorities (see note 19).

The accrued income tax expense for the companies forming the consclidated tax group is determined
taking into account, in addition to the factors to consider in the case of individual taxation set out previously,
the following:

J Temporary and permanent differences arising from the elimination of profits and losses on operations
belween Group companies, derived from the process of determining consolidated taxable income.

' Deductions and credits that correspond fo each company forming the consolidated tax group; for
these purposes, deductions and credits are allocated to the company that carried out the activity or
obtained the profit necessary to obtain the right to the deduction or tax credit.

A reciprocal credit and debit arises between the companies that contribute tax losses to the consolidated
Group and the rest of the companies that offset those losses. Where a tax loss cannot be offset by the
other consolidated Group companies, these tax credits for loss carryforwards are recognised as deferred
tax assets under respective recognition criteria, considering the tax group as a taxable entity,

The parent company of the Group recognises the total consolidated income tax payable (recoverable) with
a charge (debit) to receivables {payables) with group companies and associates.

The amount of the debt relating to the subsidiaries is recognised with a debit (credit) to payables with
Group companies.

Recognition of taxable temporary differences

Taxable temporary differences are recognised in all cases, unless:

+ They arise from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and at the time of the fransaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit/tax loss;

+ They relate to differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures for which the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and if it is probable that
ths temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Recognition of deductible temporary differences

Deductible temporary differences are recognised to the extent that:

e |t is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be ufilised, unless the differences arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profititax loss;

® They relate to temporary differences associated with invesiments in subsidiaries, associates, jointly-
controlled entities and joint ventures to the extent that temporary differences will revert in the
foreseeable future and it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
differences can be utilised;

Tax planning opportunities are only considered on evaluation of the recoverability of deferred tax assets
and if the Company intends to use these opportunities or it is probable that they will be used.

Measurement

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the years when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that are prevailing or have
been approved or pending publication by the balance sheet date and reftecting the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects to recover or seitle the carrying amount of its
assets or liabilities.
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m} Transactions between group companies

Transactions between group companies are recognised at the fair value of the consideration given or
received. The difference betwean this value and the amount agreed, where applicable, is recognised in line

with the underlying economic substance of the transaction.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of property, plant and equipment and movement during 2008 and 2009 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances Balances
at at
Disposal
311212007 Additions s 31/12/2008
Cost
Motor vehicles 124 - - 124
Accumulated depreciation
Motor vehicles (23) (20) - 43)
Carrying amount 101 (20 - 81
Thousands of Euros
Balances
Balances at at
Disposa
31/12/2008 Additions Is 311212009
Cost
Motor vehicles 124 - - 124
124 - - 124
Accumulated depreciation
Motor vehicles (43) (20} - (63)
Carrying amount 81 {20) - 61
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Intangible Assets

Details of intangible assets and movement during 2008 and 2009 are as follows:

Cost
Patents, licences, trademarks and similar

Accumulated amaortisation
Patents, licences, trademarks and similar

Carrying amount

Cost
Patents, licences, trademarks and similar

Accumulated amortisation
Patents, licences, trademarks and similar

Carrying amount

investments in group companies and associates

Non-current

Thousands of Euros

Balances
Balances at at
Dispos
311122007 Additions als 31/12/2008
87 40 - 97
57 40 - 97
{(6) (15) - {(21)
(6) (15) - (21)
51 25 - 76
Thousands of Euros
Balances
Balances at at
Disposa
3111212008 Additions Is 31M12/2009
97 116 - 213
o7 116 - 213
21 (22} - (43)
21) (22} - (43)
76 o4 - 170

Movement in hon-current investments in equity instruments of group companies and associates during 2009 and

2008 are as follows:

Investments in group companies and
associafes

Impairment vatuation allowances

Carrying amount

Thousands of Euros

Balances at Balances at
311272007 Additions Disposals 31/12/2008
7.848 253,045

(345) (800) 65 (1,080)
7,048 65 262,865
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Thousands of Euros

Balances at Balances at
31/12/2008 Additions Disposals 31/12/2009
Investments in group companies and
associates 253,945 8 (1,610} 252,343
Impairment valuation allowances
(1,080) {3,300) - (4,380)
Carrying amount 252,885 (3,292) (1,610) 247,963

Investments in group companies and associates
Information relating to investments in Group companies and associates is provided in Appendix I,

None of the Group companies in which the Company invests are listed on the stock exchange.

Pursuant to the second additional provision of Spanish Limited Companies Act 2 of 23 March 1995, which
modfifies the revised text of the Spanish Companies Act, the Group companies which are solely-owned
companies have been entered as such into the Mercantile Registry.

On 26 March 2008 the Company acquired 22% of Swimco Corp.,S.L.U. from its affiiate Auric Pool S.A.U.
{currently named Fluidra Industry, S.A.U.) for an amount of Euros 5,761 thousand,

In 2008 Fluidra, S.A. also increased capital in its affiliate Neokem Grup, S.A.U. (which merged with Swimco
Corp, S.A.U. during 2009) for an amount of Euros 1,250 thousand and made a contribution to offset losses of
Euros 800 thousand in its affiliate Fluidra Services, S.A.U. to offset losses for 2008 and prior years.

Disposals for 2009 reflect the sale of interests that the Company held in ADBE Cartera, S.A.U. fo the group
company Fluidra Commercial, S.A.U. and additions relating to the incorporation of Fluidra Services Poriugal,
Uniperssoal Lda {located in Portugal) and Fluidra Services Espafia, S.L.U.

Durlng 2009, in view of the economic outlook and in order to optimise its demand in line with that of different
markets, the Group has implemented a new organisational structure, effective as of the beginning of the year.
The new structure comprises four holdings: Fluidra Commercial, S.A.U. Swimco Gorp, S.L.U., Fiuidra
Industry, S.A.U. and Fluidra France, S.A.S. As a result of this process, the following mergers have taken
place in 2009:

- Fluidra Commercial, S.A.U. (formerly Astral Pool, 5.A.U.) merged with Cepex Holding, S.A.
- Fluidra Industry, S.A.U. (formeriy Auric Pool, S.A.U.) merged with SNTE Agua Group, S.A.U.

- Swimco Corp, S.L.U. merged with Neckem Grup, S.A.U.

As a resuit of these mergers the Company has aggregated the carrying amount at 31 December 2008 of the
interests it held in the acquiring and acquired groups of each of the aforementioned business combinations.

During 2008, as a result of the significant losses incurred by the subsidiary Fluidra Services, $.A.U., the
Company tested for impairment of this investment. Al 31 December 2008 the recoverable amount stood at
almost zero and therefore the Company has made the corresponding adjustment, amounting to Euros 800
thousand. This adjustment covers the total carrying amount of this investment.
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During 2009, as a result of the losses incurred by certain companies included in the groups in which the
Company has interest, as well as other companies in which it directly holds interest, and in view of the
current econemic situation and the new organisational structure, as mentioned above, the Company has
tested for impairment of these invesimenis. At 31 December 2009 the recoverable amount for the Swimco
Corp, S.L. and subsidiaries Group, stood at Euros 3,300 thousand lower than the carrying amount of the
investment and therefore the Company has made the corresponding adjustment.

The recoverable amount of the groups and companies in which the Company holds interest has been
estimated as the present vaiue of the Company's interest in the cash flows which are expected to be
generated by these groups and companies from ordinary activities. The present value of the cash flows has
been mainly calculated based on the business plan for the next four years for these entilies, at an estimated
growth rate of 2% for the extrapolation of cash fiows beyond the four-year period and after tax rates ranging
between 10% and 11% and before tax rates of 14% and 16% according to the subsidiary and which reflect
specific related risks.

Current

Details of current investments in group companies and associates at 31 December 2009 and 2008 are as
follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances at Balances at
31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Receivables from Group companies with which the Company files
consolidated tax returns 4,121 4,450
Receivables from Group companies due to cash poaling 134,382 108,476
138,503 112,926

In conjunction with certain Group companies, the Company files consolidated tax returns, with Fluidra, S.A,
being the Parent of this tax consolidated group and responsible for filing the corresponding tax returns with the
Spanish taxation authorities (see note 19).

Receivables from the different Group companies subject to the tax consolidation regime are recognised under
receivables from consolidated group companies.

Details by company of the receivables between group companies as a result of the tax effect generated by the
consolidated tax regime are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances at 31

December 2009
Receivables
Sacopa, S.AU. 1,343
Metatast, S.AU 677
Servaqua, S.A 574
Astral Export, S.A. 411
Other 1,116

4,121
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Thousands of Euros

Balances at
31.12.08
Receivables

Fluidra Commercial, S.A.U. (formerly Astral Pool, S.A.U.) 837
Fluidra Industry, S.A.U. (formerly Auric Poal, S.A.U.) 758
Sacopa, S.A.U. 575
Cepex, S.AU. 474
Astral Export, S.A. 439
Other 1,367

4,450

The Company is also the head of the centralised credit facilities for cash pooling for the Group, reflecting the
total payable to banks under loans and borrowings. Receivables from and payables to the different Group

companies forming part of the cash pooling accounts are recognised under payables tofreceivables from
Group companies due to cash pooling.

Receivables due to cash pooling include a US dollar balance outstanding at 31 December 2008 amounting to
Euros 2,107 thousand {Euros 2,553 thousand at 31 December 2008).

7. Non-current investments

Details of non-current investments and movement during 2008 and 2008 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances Balances
at at
Disposal
31M212007 Additions 5 31/12/2008
Derivative financial instruments {see note 11) 91 - (80} 11
Equity instruments 500 - - 500
Other financial assets 1,365 - - 1,365
1,956 - {80) 1,876
Impairment valuation allowances
Equity instruments (48) (133) - {(181)
Carrying amount 1,808 {133) {80) 1,685
Thousands of Euros
Balances Balances
at at
Disposal
31/12/2008 Additions s 31/12/2009
Derivative financial instruments (see note 11) 11 - (1) -
Equity instruments 500 - - 500
Other financial assets
Other financial assets {note 19) 1,365 - - 1,365
Receivables from group companies - 265 - 265
1,876 265 {11) 2,130
Impairment valuation allowances
Equity instruments (181) (61) - (242)

Carrying amount 1,695 204 (1) 1,888
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Equity instruments are classified under the category of available-for-sale financial assets, whilst other financial
assets, current investments in group companies and associates (see note 8) and trade and other receivables (see
note 8) are classified under loans and receivables. There are no significant differences between the fair values
and carrying amounts of these calegories.

Trade and other recejvables

This halance sheet caption at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances at Balances at

31/12/2009 31/12/2008

Receivables, group companies 21,932 87
Other receivables 867 410
Current tax asset 99 -
Public entities 68 2,834
22,767 3,331

At the end of 2008 -lhe Company made a cash transfer of Euros 21,883 thousand to its subsidiary Fluidra
France, S.A.S.

Equity
a) Share capital

At 31 December 2009 the share capital of Fluidra, S.A. is represented by 112,629,070 ordinary shares of Euro
1 par value each, fully paid. These shares are represented by book entries and are recognised as such in the
corresponding accounting register. All shares have the same voting and profit-sharing rights.

On 31 October 2007 the Company completed its fiotation on the Spanish stock exchange. This process was carried
out through a public share offering of 44,082,943 ordinary shares, of Eurc 1 par value each, listed on the Madrid,
Barcelona, Bilbao and Valencia stock exchanges.

The Company only knows the identity of its shareholders from the information that they send to the Company
voluntarily or in compliance with applicable legislation. Based on the information available to the Company, the
structure of the most significant ownership at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2009 2008
Boyser, S.R.L. 14.12% 14.12%
Edrem, S.L. 13.50% 13.50%
Dispur, S.L. 12.13% 12.05%
Bansabadell Inversid Desenvolupament, S.A. 9.67% 9.67%
Aniol, S.L. 9.00% 8.60%
Grupo Corporativo Empres. Caja de Navarra 7.43% 5.00%
Bestinver Gestion, S.A, SGIIC 5.00% 5.00%
Other shareholders 29.15% 32.16%

100.00% 100.00%
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b) Share premium
This reserve is freely distributable.

Reserves
Details of this balance sheet caption are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances at Balances at

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Legal reserve 9,502 8,751
Voluntary reserves 39,251 33,917
48,753 42.668

1} Legal reserve

In accordance with the revised text of the Spanish Companies Act, 10% of the profits for the year
should be taken to a legal reserve untll such a reserve reaches an amount equal to at least 20% of the
share capifal.

The legal reserve may be used fo increase share capital provided that the balance left on the reserve
is at least equal to 10% of the nominal value of the tofal share capital after the increase. Other than for
the aforementioned purpose, provided that this reserve does not exceed 20% of share capital, it can
be used to offset losses if no other reserves are available.

2) Voluntary reserves

At 31 December 2009, the Parent's voluntary reserves, amounting to Euros 39,251 thousand (Euros
33,917 thousand at 31 December 2008), as well as the share premium and profit for the year are freely
distributable, but are subject to legal limitations regarding distribution.

d) Share-based payments

At a general meeting held on § September 2007 the shareholders approved a share option plan for
the management team, including the executive directors.

Upon approval by the board of directors the Plan was started on 11 December 2007 and involves
vesting the beneficiaries with a certain number of restricted stock units (RSUs) which will be
converted into shares in the Company afler a period of four years or once the “value creation
period” has elapsed. The start date of the Plan is 1 January 2008.

The RSUs are free of charge and non-transferable and confer the holders the possibility of
obtaining one share in the Company for each RSU received, on fulfilling the objective of increasing
the vaiue of the Company's shares and the value of the Group's business during the term of the
Plan compared to the values existing at the date of the Offer. The holders of the RSUs are not
shareholders of the Company unless the RSUs are converted into shares in the Company and the
RSUs do not confer the beneficiary the right to further RSUs in the future, as this is a one-off offer
which does not establish or ensure future offers.

Cn 11 December 2007 the board of directors agreed that the maximum number of ordinary shares
to be extended to the bhenefiziaries of the Plan on fulfilling the objectives described in the previous
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paragraph will be 648,150 shares.

At 31 December 2009 the fair value of this commitment is almost zero and, consequently, no amount
has been recognised for this item.

e} Dividends and restrictions on dividend distribution

In accordance with the minutes of the Company’s ordinary shareholders’ meeting held on 30 May 2008, it was
agreed to distribute a dividend of Euros 0.08999 per share fo the shareholders, totalling Euros 10,136 thousand
with a charge to resuilts for 2007.

At an ordinary general meeting held on 5 June 2008 the board of directors agreed to propose to the shareholders
that dividends of Euros 4,000 thousand be distributed with a charge to results for 2008.

At a meeting held on 26 February 2010 the board of directors agreed to propose to the shareholders that
dividends of Euros 4,000 thousand be distributed with a charge to results for 2008.

Treasury shares

At the general ordinary meeting held on 30 May 2008 the shareholders of Fluidra, S.A., in accordance with Articles
75 and subsequent articles of the Spanish Companies Act, authorised the Company to proceed with the
acquisition of treasury shares directly or through group companies, rendering null and void the authorisations
given by the shareholders at the meeting held on 5 September 2007. The shareholders also authorised the
Company to apply the treasury share portfolio to execute or cover remuneration packages.

At the board of directors’ meeting held on 28 August 2008, the directors unanimously agreed to ralify the actions
of the Company's managing director, Mr Eloy Planes Corls, regarding treasury shares, therefore executing the
authorisations granted to the board by the shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on 5 September
2007 and at an ordinary general meeting held on 30 May 2008.

The board of directors unanimously agreed o authorise the managing director, Mr Eloy Planes Corts, to acquire
treasury shares of the Company up to a maximum number which cannot exceed 2% of the Company’s capital.
This authorisation was valid untit 31 December 2009,

At a meeting held on 16 December 2008 the board of directors agreed to authorise the managing director to
acquire freasury shares up fo a limit of 3% of share capital.

At a meeting held on 24 April 2009 the board of directors unanimously agreed to authorise the managing director,
Mr Eloy Ptanes Corts, to acquire treasury shares of the Company up to a maximum number which cannot exceed
4% of the Company’s capital.

At a general meeting held on 5 June 2009 the shareholders unanimously agreed to authotise the Company, in
accordance with articles 75 and thereafter of the Spanish Companies Act, to acquire treasury shares directly or
through Group companies, and with express authorisation to reduce share capital for the redemption of treasury
shares. The board of directors was granted the necessary powers to execute the agreements adopted by the
shareholders, rendering ineffective the authorisation given by the shareholders at their general meeting held on 30
May 2008, which authorised the Company, where applicable, to apply treasury shares to execute or cover
employee beneiit systems.

The temporary limit and maximum percentage of treasury shares reflect the legal maximum limits.
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Movement in treasury shares during 2008 and 2009 has been as follows:

Eures
Average
acquisition/disposal
Number Par value price

Balances at 31.12.07 138,922 138,922 5.8950
Acquisiticns 1,993,511 1,993,611 3.8073
Disposals - - -
Balances at 31.12.08 2,132,433 2,132 433 3.9433
Acquisitions 1,184,556 1,184,556 2.6393
Disposals {1,689,436) {1,689,436) 3.0000
Balances at 31.12.09 1,627,663 1,627,553 3.3735

None of the Parent’s treasury shares are held by Group companies.

g} Valuation adjustments

This caption includes the gains or losses on the measurement at fair value of the hedging instrument that is
determined to be an effective hedge, net of the tax effecl.

h) Proposed distribution of profit

The proposed distribution of the Company's profit for 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Euros Euros
2009 2008

Basis of allocation:
Profit for the year 8,828,369.90 7.512,768.89
Distribution:
Legal reserve 882.837.00 751,276.89
Voluntary reserves 3,9453532.90 2,761,492.00
Dividends 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00

Total 8,828,369.90 7,5612,768.89
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0. Current and non-current loans and borrowings

Details of the balance sheef captions are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances at Balances at

3141272000 31/12/2008
Bank loans 7,122 9,039
Credit facilities 40,397 78,729
Total current 47,519 87,768
Bank loans 34,949 17,364
Total non-current 34,949 17,364
Tolal loans and borrowings 82,468 105,132

All these liabilities are classified in the debts and payables category. There are no significant differences between
the carrying amount and fair value of these lfabilities.

The terms of the Company’s credit facilities at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

Balance
Limit drawn down
Date of (thousands | Curre | (thousands
Type Bank signature Maturity date | of Euros) ney of Euros)
Credit facility cash-p.  Banco Sabadell 13-03-07 13-03-10 30,000 EUR 13,204
Credit facility cash-p, BBVA 30-03-07 30-03-10 35,000 EUR 4,459
Credit facility cash-p.  Banesio 02-04-08 02-04-10 25,000 EUR 5,516
Credit facility cash-p. BSCH 02-02-08 02-02-10 25,000 EUR 7,377
Credit facility cash-p. La Caixa 31-10-08 31-10-11 25,000 EUR 4,703
Credit facility cash-p.  Banco Sabadell 08-10-07 08-10-10 6,500 usD 2,107
Credil facility Bankinter 31-12-08 31-12-09 2,000 EUR 66
Credit facility Bankinter 31-12-08 31-12-09 8,000 EUR 2,966
TOTAL 40,397
The terms of the Company’s credit facilities at 31 December 2008 are as follows:
Balance
Limit drawn down
Date of (thousands | Curren | (thousands
Type Bank signature Maturity date | of Euros) cy of Euros)
Credit facility cash-p.  Banco Sabadell 13-03-07 13-03-10 40,000 EUR 13,274
Credit facllity cash-p,  BBVA 30-03-07 30-03-10 35,000 EUR 26,321
Credit facility cash-p.  Banesto 02-04-08 02-04-11 35,000 EUR 22,013
Credit facility cash-p.  Caja Navarra 20-06-08 20-06-09 10,000 EUR 8,252
Credit facility Bankinter 20-04-04 Rev. Anual 8,000 EUR 124
Credit facility cash-p.  Banco Sabadell 08-10-07 08-10-10 6,500 USD 7,468
Credit facility cash-p.  La Caixa 31-10-08 31-10-11 25,000 EUR 1,278
Credit facility cash-p.  Bankinter 31-12-08 31-12-2009 2,000 USD -
TOTAL 78,728
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All the credit facilities are renewable on a yearly basis in mutual agreement between the parties.

Credit facilities accrue interest at an average market rate, fixed or linked to Euribor or Libor, with spreads ranging
between 1.00 and 1.25 percentage points (0.3 and 0.65 percentage points in 2008).

Loans accrue interest at an average market rate, fixed or linked 1o Euribor or Libor, with spreads ranging between
0.4 and 2 percentage points (0.4 and 1.25 percentage points in 2008).

The majority of the finance expenses recognised in the income statement relate to interest on loans and credit
facilities.

a) Classification by maturity

Non-current maturity dates of leans and borrowings at 31 December 2008 and 2009 are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Maturity 2009 2008

Up to 1 year 47,519 87,768

2 years 19,292 4,136

3 years 6,679 12,754

4 years 5,054 474

5 years 3,924 -
82,468 105,132

b} Payables in foreign currencies

Loans and borrowings include a payable in Pounds Sterling, the cutstanding balance of which is Euros 723
thousand at 31 December 2009. (Euros 957 thousand at 31 December 2008)

Finance expenses for 2009 include interest of Euros 53 thousand on a Pounds Stetling loan (Euros 135 thousand
in 2008).
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41. Derivative financial instruments
Details of derivative financial insfruments are as follows:

2009

Thousands of Euros

Notional Fair values

amount Assets Liabilittes

Non-current Current Non-current Current

1) Derivatives held for trading
a) Exchange rate derivatives
Forelgn currency forwards

Tola! derivatives fraded In OTC markets

b} Interest-rale derivatives

Interast rate swaps 6,460 74 20
Interest-rate and currency swaps

Interest-rate options in OTC markets

Total derivatives traded in OTC markets 74 20

Total derivafives held for trading

2) Hedging derivatives
a) Cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps 30,000 74 243
Total hedging derivatives

Total recognised derivatives 148 263

2008

Thousands of Euros

Notianal Fair values

amount Assets Liabilities

Nen-current Current Non-current Current

1) Derivatives held for trading

a} Exchange-rate derivatives
Faorelgn currency forwards 1,821 - 4 . 4
Options traded In OTC markets - - -

Tolal derivatives traded In OTC markets - 4 - 4

b) Interest-rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 4,274 - - 10 2
Interest-rate ang currency swaps - - - -
Interest-rate options in OTC markets 4,493 11 - - -

Total derivatives traded in OTC markets 11 - - -

Total derivatives held for trading 14 4 10 6
2) Hedging derivatives

a) Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 25,000 - - 686 -

Total hedging derivatives

Total recognised derivatives i1 4 706
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The total change in fair value of hedging derivatives estimated using valuation techniques recognised in equity,
as they relate to effective hedging, has been Euros 317 thousand (Euros 686 thousand in 2008).

a)

Interest rate swaps

The Company uses fixed interest interest rate swaps with and without deactivating barriers, with fixed rate
values ranging between 2.64% and 4.61% to manage interest rate fluctuation exposure, mainly relating to its
bank loans. The inception and maturity dates of derivatives at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Derivatives held for trading

Notional amount Start End Type of
In thousands of Euros date date derivative
1,460 11/11/2005 11/11/201¢ Fixed swap
5,000 29/06/2009 29/06/2013 Barrier swap
6,460

Hedging derivatives

Notional amount Stari End Type of

in thousands of Euros date Date derivative
7,500

7,500 15/05/2008 31/03/2010 Fixed swap

5,000 15/(5/2008 31/03/2010 Fixed swap

5,000 15/05/2008 31/03/2010 Fixed swap

5,000 29/06/2009 28/06/2013 Fixed swap
30,000

The Company used interest rate swaps for floating to fixed rates with and without deactivating barriers, with
fixed rate values ranging between 2.37% and 4.87% and with barrier intervals between 4-5.75%, to manage
interest rate fluctuation exposure, mainly relating to its bank loans. The inception and maturity dates of
derivatives at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Derivatives held for frading

Notional amount Start End Type of
In thousands of Euros date date derivative
1,354 24/11/2004 2411172009 Knock-in Knock-out
4,493 21/11/2006 211112011 CAP oplion
2,920 117112005 11/11/2010 Barrier swap
8,767

Hedging derivalives

Notional amount Start End Type of
In thousands of Euros date date derivative
7,500 15/05/2008 31/03/2010 Fixed swap
7,500 15/05/2008 31/03/2010 Fixed swap
5,000 15/05/2008 31/03/2010 Fixed swap

5,000 15/05/2008 31/03/2010 Fixed swap
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25,000

The Company does not apply hedge accounting on some of these contracts due to the difficulty in testing
effectiveness in accordance with the standard. Therefore, although these contracts hedge the Company's
exposure to interest rate fluctuations, most of them are recognised as though they are held for trading.

A breakdown by notional amount and residual maturity term of swaps existing at balance sheet date is as

follows:
Thousands of Euros
2008 2008
Up to one year 26,460 1,354
Between one and five years 10,000 7,413
36,460 8,767

Because they are derivatives which cannot be traded on organised markets, the fair value of swaps is
calculated using the revised value of the expected cash flows due to the difference in rates, based on market
condilions at the measurement date.

by Foreign currency forward contracts

In order to manage its exchange rate exposure in forward outright sale and purchase contracts, the Fluidra
Group, through the Company, has entered into purchase and sale forward contracts on the main markets in
which it operates. Nevertheless, although these derivative hedge transactions in foreign currency, the
Company does not apply hedge accounting due to the difficulty in testing effectiveness as required by the
standard.

A breakdown by type of currency, of the notional amounts of forward contracts at 31 December 2009 and
2008, the residual values of which are of less than one year, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2009 2008
usb - 1,821
- 1,821
12. Pavables {o group companies and associates
Details of this balance sheet caption are as follows:
Thousands of Euros
Balances at Balances al
31M2/2008 31/12/2008
Payables to group companies 1 5
Payables to Group companies with which the Company files consolidated
income tax returns 5.185 3,800
Payables to Group companies with which the Company files consclidated
VAT returns - 2,613

Payables to Group companies for cash pooling 73,452 11,879
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78,638 18,297

In conjunction with certain group companies, the Company files consolidated tax returns, with Fluidra, S.A. being
the Parent of this tax consolidated group and responsible for filing the corresponding tax returns with the Spanish
{axation authorities (see note 19).

Payabiles to the different Group companies subject to the tax consolidation regime are recognised under payables
to group companies with which the Company files consolidated income tax returns.

In 2008, the Company filed consolidated VAT returns in conjunction with other Group companies. Fluidra, S.A. is

the Parent of this tax consolidation and is responsible for filing the corresponding tax returns with the taxation
authorities

Details by company of payables between group companies as a result of the tax effect generated by the
consolidated tax regime for income tax and VAT are as follows:

Thousands of

Euros
Balances at 31
December 2009
Payables
Inquide, S.A.U. 1,568
Fluidra Commercial, S.A. 786
Fluidra Industry, S.A.U 706
Fiuidra Espafia, S.A.U 672
Fluidra Commercial Services, S.L.U 524
Togama, S.A. 419
Other 510
5,185
Thousands of
Euros
Balances at
31.12.08
Payables
Inquide, S.A.U. 1,326
Metalast, S.A.U. 907
Snte Agua Group, S.A. 698
Pool Supplier, S.L.U 513
Fluidra Commercial, S.A. 293
Meip International, S.L. 280
Other 2,396
6,413

The Company is also the head of the cenfralised credit facilities for cash pooling for the Group, reflecting the total
payable to banks under loans and borrowings. Recelvables from and payables to the different Group companies
forming part of the cash pooling accounts are recognised under payables to/receivables from Group companies
due to cash pooling.

Payables due to cash pooling include a US dotlar halance outsanding at 31 December 2009 amounting to Euros
2,107 thousand (Euros 747 thousand at 31 December 2008).
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13. Trade and other payables

Details of this balance sheet caption are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balances at Balances at

31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Trade payables 344 171
Current tax liability - 166
Public entities 398 127
Salaries payable 180 40
Other payables 95 96
1,017 589

14. Risk manadgement policy

The Company’s aclivities are exposed to various financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate
risk in fair value and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk in cash flows, The Company's risk
management programme focuses on uncertainty in the financial markets and aims to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Company's profits. The Company uses derivatives to mitigate certain risks.

Market, liquidity, currency and interest rate risks are controlled by the Group's central Treasury Department in
accordance with policies defined by the Group. This Department identifies, evaluates and covers the financial risks
in close collaboration with the operating units of the Group.

a) Credit risk

The Company is not significantly exposed to credit risk. Derivative and cash operations are only performed
with financial institutions that have high credit ratings. The Company has policies to limit the amount of risk
with any one financial institution.

At 31 December 2009 and 2008 there are no past due balances.

b) Liguidity risk
The Company applies a prudent policy to cover its liquidity risks based on having sufficient cash and
marketable securities as well as sufficient financing through credit facilities to seltle market positions. Given

the dynamic nature of its underlying business, the Group’s Treasury Department aims to be flexible with
regard to financing through drawdowns on contracted credit facilities.

Detalls of the classification of financial abilities by contractual maturity are provided in note 10.
Based on treasury forecasts, the Company does not foresee any liquidity problems in forthcoming months.

¢) Currency tisk
The Company does not have any significant currency risks.

The currency risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities Details of financial assets and financial
Habitities in foreign currencies and transactions in foreign citrrencies are provided in notes 8, 10 and 12.

d) Interest rate risk in cash flows
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As the Company does not have a considerable amount of remunerated assets, income and cash flows from
operating activities are not significantly affected by fluctuations in market interest rates.

Interest rate risks arise from other long-term borrowings. Borrowings, all at variable interest rates expose the
Company to interest rate risks in cash flows. Fixed-interest loans expose the Company to interest rate risks
to fair value. As indicated in nate 10, the Company's main loans are associated with market interest rates
which are updated on a quarterly, half-yearly or yearly basis.

The Company manages interest rate risks in cash flows through floating to fixed interest rate swaps with
barriers. These interest rate swaps convert floating interest rates on borrowings to fixed interest rates.
Generally, the Company obtains other non-current borrowings with floating interest rates and swaps these
for fixed interest rates. These are generally at lower rates than those which would have heen obtained had
the Group obtained the resources directly with fixed interest rates. Through interest rate swaps, the
Company undertakes to exchange the difference between fixed interest and floating interest with other
parties periodically {generally quarterly). The difference is calculated based on the contracted noticnal
principal.

Some of the swaps contracled by the Company hedge interest rate risks in cash flows, they do not comply
with the requirements established in the NPGC for hedge accounting purposes. Consequently, the variation
in the fair value of swaps at each balance sheet date is recognised in profit and loss for the year. Swaps
complying with hedge accounting requirements are recognised as income and expense in equity.

e) Maiket risk

Apart from the swaps coniracted by the Company, as mentioned in the seciion above, there are no
significant price risks relating to equity instruments classified as available-for-sale or at fair value through
profit and loss.

15. Revenue
Revenue fully comprises dividends collected from Group companies.

Revenue does not include interest payable without any margin to Group companies as the Company is the head of
the Group’s cash pooling centralised credit facllities, given that it is not considered to form part of the statutory and
principal activities of the Company. This interest amounts to Euros 2,632 thousand in 2009 and Euros 3,804
thousand in 2008.

16. Personnel expenses

Details of personnel expenses for 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Thousands of
Thousands of Euros Euros
Wages and salaries 564 250
Employee benefits expense 21 8
585 258

The average headcount, all of which is male, distributed by category, is as follows:

2009 2008

Directors {including cne senior executive) ) 10 9
Senior management 2 -
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12 9

17._Transactions with group companies and associates

The most significant transactions with group companies and associales are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2008 2008

Income
Dividends 14,000 10,170
Services rendered 2 -
Interest income - 141

14,000 10,311
Expenses
Services received 6 7

During 2008 the Company acquired a 22% interast in Swimco Corp, SLU from its affiliate Auric Pool SAU for an

amount of Euros 5,761 thousand (see note 6).

The Company files consolidated tax returns in conjunction with other Group companies. Fluidra, S.A. is the Parent
of this tax consoclidation and is responsible for filing the corresponding tax returns with the Spanish taxation

authorities (see note 19).

In 2008 the Company filed consolidated VAT returns in conjunction with other Group companies. Fluidra, S.A. is
the Parent of this tax consolidation and is responsible for filing the corresponding tax returns with the taxation

authorities

The Company is also the head of the centralised credit facilities for cash pooling for the Group, reftecting the total
payable to hanks under loans and borrowings. Receivables from and payables fo the different Group companies
forming part of the cash pooling accounts are recognised under payables tofreceivables from Group companies

due to cash pooling (see notes 8 and 12).

Details of dividends received are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2009 2008
Fluidra Industry, S.A. - 5,579
Fluidra Commercial, S.A. 9,000 4,265
Cepex Holding, S.A. - 133
Accent Graphic, S.L. - 108
Swimco Corp., S.L. 5,000 85

14,000 10,170
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18. Information on Directors

a)

Information on Company directors and senior management personnel

No advances or loans have been extended to key management personnel or the directors.

Remuneration received by key management personnel and the Company’s directors is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

31.12.2009 31.12.2008
Total key management personnel 1,606 1.673
Total Parent direclors 1,161 1,099

The members of the Company's board of directors have received a total of Euros 917 thousand in 2009 (Euros
849 thousand in 2008), respectively, from the companies in which they are directors. In addition, they have
received a total of Euros 250 thousand for executive functions in 2009 (Euros 250 thousand in 2008). They
have also received payments for travel expenses amounting to Euros 71 thousand (Euros 98 thousand in
2008).

The Company has a pension obligation with one of its senior directors involving the payment of supplementary
income in the event of permanent disability whilst employed by the Company. This commitment has been
externalised through a life insurance policy, for which the Company has recognised an expense of Euros 3.4
thousand during 2009 (Euros 1.7 thousand in 2008).

The Company has not extended any loans or advances to the directors and has not assumed any guarantee
commitments on their behalf. The Company has no pension or life insurance obligations with the Company's
former or current directors, except for the managing director.

b) Transactions outside ordinary trading or on a non-arm’s length basis carried out by directors,

The directors have not carried out any transactions outside ordinary trading or on a non-arm’s length basis with
the Company or with Group companies during 2009 and 2008.

¢) Investments and positions held in other companies by the directors

Details of the invesiments held by the directors in companies with a statutory activity that is identical, similar or
complementary to that of the Group, and the positions held and duties and activities performed by the
directors are provided in Appendix li which forms an integral part of this note to the annual accounts.

19. Income tax

income taxes cannot be considered definitive until they have been inspected and agreed by the tax authorities or
before the ihspection period of four years has elapsed. Due to the treatment permitted by fiscal legislation of
certain transactions among others, additional tax contingencies could exist in the event of inspection. In any event,
the Company's directors do not consider that any such contingencies that could arise would significantly affect the
annual accounts.
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During 2008 the Company filed consolidated tax returns with Fluidra, S.A. being the Parent of this tax consolidated
group and responsible for filing the corresponding tax returns with the Spanish taxation authorities Non-resident
companies in Spain and resident companies which file individual tax returns: Meip Internacional, S.L., Maber Plast,
S.L., Togama, S.A,, Productes Elastdmers, S.A., Waterchem, S.L.., ID Electroguimica, S.L., Caldereria Plastica
del Norte, S.L.., Industrias Mecénicas Lago, S.A and Certikin Pool Ibérica, S.L. and companies adhering to
Basque tax legislation are excluded from the tax consolidated group. Profit calculated in accordance with
prevailing fiscal legislation in Spain is subject to a tax rate of 30% of the taxable income for companies located in
Spain (excluding Basque Country).

During 2009, the Company continues to file consolidated tax returns Non-resident companies in Spain and
resident companies which file individual tax returns: Meip Internacional, S.L., Productes Elastomers, S.A., 1D
Electroquimica, S.L., Industrias Mecénicas Lago, S.A., Certikin Pool Ibérica, S.L. and Way fit, S.L. and companies
adhering to Basque tax legislation are excluded from the tax consolidated group. Profit calculated in accordance
with prevailing fiscal legislation in Spain is subject to a tax rate of 30% of the taxable income for companies
located in Spain (excluding Basque Country).

A recondiliation between the net income and expenses for the year and the taxable income of the Company at 31

December 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2009
Income statement Income and expenses recognised in
equity
In(ggas Decreases Net Encer:as Decreases Net Total
Income and expenses for the year 8,828 - 8.828 265 . 265 9,003
Income tax {1,726) (1,726) 114 . 114 (1,612)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 7,402 379 7,481
Permanent differences - individual
co. {9,000) (8,000) - - - (9,000)
Temporary differences - individual
co. 3,300 - 3,300 - - (379) 2,921
Temporary differences tax
consolidation 4,193 (2,287) 1,926 - - 1,928
Taxable income (tax loss) 3328 _ 3328
Thousands of Euros
2008
income statement Income and expanses recognised in
equity
tncer:as Decreases Net In(ggas Decreases Net Total

Income and expenses for the year

7,513 - 7.513 - (488) (488) 7,025
Income tax - (1,087) (1,087) - {208) (208} (1,295)
Profit before income tax 8,426 (696) 5,730
Permanent differences - individual
co. - (10,170) (10,170} - - - (10,170)
Temporary differences - individual
co. 946 (250) 896 696 - 696 1,392
Temporary differences fax
consolidation 5,302 (8,253) (2,951} - - - {2,951)
Taxable income (tax loss) (5,999) ) {5,999)
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Permanent differences relate to the elimination of dividends received by the Company.

Temporary differences assoclated with the tax consolidation relate to the elimination of the inventory margin for
companies consolidated for tax purposes in Spain (excluding Basque Country).

Detaits of deferred tax assets and liabilities, by type, are as foliows:

Thousands of Euros

Assets Liabilities Net
2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008
Deferred gains - - 2,846 2,755 (2,846) (2,755}
Inventories - - 680 1,258 (680) (1,258}
Credits for deductions and tax loss
carryforwards
1,515 - - - 1,515
Provision of Investments 2,603 1,853 2,603 1,853
Other itemns 95 209 - - a5 209
4,213 2,062 3,526 4,013 687 (1,951)

Details of the variation in deferred tax assets and liabilities, by type, are as follows:

Thousands of Euros
31422007 Proftand Equity Other 31.12.2008
Deferred gains (1,365) {1,218) - (172) (2,755)
Exchange differences {45) 44 - 2 0
inventories {1,380) 23 - 99 {1,258)
Provision for investments 2,007 550 - (704) 1,853
Other items 76 (75) 209 {1} 209
Totat (707) (676) 209 {777) (1,951)
Thousands of Euros
31.12.2008 P";g‘s:”d Equity Other 31.12.2009
Deferred gains {2,755) (90) {2,845)
Inventories {1,258) 578 {680)
Provision for investments 1,853 990 (241} 2,602
Credits for deductions and tax loss
carryforwards - 1,515 1,615
Other items 209 {(114) 95
Total {1,851) 3,083 {114) {(331) 687

On 30 March 2006 the Company increased capital through a non-monetary contribution of shares, adhering to
the special tax regime included in fitle VII, chapter VIl of Royal Decree-Law 4 of 5 March 2004, approving the
Modified Text of Spanish Income Tax Law.

Initially, the shareholders contributing shares in the aforementioned transaction adhered to this tax exemption,
therefore transferring the commitment with the taxation authorities for the corresponding deferred tax liability,
which amounts to Euros 7,790 thousand, to the Parent. Nevertheless, on 31 March 2006 these shareholders
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signed a commitment to reimburse the Parent for the total amount of this exemption, which will be required in the
event that the associated shares are sold by the Parent or the corresponding tax is direclly setlled by the
contributing shareholders should they sell all or part of the shares received in exchange for this contribution.
Consequently, at 31 December 2006 the Company recognised a non-current deferred tax liability and a non-
current receivable, both for the aforementioned amount. Should the Company generate a receivable from the
contribtiing shareholders, the amount payable by the contributing shareholders will be set off by future dividends
to be distributed by the Company. As a result of the disposal of shares by the shareholders on 31 October 2007
in relation to floating the Company on the stock market, this non-current deferred tax liability {(recognised under

deferred gains in the table above)} and the non-current receivable were reduced by Euros 1,365 thousand (see
note 7).

Items charged and credited directly to equity for the year relate to available-for-sale financial assels and hedging
Instruments and amount to Eurcs 114 thousand in 2009 and Euros 209 thousand in 2008.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities expected to revert in the next 12 months amount to Euros 650 thousand and Euros
1,610 thousand, respectively. (Euros 1,258 thousand and Euros 2,082 thousand respectively in 2008).

Details of the recoverable income tax are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2009 2008
Current tax expensefincome
Current year 1,014 {1,800}
Tax credits - -
Prior year adjustments 335 37
Other 8 -
Deferred taxes
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,568) 676
Effect of change in tax rate in Spain {1,515)
Total recoverable income tax {1,726) (1,087)

A reconciliation of the current tax with net current income tax liahilities is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2009 2008
Current tax 1,014 (1,800)
Withholdings and payments on account during the year 50 1,145
Addiltional liabHities from group companies consolidated for tax purposes (1,162) 810
Tax payable 2007 - (167)
Net liability from current income tax (99) (12)

The Company has not adhered lo the option of integrating the net balance of adjustments fo transition reserves
for equal amounts into the taxable income corresponding to each of the first three tax periods starting as of 1
January 2008 or previously if the batance of any equily item is derecognised or due to extinguishment of the
taxable entity and with the exceptions foreseen for the charging of provisions for decline in value of investments
in the capital of other entities and exchange gains.
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Details of the recoverable income tax related to profit on continuing operations are as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2009 2008
Profit before income tax on continuing operations 7,102 6,427
Profit at 30% 2,131 1,928
Permanent differences (2,700) (3,052)
Differences in prior years' income tax expense 335 37
Tax credits (1,500} -
Other 8 -
Income tax recoverable ‘ {1,726) (1.087)

At 31 December 2008 there are no deductions or tax loss carryforwards pending offset, The years open to
inspection are as follows:

Tax Years open
Income tax 2005 to 2009
VAT 2006 to 2009
Personal income tax 2006 to 2009
Business activities tax 2006 t02009

21. Fees of the Auditor and the Auditor's Group and Related Companies

KPMG Auditores, S.L. and other companies related fo the auditors as defined in the fourteenth additional
provision of legislation governing the reform of the financial system, have invoiced the Gompany and its

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, net fees for professional services during the year ended 31
December 2009, as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Audit services 986 1,278
Other services 9 88
Total 995 1,366

The amounts detailed in the above table include the total professional service fees for 2009 and 2008,
irrespective of the date of invoice.
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22, Environment

At 31 December 2008 and 2009, in view of the Company's activity, it has no significant assets earmarked for the

protection and improvement of the environment and no significant environmental expenses have been incurred during
these years.

The Company's hoard of directors considers that there are no significant contingencies relating to the protection and
improvement of the environment and does not consider it necessary to make any provision for liabilities and charges of
an environmental nature at year end.

23. Subsequent events

No significant subsequent events have taken place.
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(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

Overview of husiness performance

buring 2009 the Company has received higher dividend revenue than in the prior year (Euros 14,000 thousand
compared to Euros 10,170 thousand in the prior year), primarily because of an increase in dividends distributed by its
subsidiaries.

Personnel expenses have risen by Euros 308 thousand due to the incorporation of the General Operating Director
and Corporate Director into Fluidra, reflecting a two-person increase in Company management personnel.

Operating expenses are up by 0.47% which is partly due to the increase in personnel expenses due to the newly
incorporated personnel, as well as higher banking charges as a resuit of the restructuring of the Group’s bank debt.

Net finance income is down by Euros 205 thousand, primarily due to the impact of translation differences (mainly US
Dollars) and the derivative financial instruments which have not had an effect on the income statement, whereas in
the prior year they had a positive effect. Net finance expenses, less finance income, are up by Euros 566 thousand,

The Company has also recognised Euros 3,300 thousand for the impairment of the subsidiary Swimco Holding. In
the prior year Euros 800 thousand was recognised for impairment of the subsidiary Fluidra Services,

Consequently, the profit for the year has increased from Euros 7,513 thousand in 2008 {o Euros 8,828 thousand in
2009, which is primarily due to the aforementioned increase in revenue from dividends.

From an analysis of the balance sheet at 31 December 2008, current loans and borrowings have fallen from Euros
87,768 thousand in 2008 to Euros 47,519 thousand in 2009, due to the reduction in the use of cradit facilities as a
result of the decrease in their use by Group companies (reflected in the fall in net receivables from and nel payables
to Group companies participating in the cash pooling account) and also due to the restructuring of non-current debt,
Consequently, non-current loans and borrowings have increased from Euros 17,364 thousand to Euros 34,949
thousand.

At an ordinary general meeting held on 5 June 2009 the shareholders agreed to distribute a dividend amounting to
Euros 4,000 thousand.

The Company’s risk management policy continues to be followed during 2009 and involves the same policies for
hedging financial markets (currency and interest rate risk) as those applied in 2008.

During 2009 the Group has carried out several purchase (1,184,556 shares) transactions involving treasury shares
and disposals (1,689,436 shares) representing 1.5% of its share capital at a price of Euros 3 per share. At year end
the Company held 1,627,653 treasury shares, representing 1.45% of its share capital and with a fotal cost of Euros
5,490 thousand.

At 31 December 2009 the Company has no significant assets earmarked for the protection and improvement of the
environment and no significant environmental expenses have been incurred during the year.

Mr. Eduardo Lépez Milagro has been incorporated inte the board of directors as representative of the solely-owned
Grupo Corporativo Empresarial de la Caja de Ahorros Monte de Piedad de Navarra S.A. Unipersonal.

Overview of Risk Policy

The Company's risk management policy continues to be followed during 2009 and involves the same policies for
hedging financial markets (currency and interest rate risk) as those applied in 2008.

Treasury shares

During 2009 the Company has carried out several purchase transactions (1,184 556 shares) involving treasury
shares, within the legally established limits and having duly notified the Spanish National Securities Market
Commission. At year end the Company held 1,627 553 treasury shares, representing 1.45% of its share capital and
with a total cost of Euros 5,491 thousand.

Research, Development and Technological Innovation

None.
(Continued)
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Environment

At 31 December 2009 the Company has no significant assets earmarked for the protection and improvement of the
environment and no significant environmental expenses have been incurred during the year.

Personnel
Two people have joined the Company's workforce.
Subseqguent events

No significant subsequent events have taken place.

(Continued)
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(Free translation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.)

In accordance with Article 116 of the Spanish Securities Market Law 24 of 28 July 19888, introduced by Law 6
of 12 April 2007, Fluidra, S.A."s board of directors hereby issues this explanatary report on those aspecis of
the directors’ report that are considered in this law for the purposes of informing the Company's shareholders
in their annual general meeting.

a) The capital structure, including any securities that are not traded on official European Union
markets, indicating where necessary, the different classes of shares and for each class of
share, the rights and obligations they confer and the percentage of share capital they represent.

At 31 December 2009 the share capital of Fluidra, S.A. (hereinafter Fluidra) amounts fo Euros 112,628,070,
represented by 112,629,070 ordinary shares of a single class and series, with a par value of Euro 1 each, fully
subscribed and paid up, which confer the holders thereof the same rights.

b) Any restrictions on the transfer of shares
No statutory restrictions on the transfer of shares exist.

Article 6 of the articles of association establishes that shares are represented by book entries. Shares can be
fransferred by any means recognised by Law according to their nature and in accordance with fegislation on
the transfer of securities, and represented by book entries,

Nonetheless, Article 81.2 of the Spanish Securities Market Law and Article 4 of the Internal Code of Conduct
establish that individuals holding any form of privileged information must abstain from preparing or performing
directly or indirectly on their own behalf or that of others, any operations involving any of the Company’s
marketable securities and financial insfruments. Likewise, individuals subject to Fluidra’s Internal Code of
Conduct must abstain from purchasing or selling the Company’s marketable securities or financial instruments
during the following periods of restricted activity:

{i During the 15 days prior to the estimated date of publication of weekly, quarterly and annua! reports on
results which the Company has io send to the Spanish National Securities Market Commission and the
Spanish Stack Exchange Councils, until the date of general publication,

(i) From the moment they obtain information on proposals of dividend distributions, share capital
increases or reductions, or the issue of convertible securities of the Company until the date of general
publication.

(i) From the moment they obtain any other relevant information (as defined in the Company’s Internal
Code of Gonduct) until it is divulged or made public knowledge.

in accordance with the terms of article 5.3 of the Internal Code of Conduct, marketable securities and financial
instruments may not be sold by individuals subject to Fiuidra's Internal Code of Conduct on the same day on
which the purchase operation has been carried out,

{Continued)
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c) Significant direct or indirect shareholdings

Significant interests in Fluidra's share capital which are equal to or exceed 3% of share capital or voling rights
and of which the Company has been informed at 31 December 2009 are as follows:

DISPUR, S.A 13,658,188 0 12.127
Mr. Juan Planes Vila 10,000 13,658,188 12,136
EDREM, S.L. 15,204,914 4] 13.500
Mr. Bernat Corbera Bros 99,213 15,204,914 13.588
BOYSER, S.R.L 15,905,405 0] 14.122
ANIOL, S.L. 10,140,918 0 9.004
Mr. Robert Garrigds Ruiz 0 10,140,918 9.004
BANC SABADELL 0 10,891,053 9.670
INVERSIO |

DESNVOLUPAMENT, S.A.

GRUPO CORPORATIVO 8,371,674 0 7.433
EMPRESARIAL DE LA

CAJA DE AHORROS Y

M.PIEDAD DE NAVARRA

CAJA DE AHORROS Y M. 0 8,371,574 7.433
PIEDAD DE NAVARRA

BESTINVER GESTION SA 0 5,633,267 5.002
SGIIC

AVIVA INTERNATIONAL, 0 3,386,650 3.007
HOLDING LIMITED (AHL)

Mr. Albert Costafreda Jo 0 3,477,399 3.087

(Continued)
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*Through

Mr Juan Planes Vila DISPUR, S.L. 1,658,188 12.127
Mr Bernat Corbera Bros EDREM, S.L. 16,204,914 13.500
Mr Robert Garrigdés Ruiz ANIOL, S.L. 10,140,918 9.004

BANC SABADELL INVERSIO |
BANC DE SABADELL DESNVOLUPAMENT, S.A. 10,891,053 9.670

GRUPO CORPORATIVO EMPRESARIAL DE
CAJADE AHORROSY |AJA DE AHORROS Y M.PIEDAD DE NAVARRA 8,371,574 7.433
E DE PIEDAD DE NAVARRA

d} Restrictions to voting rights
There are no legal or statutory restrictions to the exercising of voling rights.
€) Associative arrangements

Fluidra is aware of the existence of an associative arrangement entered into on 5 September 2007 by the
Company’s main shareholders (Dispur, S.L., Anicl 8.1, Boyser, S.L., Edrem S.L. and Bansabadelt Inversio
Desenvolupament, S.A.U.) to jointly define their control over Fiuidra, both in terms of their voting rights and
ihe right to internally syndicate certain share transfers. The associative arrangement has a maximum duration
of 7 years from the listing of Fluidra shares, although the provisions for vote syndication have a duration of 4
years from the aforementioned date.

The most noteworthy terms of this associalive arrangement are as follows:

(i) Vote syndication; the signatories of the arrangement undertake to exercise their voting rights at
Fluidra's annual general meetings as agreed by the syndicate’s body appointed in the contract, known as the
assembly.

The adoplion of agreements by the assembly requires a favourable vote from syndicated shareholders
representing 50% or more of the aforementioned syndicated shareholders’ total voting rights. Notwithstanding
the above, certain agreements require a reinforced majority (70%) or a unanimous vote {qualified majority).

The agreements requiring a reinforced majority (favourable vote of at least 70% of the voling rights of
syndicated shares) include, inter alia, the following: {{) modification of the Company's articles of association
which include an increase or reduction of share capital - excluding those which require a qualified majority as
outlined in the following paragraph -, the creation of shares with no voting rights, modifications to the par
value of shares, replacement or modification of the statutory activity, etc; (fi} changes to the administration
system or its number of members, appointments, dismissals or composition; (ffi) the issue of bonds or any
other deht instruments or securities that may be converted into shares; (iv) establishment of share option
plans for Fluidra board members or employees; and (v) the authorisation of operations with treasury shares,
to a maximum of 2%.

The following arrangements require a qualified majority (te, the unanimous vote of the syndicated
shareholders), (i) modification of articles of association which requires a capital increase of an amount
exceeding 10% of Fluidra's capital at the date immediately preceding the date of the increase; (i)
transformation, merger, spin-off, etc.; (iii) exclusion of Fluidra shares from listing on the stock exchange; and
{iv) authorisation of Fluidra treasury share operations exceeding 2%.

(Continued)
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(i1} Limitations to the transfer of shares: the associalive arrangement prohibits the signatories from selling
or transferring shares subject {o the arrangement for a period of 4 years from the date of Fluidra's flotation on
the stock exchange. There are certain exceptions to this limitation.

Once the aforementioned 4 year period has elapsed and for the remaining term of the arrangement, the non-
transferring syndicated shareholders have a preferential acquisition right in the case of fransfer of shares

subject to the arrangement.

(iii) Composition of governing bodies: the arrangement establishes a regulation relating to the number of
members and the composition of certain governing bodies of Fluidra,

(iv) Anti-trust: the arrangement establishes an anti-trust clause for the syndicated shareholders whereby
the shareholders agree not to compete against Fluidra during a period of 4 years from the date of Fluidra's
flotation on the stock exchange, except in the case of prior written consent from Fluidra.

f) Regulations applicable fo the appointment and replacement of members of the Board of
Directors and modification of the articles of association.

+ Appointment and resignation of members of the board of directors

The members of the administrative body are appointed by the shareholders at a General Meeting or
provisionally appointed by the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of the Spanish Companies
Act and the Company's articles of association.

Act and the Company's articles of association.

Article 17.1 of the Regulations of the Company’s Board of Directors establishes that directors should be
appointed (i) at the request of the Appointmenis and Remuneration Commiitee, in the case of independent
directors, and (ii) subsequent to notifying the Appointments and Remuneration Committee in the case of the
other directors, by the shareholders at the annual general meeting or the Board of Directors in accordance
with the provisions of the Spanish Companies Act.

For external direclors, Article 18 of the Regulations of the Company’s Board of Directors stipulates that the
Board of Directors should ensure that the candidates elected are individuals of known solvency, competence
and experience, and should take strict measures in relation to covering the positions of independent directors
set out in Article 6 of the aforementioned Regulations.

The directors may not occupy this position for more than six years, and may be reelected once or twice for
periods of equal duration.

Arlicle 19 of the Reguiations of the Board of Directors establishes that, before proposing the reelection of
directors at the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors should assess, with the abstention of the
individuals in question, the qualily of the work and the dedication to the position of the proposed directors
during the preceding term of office.

Article 21.1 of the Company's Board Regulations states that the directors will cease from their position when
the period for which they were appointed has elapsed and when decided by the shareholders’ at a General
Meeting using their powers conferred for legal and statutory purposes.

In accordance with article 21.2 of the Board of Directors Regulations, the directors must render their
position avallable to the Board of Directors and formalise, where appropriate, their resignation in the
following cases: a) when they cease to occupy the executive posts associated with their appointment as
director; b) when they qualify for any of the legally established assumptions of incompatibility or
prohibition; ¢) when they have been seriously reprimanded by the Board of Direclors due fo having
breached their obligations as directors; d) when their permanence on the Board could pose a risk fo or
jeopardise the Company's interests, standing or reputation or when the reasons for their appointment no
longer exist; &) independent directors may not remain as such for a continuous perfod of more than 12
years. Once this period has elapsed they must render their position available to the Board of Directors
and formalise their resignation; f} it the case of directors representing shareholders (“Directors

{Continued)
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dominicales™) (i) when the shareholder represented sells all of its shares and also (i) for the
corresponding number, when the shareholder lowers its shareholding to a level requiring a reduction in
the number of directors representing shareholders.

Article 21.3 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations stipulates that if, as a result of resignation or any other
reason, directors have to leave their posts prior io the end of their term of office, the reasons must be
explained in a [etter sent to all members of the Board,

The Board of Directors can only propose the resignation of an independent director prior to the end of the
statutory period when there is true cause, confirmed by the Board, and subsequent to informing the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee. True cause is understood to exist when the director has
breached the duties inherent to the post or has unexpectedly caused any of the preventive circumstances
described in the definition of an independent director outlined in the prevailing good corporate governance
recommendations.

¢ Modification of articles of association

In accordance with article 5 of the Company's General Shareholders’ Meeting Regulations, any modification
to the articles of association must be agreed, interalia, by the shareholders at a General Meeling.

g) Powers of the members of the Board of Directors ahd, in particular, those relating to the
possibility of issuing or repurchasing shares

The director Mr Eloy Planes Corts has been given the same powers conferred to the Board of Directors in the
articles of association, except for those which cannot be delegated by law.

At an ordinary general meeting held on 5 June 2009 the shareholders authorised the board of directors, in
accordance with articles 75 and thereafter of the Spanish Companies Act, to acquire treasury shares, directly
or through group companies and with express authorisation to reduce share capital for the redemption of
treasury shares, delegating the necessary powers to the board of directors to execute the agreements
adopted by the shareholders in this regard and rendering ineffective the authorisation given by the
shareholders in their meeting held on 30 May 2008 and also authorising it to apply treasury shares, where
applicable, to execute or cover employee benefit systems.,

At a meeting held on 24 April 2009, the Board of Directors agreed to authorise the Managing Director, to
acquire treasury shares up to a limit of 2% of the Company's capital.

h) significant agreements made by the Company and which enter into force, are modified or
concluded in the event of a change in control of the Company due to a public share offering and
its effects, except when disclosure could be seriously detrimental to the Company. This exception
shall not be applicable when the Company is legally under the obligation to publish this
information.

The Company does not have any agreements which enter into force, are modified or are concluded as a
resuit of a public share offering.

i} Agreements between the Company and its management and directors who receive indemnities
when they resign or are dismissed unfairly or if the labour relationship is terminated due to a
public share offering.

Except for the Managing Director and the General Managers, the Company does not have any agreemenis
other than those set out in the Workers’ Statute or in the Senior Management Royal Decree 1382/1985 which
provide indemnities if management resigns, is unfairly dismissed or if the labour relationship is terminated due
to a takeover bid.

In the case of the Managing Director and General Managers, higher indemnities than those applicable in
accordance with the aforementioned fegislation have been recognised in the case of unfair dismissal.

25 March 2010
(Continued)
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A.

30.3.2006

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Complete the following table on the company’s share capital.

112,629,070.00

right
112,629,070.00 112,629,070

There is only one class of share and, therefore, none of the shares have additional rights.

A.2 Specify the direct and indirect holders of significant shares in your company at the
closing date of the financial year, excluding the Directors:

BOYSER S.R.L 15.905.405 Q 14,122
Bernat Corbera Bros 99,213 15.204.914 13,588
EDREM S.L 156.204.914 0 13,500
DISPUR S.L 13.658.188 ] 12,127
ANICL S.L 10.140.918 0 9,004
Robert Garrigds Ruiz 0 10.140.918 8,004
BESTINVER GESTION SA 0 5.633.267 5,002
SGIIC
AVIVA INTERNATIONAL 0 3.386.650 3,007
HOLDING LIMITED (AHL)
ALBERT COSTAFREDA JO 0 3.477.399 3,087
*Through :
“Nams of

“shareholder ©
BERNAT CORBERA BROS | EDREM S 15.204.914 13,500
ROBERT GARRIGOS RUIZ | ANIOL S.L 10.140.918 9,004

Specify the most significant transactions that have taken place during the year in the shareholding

structure:
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A.3. Complete the following tables regarding the members of the company’s Board of
Directors who hold shares in the company.

Juan Planes Vila 10.000 13.658.188 12,136

Eloy Planes Corts 57.621 0 0,051

Bansabadell Inversié

Desenvolupment, S.A.
represented by Mr. Carlos 10.891.053 0 9,670

Ventura Santamans

Bernardo Corbera Serra 202.243 0,180

Grupo Corporativo 8.371.574 0 7,433
Empresarial de la Caja de
Ahorros y M.Piedad de

Navarra

Bernat Garrigds Castro 13.254 0 0,012

Richard J. Cathcart 13.450 0.012
0

Oscar Serra Duffo 0 0 0

Through*:

DISPUR, SL 13.658.188 12,127

% of total voting rights held by the Board of Directors 29,492

Complete the following tables regarding the members of the company Board of Directors who
own rights over company shares:

ELOY PLANES 92.308 0 92.308 0.082
CORTS
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A.4. If applicable, state whether there are any relationships of a family, commercial,
contractual or business nature hetween the significant shareholders that are known to the
Company, unless such relationships are of little relevance or are the resuit of the ordinary
line of business.

EDREM S.L and BOYSER S.R.L.

familiar

A5, If applicable, state whether there are any relationships of a family, commercial,
contractual or business nature between the significant shareholders and the the Company
and/or the group, unless such relationships are of little relevance or are the result of the
ordinary line of business.

N/A

A.B. Specify whether the company has bheen notified of any agreements made by
shareholders that may affect it in accordance with the provisions of Article 112 of the
Spanish Stock Market Act. If applicable, give a brief description and list the shareholders
related to the agreement.

On September 5" 2007 a syndication agreement was signed. It had the following features:

Mr Juan Planes Vila on behalf of Dispur, It aims to regulate voting rights
8.L; Mr Robert Garrigés Ruiz on behalf over four (4) years as of the date
of Aniol, 8.1.; Mr Oscar Serra Duffo on Fluidra shares are listed on the
behalf of Boyser, S.L; Mr Bernardo | Total 54.5000% market. It likewise aims to regulate
Corbera Serra on behalf of Edrem, S.L; the timitations imposed on the free
Mr Carles Ventura Santamans on behalf transfer of Syndicated Shares.

of Bansabadell Inverstd

Besenvolupament, S.A.U In accordance with the law, all of

the terms that must be adopted at
the Fluidra General Shareholders
Meeting are excluded from this
Agreement.

This Shareholders’ Agreement has been notify to the CNMV as "accion concertada”
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A.7. Specify whether any individual or legal entity exists that exercises or has the power to
exercise control over the company in accordance with Article 4 of the Stock Market Act. if
applicable, please specify:

YES ' NO X

A.8. Fill in the following tables regarding the company’s treasury stock:

At the close of the financial year:

1.627.56563 0 1,450

Specify any significant variations that have taken place during the year, under the
provisions of Royal Decree 1362/2007: NOT APPLICABLE

A.9. Detail the conditions and deadline of authorisation by the Board of Directors to
execute acquisitions or transfers of own shares:

The Company's Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 5th 2009 authorised the
Board of Directors to carry out, according to the article 75 and other linked articles of the Spanish
Companies Act, directly or indirectly, the derivative acquisition of its own shares, with express
authorisation of reducing the share capital to amortize own shares, granting to the Board of Directors
the necessary faculties for the execution of the agreements taken by the General Mesting of
Sharehiders in this respect, leaving without effect the authorisations agreed by the Company's
General Meeting held in May 30"™. 2008 and also authorised the Board of Directors to use its own
shares to comply and execufte the refribution plan designed for members of management.

The Board of Directors agreed in his meeting held in April 24™. 2009 authorise to the Managing
Director, Mr. Eloy Planes Corts, fo carry out the derivative acquisition of its own shares up to a
maximum number of shares that can not reach the 4% of the share capital of the company.

A0, Specify, if applicable, the legal and statutory restrictions pertaining to exercising
voting rights, as well as any legal restrictions on the acquisition or transfer of shares in the
share capital:

Specify whether there are any legal restrictions on the exercise of voting rights:
X

YESI NO

The Share Syndication Agreement signed on September 5™ 2007 reflects the wish of the Syndicated
Shareholders to define their overall position of control over Fluidra, both in terms of exercising their
voting rights and in syndicating certain share transfer operations between themselves.
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None of the Syndicated Shareholders may sell, iransfer, assign, encumber or in any other way
dispose of the Syndicated Shares. The same applies to the transfer of the inherent political and

economic rights of the Syndicated Shares during the initial four- (4) year Syndication Period.

Specify whether there are any legal restrictions on the purchase or transfer of shares in the

share capital:

X|YES NO

Under the provisions of Article 81.2 of the Stock Market Act, any Liable Individuals that are
party to any kind of Privileged Information, “may not prepare or perform, directly or indirectly,
whether in person or through third parties, any kind of transaction on the Company's
Negotiable Securities and Financial Instruments”.

Liable Individuats may not purchase or sell Negotiable Securities or Financial Instruments while
the restriction periods are in force, that is:

{i) In the fifteen days prior to the estimated date of publication of the quarterly, six-monthly
and annual forecast statements that the Company is obliged to submit to the Spanish
Securities Commission and the Governing Bodies of the Stock Exchange, and until its
general publication.

(i) ~ From the time that any information is made available until its general publication about
proposals on the distribution of dividends, capital increases or decreases, of the issue of
the Company's convertible securities.

(i}  From the time any other Relevant information is made available until it is officially
released or becomes public knowledge.

In accordance with the provisions of Article 5.3 of the Internal Regulations on Conduct,
negotiable securities may not be sold on the same day on which a purchase transaction takes
place.

Subsequent to approval by the CEQ, the Director of the Company’s Legal Department may
decide to either prohibit Liable Individuals from entering into fransactions involving Negotiable
Securities and Financial Instruments or to make such transactions mandatorily subject to his
prior authorisation over the time that he sees fit, when circumstances so require. Under these
circumstances, the CEQ will be responsible for authorising any personal transactions the
Director of the Legal Department may wish to conduct that involve Negotiable Securities and
Financial Instruments.

A1, Specify whether at the General Shareholders Mesting it was agreed to adopt

neutralisation measures with regard to a takeover bid as provided for under Act 6/2007.

YES NO | x

COMPANY MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
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B.1. Board of Directors

B.1.1. Specify the maximum and minimum number of directors foreseen in the

articles of association:

Maximum number of directors

15

Minimum numiper of directors

B.1.2. Fill in the table below with the appropriate information about the members of
the Board:

Mr Joan Planes

Chairman

5.9.07 5.9.07

Unanimous
decision
General
Shareholders
Meeting.

at

Mr Eloy Planes

CEOQO
Member

and

31.10.06 31.10.06

Unanimous
decision
General
Shareholders
Meeting.

at

Mr Bernat Garrigos

Deputy
Secretary

5.9.07 5.9.07

Unanimous
decision
General
Shareholders
Meeting.

at

Mr
Duffo

QOscar Serra

Member

5.8.07 5.9.07

Unanimous
decision
General
Shareholders
Meeting.

at

Mr Bernardo
Corbera Serra

Member

5.9.07 5.9.07

Unanimous
decision
General
Shareholders
Meeting.

at

Bansabadell
Inversio
Desenvolupament,
SA

Mr
Ventura
Santamans

Carles

Member

5.9.07 5.8.07

Unanimous
decision
General
Shareholders
Meeting.

at
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Unanimous
decision at
Mr Richard Cathcart Member 5.0.07 5.9.07 General
Shareholders
Meeting.
Unanimous
decision at
Mr Kam Son Leon Member 5.9.07 5.9.07 General
? " o Shareholders
Meeting.
Unanimous
decision at
Mr Juan Ignacio Member 5.9.07 5.9.07 General
Acha-Orbea Shargholders
Echeverria Meeting.
Unanimous
decision at
Grupo Corp. Emp. | Mr.  Eduardoe | Member 05.06.09 05.06.09 General
de la Caja de | Milagro Lépez Shareholders
ahorros y Mont Meeting.
Piedad de Navarra

Total number of Board Members 10

Specify the resignations tendered from the Board of Directors over the last year:

B.1.3. Fill in the tables below with the appropriate information about the members of the
Board and their positions.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Eloy Planes Corts N/A CEQ

Total number of Executive Directors: 1
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% of the Board

10.00%

EXTERNAL DIRECTORS REPRESENTING CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

ahorros vy Monte de Piedad de
Navaira

Mr Juan Planes N/A DISPUR,S.L.

Mr Bernat Garrigés N/A ANIOL, SL.

Mr Oscar Serra Duffo N/A BOYSER, SL

Mr Bernardo Corbera Serra - NIA EDREM, SL

Bansabadell Inversio | N/A BANSABADELL

Desenvolupament, SA DESENVOLUPAMENT, SAU

Grupo Corp. Emp. de {a Caja de | N/A Grupo Corp. Emp. de la Caja de

ahorros y Monte de Piedad de
Navarra

Total number of external directors representing | 6
controlling shareholders
% of the Board 60,000%

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS




16

FLUIDRA, S.A.
Directors’ Report
2009

ENGLISH VERSION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

Mr Richard J. Cathcart

Born in Washington (USA) on 28 September 1944, He
became a pilot with an engineering degree in the United
States Air Force.

From 1975 to 1885, he held a number of management
positions in Honeywell Inc.

In 1996 he was appointed manager head of Pentair Water
Businesses (Minneapalis, USA), within the company
Pentair,

From 2005 until the current year, 2007, he held the post of
deputy chaiman of the Board of Directors of Pentair
(Minneapolis, USA), where he handled international
operations and business development.

In September 2007, Mr. Cathcart was appointed fo the
Board of Directors of Watts Water Technology where he
continues to serve.

Mr Kam Son Leong

Born in Selangor (Malaysia), on 27 January 1955.
Graduated with Master Degres in machanical engineering
from lowa State University in the United States.

In the year 2000 he was appointed president of Asia/
Pacific of York International Corp., a Fortune 500
company listed at the NYSE. He performed said post until
end 2004, handling the strategies of finance, business
development and execution of business plan..

From 2005, he joined J. W. Childs, a private equity
company headquartered in Boston.

He is a also board member in the following companies:
Vast Lava, Pro-Logic, HL Paitners, Daluxe International,
and Chairman of Henan ADD Electric Power Equipment,
LTD,

Mr Juan Ignacic Acha-Orbea Echeverria

Born in San Sebastidn on 1 July 1956, He graduated in
Economic Sciences from the Universidad Complutense of
Madrid and earned a Masters In Business Administration
from IESE Business School.

From 1982 until 1986 he was the Manager of the
company Chemical Bank, in Madrid and in New York.
From 1986 until 1989, he carried out the post of Director
of Varlable Income and Investment Funds for the entity
Bankinter.

From 1989 until 2003 he was General Manager and
Chairman of BBVA Bolsa, S.V.

From 2003 until 2006 he formed part, as independent
director, of the Board of Directors of the listed company
TPI Paginas Amarillas.

Furthermore, in the year 2003, he was appointed
Chairman of the company Equity Contraste Uno, post
which he continues to exercise at present.

Total number of independent Directors

% of the Board

30,000 %
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OTHER EXTERNAL DIRECTORS:

NONE

If applicable, specify the changes that have occurred over the past year in the duties
performed by each director:

Not applicable

B.1.4.: Explain, if applicable, the reasons why external directors representing controlling
shareholders were appointed at the request of the shareholders who own less than 5% of
the capital: Not applicable.

Specify whether any formal requests to attend board meetings have been ignored if such
requests have been made by shareholders who own the same number or more shares as
others and at whose request external directors representing controlling shareholders
directors would have been appointed. If applicable, explain why these requests were
ignored.

YES NO

B.1.5: Specify whether any directors have resigned from their posts hefore the end of their
mandate. Give the reasons that were given for doing so and through which means of
communication. If such resignations were tendered in writing to the Board, set out the
reasons given for doing so helow.

NOT APPLICABLE
B.1.6. If applicable, specify the duties that are delegated to the CEO.,

The current CEO, Mr Eloy Planes, has delegated all duties on a permanent basis that are delegable
according to the Law.

B.1.7 If applicable, specify the members of the Board who act as directors in other companies
that form part of the group if the listed company.

NAME OF THE DIRECTOR: EL.OY PLANES CORTTS

Representative of
Sole Director "Fluidra, S.A”

ADBE Cartera, S.A.U.

AP Inmobiliere Sole Director
Aquaambiente Tratamier!to de aguas o solugoes para o Director
ambiente, S.A.
Astral Bazenove Prislusentsvi, 5.R.0. Joint Director
Astral Havuz Ekipmanlari Sanayi ve Ticaret Director
Astral India Private, Limited Director
Astral Italia, S.P.A. Sole Director

Astral Nigeria, 1td. Director
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oint Director
Astral Pool Hellas Director
Astral Pool México, S.A. de C.V. Director
Astral Pool Polska, S.A. Director
Astral Pool Switzertand, S.A. Power of attorney

Astral Pool Thailand, Co., Lid

Joint Director

Astral pool UK, Limited Director
Astral Products, Inc. Director
Astral Scandinavia AS/ Director
Catpool, S.A. de C.V. Director
Cepex USA, Inc. Diractor
Cepex, S.R.L. Director
Certikin International, Limited Director
Certikin ltalia, Spa Director

CTX Chemicals, SRL Director

Dispreau, G.1.E. Executive Controller
DISPUR, S.L. Director
Fiuidra Balkans JSC Director
Fluidra Chile, Sociedad Anénima Cerrada Director

Fluidra Commercial Services, S.L.\J.

Sole Director

Fluidra Commercial, S.A.U.

Representative of the Sole
Director “Fluidra, S.A"

Fluidra Cyprus, Ltd

Director

Fluidra Industry, S.A.U.

Representative of the Sole
Director “Fluidra, 8.A.”

Fluidra Services, S.A.U.

Representative of the Scle
Director “Fluidra, S.A.”

Fluidra Singapore, Pte Ltd.

Director

Fluidra South Africa, Pty, Ltd

Joint Director

Fluidra Thailand, Co., Lid

Joint Director

Gre Aqua and Pool, S.L.U.

Representative of the Sole
Director “Fluidra, S.A.

Inmobiliaria Swim 38, 8.L.U.

Representative of the Sole
Director “Fluidra, S.A”

Magyar Astral Pool, Kit.

Sole Director

Marazul, Lda.

Sole Direcior

Moderne Wassertechnick AG (MTH)

Director

Prohogar, S.L.

Representative of the Sole
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Director “Fluidra, S.A.”

Representative of the Sole
Director “Fluidra, S.A.

Turcat Polyester Sanayl Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi Director

Za0 Astral, SNG Director

Swimco Corp, S.L.

B.1.8. If applicable, provide details about the directors of the company who sit on the Board
of Directors of other officially listed companies in Spain that do not belong to your group and
about which the company has been officially notified: N/A

B.1.9. Specify and, if applicable, provide details about whether the company has established
rules on the number of boards on which your directors may sit:

Yes X No

Ht is not necessary to limit the number of boards on which directors may be a member. The
evaluation of his duties as Direclors is enough control,

- In case of no conflict the Director will notify to the Secretary of the Board his intention of being a
member of another board. The Secrefary will inform the President of the Board, CEO and the Legal
Department of Fluidra.

- In case of conflict, to be able to be appointed as Director of another Company it will be necessary
to ask for the consent of Fluidra through the Secretary of the Board.

B.1.10. With regard to recommendation number 8 in the Unified Code of Corporate
Governance, describe the company’s general policies and strategies that may oniy be
approved at plenary Board meetings.

Investment and financing policies* unless they correspdn'd tothe
General Shareholders’ Meeting

The definition of the group’s corporate structure X
Corporate governance policies X
Policies on corporate liability X

The strategic or business plan, management goals and annual | X
expenditure

Policies on remuneration and the assessment of the performance | x
of senior management
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Policles on risk management, the regular monitoring of internal | x
Information and control systems

Policies on dividends and treasury stock, with particular regard | x
to the thresholds of such

B.1.11 Fill in the tables below with details about the aggregate remuneration of the Board
members accrued over the year:

In the company that is the subject of this report;

Remuneration category Figures in
thousands of euros
Fixed remuneration 1,008
Variable remuneration 76
Travelling expenses 77
Statutory business 0
Sock options and/or other financial instruments 0
Other 0
TOTAL: 1,161

b) In other companies in which the directors sit on the board and/or in other companies in
the group in which they perform senior management tasks:

Remuneration category Figures in
thousands of euros

Fixed remuneration --

Variable remuneration -

Travelling expenses -

Statutory business -

Sock options and/or other financial instruments -

Other -
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TOTAL: -

Other benefits Figures in thousands
of euros

Advances -

Loans granted -

Pension Funds and Plans: Contributions -

Pension Funds and Plans: obligations incurred -

Life insurance premiums -

Guarantees provided by the company to the directors -

¢) Total remuneration by category of director:

Category of director By company By group
Executive 348

External directors
representing
controlling
shareholders

525

External Independent 288
Other External 0

Total 1.161 0

d) In comparison with the profits derived from the parent company:

Total remuneration for directors (in thousands of 1.161
euros)

Total remuneration for directors/profits derived 0,0%
from the parent company (expressed in %)

B.1.12 Name the members of the senior management that are not executive directors, and
state their total accrued remuneration over the year:

Name or company name Post
Mr Jaume Carol General Manager for Operations
Mr Antoni Rubio General Manager for Corporate and
Financial Affairs
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Mr Pers Ballart Business Unit Manager
Mr Amadeu Serra Business Unit Manager
Mr Carles Franquesa Business Unit Manager
Mr Ignacio Elburgo Business Unit Manager
Total remuneration for senior management (in 1.356

thousands of euros)

B.1.13 In aggregate terms, state whether there are any guarantee or protection clauses in the
case of dismissal or changes of control for senior management, including executive
directors, of the company or the group. State whether the company or the group’s governing
bodies must be notified andfor approve such confracts:

Number of beneficiaries 7
Board of Directors General Meeting
Body that approves the
clauses YES
YES NO
Is the General Meeting informed about the X
clauses?

B.1.14 Describe the process for establishing the remuneration of the members of the Board
of Directors and the related clauses in the articles of association:

Process for establishing the remuneration of the members of the Board of
Directors and the related

clauses in the articles of association

Article 44 of the Articles of Association establishes that the remuneration of the
members of the Board will consist of a specific annual emolument and a fee for
attending the mestings of the Board of Directors and of its delegate and consulting
committees. The maximum amount the Company may pay in remunerations to the
Board members as a whole for the two items shall be determined by the General
Shareholders Meeting. This amount may not be modified unless approved by the latter.
The exact amount to be paid within this limit, its distribution to the various Board
members and the payment schedule shall be set by the Board of Directors as it deems
fit. The amount to be paid to the individual Board members shall be based on their
actual professional performance.

In addition to the remuneration set out in the above section, systems are to be put in




23
FLUIDRA, S.A.
Directors’ Report
2009
ENGLISH VERSION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

place whereby remunerations are either linked to Company’s share price or the various
Directors are given shares or share purchase options. The application of these
remuneration systems must be approved by the General Shareholders Meeting, which,
if applicable, shall determine the value of the shares that are to be taken as a
reference, the number of shares to be given to each Board member, the strike price,
the length of time this remuneration system is to be in place and other conditions it
may deem fit.

The remunerations described in the above sections that apply to the Board members
shall be compatible with other professional fees and earnings to which they are entitled
for any other executive or constltancy duties they may perform for the Company other
than those of a supervisory and decision-making nature that are inherent to their status
as Board members, which shall be subject to the legal framework that applies.

State whether the following decisions are taken at plenary Board meetings:

Yes| No

At the proposal of the company’s most senior executive, appointments and X
dismissals of senior management, and the conditions of severance pay.

The remuneration of directors and, in the case of executives, bonuses for X
carrying out their executive duties and other contractual conditions that must
be respected.

B.1.15 State whether the Board of Directors approves a detailed breakdown of retributions
and specify the matters on which it has a say:

Yes X No (]

Yes No

Amount of fixed expenditure, with a breakdown, if applicable,
of expenses for Board and Committee members, and an X
estimate of the fixed annual remuneration to which they give
rise.

Remuneration items of a variable nature.

Main characteristics of payment forecast systems, with an
estimate of the amount involved or the annual equivalent cost. X

Conditions that must be met by the contracts of senior
managers, such as executive directors. X
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B.1.16 State whether a report on the remuneration policy for company directors is put to the
vote by the Board at the General Meeting as a separate item on the agenda and for the
purposes of consultation. If applicable, explain the aspects in the report that deal with the
remuneration policy that has been passed by the Board for future application, the most
significant changes to such policies over the past year and a general summary of how the
remuneration policy was applied during the year. Give details of the role played by the
Remuneration Committee and state whether external advice has been sought and name the
external consultants who have provided such services:

Yes x No [

Matters dealt with in the report on the remuneration policy

General principles of the remuneration policy

General principles of the remuneration policy for Board Members

Remuneration system for Executive Directors

Remuneration system for Non-executive Directors

Role played by the Remuneration Committee

Drawing up of the Remunerations Report

Yes No

Has external advice been sought?

Name of external consultants
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B.1.17 if applicable, name the members of the Board who are Directors of Boards, senior
managers or employees of other companies and who also hold significant shares in the
listed company and/or other organisations in the group:

Name or company name of the Company name of the Post
Board member significant shareholder
MR JUAN PLANES VILA DISPUR, S.L. PRESIDENT
MR ELOY PLANES CORTS DISPUR, S.L. DIRECTOR
BANSABADELL INVERSIO | BANSABADELL INVERSIO | POWER OF
DESENVOLUPAMENT, S.A. (Mr. DESENVOLUPAMENT, S.A. ATTORNEY
Carles Ventura) GRANTED
MR BERNAT CORBERA SERRA EDREM, S.L. CEO
MR OSCAR SERRA DUFFO BOYSER, S.L. EXECUTIVE
PRESIDENT

MR BERNAT GARRIGOS CASTRO ANIOL, S.L. CEO
GRUPQ CORP. EMP. DE LA CAJA DE | GRUPQO CORP. EMP. DE LA CAJA | Resp. Andlisis de la
AHORROS Y M.P. DE NAVARRA DE AHORROS Y M. P. DE corperacién
{Mr. Eduardo Milagro Lopez) NAVARRA empresarial

If applicable, describe any relevant relationships, other than those specified in the abhove
section, that the members of the Board of Directors may have with any of the significant
shareholders and/or organisations in the group:
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Mr. Juan Planes Vila DISPUR, S.L. President

Mr. Eloy Planes Corts DISPUR, S.L. Director

Mr, Bernat Garrigds Castro ANIOL, S.L. CEO

Mr. Bernardo Corbera Serra EDREM, S.L. CEO

M, Oscar Serra Duffo BOYSER, S.L. Executive President

BANSABADELL  INVERSIO 1| BANSABADELL INVERSIO |

DESENVOLUPAMENT, S.A | DESENVOLUPAMENT, S.A. CEO
represented by Mr. Carles Ventura | represented by Mr. Carles
Santamans Ventura Santamans

GRUPOQ CORP. EMP. DE LA CAJA GRUPQ CORP. EMP. DE LA CAJA | Resp. Andlisis de la
DE AHORROS Y M.P. DE NAVARRA |DE AHORROS Y M. P. DE corporacion

Represented by Mr. Eduarde Milagro NAVARRA empresarial

Lépez

B.1.18. State whether any changes have been made to the Board’s regulations over the past
year:

Yes No X

B.1.19. Describe the procedures for the appointment, re-election, assessment and removal of
directors. Provide details abhout the responsible bodies, the procedures to be followed and
the criteria to be applied in each of the procedures.

Article 36 of the Articles of Association sels out the following:

The Board of Directors shall be composed of a number of members, which shall not be less than five
(5} or greater than fifteen {15). The members shall be determined by the General Meeting.

The General Meeting of shareholders is responsible for setting the number of directors. For this
purpose, it shall proceed directly to set sald number by means of an express decision or indirectly by
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the filling of vacancies or the naming of new directors, within the maximum limit set in the preceding
paragraph.

The General Meeting must ensure that, insofar as is possible, the number of outside or non-
executive members on the Board is a substantial majority with respect to the number of executive
members. The number of executive members must likewise be the minimum necessary and must
take into account the group’s complexity and the proportion of the Company's capital that is held by
the executive members. Finally, the Meeting must ensure that the number of independent members
represents at least one-third (1/3) of the total number of members.

The definitions of the various categories of members shall be those set forth in the corporate-
governance recommendations that are applicable at any time.

In the event that there is any outside member who cannot be considered to represent the controlling
shareholders or to be independent, the Company shall explain this circumstance and the relationship
that this member has, whether that be with the Company, its executives or its shareholders.

The nature of each member must be explained by the Board before the General Meeting of
Shareholders that is to appoint them or ratify their appointment.

Appointment of Directors:

- Pursuant to Article 17.1 of the Board's Regulations, directors shall be put forward (i) at the
suggestion of the Appointments and Remuneration Commiittee, in the case of independent directors;
and (i) subsequent to a report by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee in the case of all
other directors. Directors shall be appointed by the General Mesting or the Board of Directors in
accordance with the provisions of the Public Limited Companies Act.

- With regard to external directors, Article 18 of the Board’s Regulations sets out that the Board of
Directors must endeavour to ensure that candidates are solvent, competent and have proven
experience. These conditions will be strictly upheld in the case of calls to cover the position of
independent director, as provided for under Article 6 of the Regulations.

Re-election of Directors:

- Article 19 of the Board's Regulations only establishes that before proposing the re-election of
directors to the General Meeting, the Board shall assess the quality of work and the dedication
the proposed candidates have displayed In their previous mandates. Pursuant to Article 22, the
assessment shall be made in the absence of the candidates.

Assessment of Directors:

- Article 19 of the Board's Regulations establishes that before proposing the re-election of
directors to the General Meeting, the Board shall assess the quality of work and the dedication
the proposed candidates have displayed in their previous mandates. Pursuant to Article 22, the
assessment shall be made in the absence of the candidates.

Removal of Directors;

- Article 21.1 of the Board's Regulations sets out that directors shall step down from their posts
when the period for which they were appointed has terminated, or when the General Meeting so
decides should it exercise its legal or statutory powers. This is in accordance with the terms and
conditions set out in Article 132 of the Public Limited Companies Act.
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B.1.20. State the circumstances in which directors must step down.

Pursuant to Article 21.2 of the Board's Regulations, the directors must place their posts at the
disposal of the Board of Directors and formalise, if it deems this appropriate, the corresponding
resignation in the following cases:

a)

b)

¢}

d)

e}

f)

When they step down from the posts as executives that were related to their
appointment as directors.

When involved in any legally established circumstances of incompatibility or
prohibition.

When seriously warned by the Board of Directors due to having infringed their
obligations as directors.

When their permanence on the Board might endanger or prejudice the interests,
credit or reputation of the company or when the reasons for which they were
appointed disappear (for example, when a external director representing
controlling shareholders disposes of their participation in the company),

In the case of independent directors, they may not remain as such for a
continuous period of more than twelve years, and therefore once such period has
elapsed, they must place their post at the disposal of the Board of Directors and
formalise the corresponding resignation.

In the case of external directors representing controlling shareholders; (i) when
the shareholder they represent sells in full their shareholding stake, and
furthermore (i) in the number which corresponds, when such shareholder
reduces their shareholding stake to a level which requires a reduction in the
number of external directors representing controlling shareholders.

- In adidition, Article 21.3 sets out that in the case that a director steps down, whether due to
resignation or any other reason, before the end of his mandate period, the reasons for doing so
must be given in a letter that must be sent to all of the members of the Board.

The Board of Directors may only propose the removal of an independent director before the end of
the statutory period if there is a good reason for doing so, which must be assessed by the Board
subsequent to submitting a report to the Appointments and Remuneration Committee. It shall
specifically be understood that a director may be justifiably removed should he fail to fulfil the duties
inherent to his post or should he for any reason become involved in any of the circumstances that
independent directors are barred from as described in the recommendations on good corporate

governance that are in force at any time.

B.1.21. Explain whether the duties of chief executive of the company are assigned to the
office of the Chalrman of the Board of Directors. If so, state the measures that have been
taken to limit the risks of accumulation of powers by a sole person:

Yes No X




29
FLUIDRA, S.A.
Directors' Report
2009

ENGLISH VERSION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

State and, if appropriate, explain whether rules have been established to empower one of
the independent directors to call a meeting of the Board or to include new items on the
agenda, to co-ordinate and express the concerns of the external directors and to direct the
evaluation by the Board of Directors.

Yes X No

Article 15.4 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors foresee that, in the event of the
Chairman of the Board also being the chief executive of the Company {which does not arise
in this case), the Board of Directors will empower one of the independent directors to be
able to call a meeting of the Board or include new items on the agenda, and thus be able to
co-ordinate and express the concerns of the independent directors and direct evaluation of
the Chairman by the Board. Should one or several Vice-Chairmen of the Company have
independent director status, the Board will empower any of them so they may perform the
duties to which this section refers.

B.1.22, Are higher majorities required, other than those required by law in any decision
making processes?

Yes No X

State how the resolutions by the Board of Directors are passed, stating at least the
minimum attendance quorum and the type of majorities to adopt the resolutions:

- Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, all the decisions by
the Board must be passed by an absolute majority, except in the cases in which the Law,
the Articles of Association or those Regulations specifically establish other voting
guorums, the resolutions will be passed by absolute majority of the parties attending the
meeting. In the event of a draw in the votes, the Chairman will cast the deciding vote.

- Article 18.1 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors establishes that the Board will he
validly constituted when attended by at least half plus one of its members, who are
present or represented. The directors will do everything possible to attend the mestings
of the Board and when unable to attend perscnally, will grant their representation in
writing, specifically for each meeting, to another member of the Board, including the
appropriate instructions and a notification to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

B8.1.23 Explain whether there are specific requisites, other than those concerning the
directors, to be appointed as Chairman.

Yes No X

Description of the requisites

B.1.24 State whether the Chairman has a deciding vote:

Yes X No
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Matters in which there is a deciding vote
In all matters in the event of a draw

B.1.25 State whether the Articles of Association or regulations of the Board establish any
limit on the age of the directors.

Yes No X

Limit on the Chairman’s age

Limit on the age of a CEOQ Limit on the age of a Director

B.1.26 State whether the Articles of Association or regulations of the Board establish a
limited term of office for independent directors:

XYes No
[ Maximum number of years of term of office | 12 |
B.A1.27 If the number of female members of the board is scarce or null, explain the

reasons and the initiatives adopted to correct that situation.

Explanation of the reasons and initiatives

Fluidra’s Criteria for the Selection and Appointment of Independent Directors, which were
approved by the Board of Directors, state that the Company “in the selection of directors, will
take into account gender diversity in order to safeguard Equal Opportunities, as set out in the
Equal Opportunities Act (22 March 2007). Likewise, Fluidra shall endeavour to ensure that the
members of the Board of Directors are not only chosen on the basis of gender diversity, but also
on the hasis of diversity in origin, age and professional experience”.

In particular, state whether the Appointments and Remuneration Committee has established
procedures so the selection procedures do not suffer from an implicit bias that hinders the
selection of female board members, deliberately seeking female candidates who meet the
required profile:

Yes [ No X

State the main procedures
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B.1.28 State whether there are formal processes for the delegation of votes on the Board of
Directors. If so, descrihe briefly.

Article 42 of the Articles of Assaciation sets out the following:

The Board shall be validly constituted when one-half plus one of its members, present or
represented, attends the meeting. Representation by proxy shall be made in writing through a letter
addressed to the Chairman for each particular meeting and must be in favour of another Board
member.

Decisions shall be taken by an absolute majority of those attending the mesting, except in those
cases in which the law, these Articles of Association or the Regulations of the Board of Directors
have set higher majorities. In the event of a tie, the Chairman’s vote shall decide.

Minutes shall ba kept of the meetings of the Board of Directors and shall be signed at least by the
Chairman or the Vice-chairman and the Secretary or the Deputy Secretary, and shall be transcribed
or compiled according to law in a special book of Board minutes.

The minutes shall be approved by the Board of Directors at the end of the meeting or at a
subsequent one.

Article 16.1 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors sets cut the following:

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be validly constituted when at least one half plus one of its
members is present or represented. The directors shall make every endeavour to attend all Board
meetings and when unable {o do so shall designate a proxy in writing. Such proxies shall be
members of the Board, specifically designated for one meeting only and issued with instructions for
the meeting. The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be notified of such circumstances.

B.1.29 State the number of meetings the Board of Directors has held during the financial
year. If applicable, also state the number of times the Chairman has not attended
Board mestings:

Number of Board meetings 9
Number of Board meetings not attended by the Chairman 0

State the number of meetings of the differant committees of the Board held during the
year:

Numbher of meetings of the Executive or Delegate Committee
Number of meetings of the Audit Committee

Number of meetings of the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee

Number of meetings of the Appointments Committee
Number of meetings of the Remunerations Committee

[#20 R EL 63 ]

(S0 ]

B.1.30 State the number of meetings the Board of Directors has held durlng the financial
year without it being attended by all its members. The calculation will consider
representation without specific instructions as non-attendance:

| Number of non-attendances by directors during the financial year | %] |
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% non-attendance out of tofal votes during the financial year I @ |

B.1.31. State whether the consolidated individual annual accounts presented to the Board
for approval are previously certified:

YES NO X

B.1.32, Explain, if any, the mechanisms established by the Board of Directors to avoid the
individual and consolidated accounts prepared by it being presented to the General Meeting
of Shareholders with qualifications in the auditor’s report.

No formal procedure has been established, despite the fact that the Audit Committee must netify the
Board of Directors prior to the drawing up of Individual and Consolidated Accounts to ensure they
are presented without reservations.

B.1.33. Is the Secretary to the Board a director?

No, the Secretary to the Board is not a director.

B.1.34. Explain the procedures for the appointment and severance of the Secretary to the

Board, stating whether his appointment and removal are reported by the Appointments
Committee and approved by the plenary Board meeting:

_Appointment and severance procedure

Article 5.1 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors establishes that it will be the remit of the
Board to appoint and renew the positions on it.

Pursuant to Article 10 of the Regulaticns of the Board of Directors and in order to safeguard
independence, impartiality and professionalism of the Sacretary, his appointment and
severance will be reported by the Appointments and Remuneration Gommittee and approved by
the plenary meeting of the Board.

The current Secretary to the Board was appointed by the meeting of the Board of Directors held
on September 17" 2007 at the same time as the Remunerations and Appointments Committeen
was created. His curriculurn vitae, which proves his objectivity and professionalism, are included
inthe Enformatlon Prospectus of the Public Offer for the Sale of Shares by Fluidra, S.A. on
October 11" 2007.

Doeas the Appointments Committee report on appointments?

Does the Appointments Committee report on severance?

Does the Meeting of the Board approve the appointment?

XX | X[>x|m

Does the Meeting of the Board approve severance?

Is the Secretary to the Board specifically entrusted with the recommendations of good
governance?

YES X NO

Remarks:

'Art[cle 10.3 of the Regulatlons of the Board of Directors est'ebllshes that the Secretary, among

other duties, shall specifically ensure that the actions by the Board take into account the
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| recommendations on the good governance of the Company. |

B.1.356 State, if any, the mechanisms established by the Company to ensure the
independence of the auditor, the financial analysts, merchant banks and rating agencles.

To ensure the independence of the auditor:

Adticle 48 of the Articles of Association establishes that the Audit Committes must;

o Propose the appointment of the external accounts auditors, as set out in article 204 of the
Public Limited Companies Act, to the Board of Directors for submission to the General
Shareholders Meeting, as well as their conditions of hire, the scope of their professional
mandate and, as appropriate, the revocation or renawal of their contracts.

« Deal directly with the external auditors so that any information received on matters that may
jeopardise the independence of the latter may be tackled. It must Hkewise deal with all
matters related to the account auditing process, any notices that have to be issued under the
provisions in the legisiation on account auditing and ensure compliance to auditing
standards.

Article 54 establishes that auditors will be appointed by the General Shareholders Meeting hefore
the end of the period to be audited, for a specific period of time that may not be less than three years
or exceed nine. Moreover, the Meeting may appoint one or several individuals or corporations to act
jointly. The General Shareholders Meeting may not dismiss the auditors before the end of the period
for which they were appointed, unless there is a fair reason.

Moreover, the Regulations of the Company's Board of Directors, and more specifically article 13,
establishes that the Audit Committee must:

* Receive regular information from the external auditor on the audit plan and the resulis of its
execution, and verify that senior management takes its recommendations into account,

+ Ensure the independence of the external auditor and, therefore, (i) it will be responsible for
the Company reporting a change of auditor to the Spanish Securities Commission (CNMV)
as a relevant fact and for backing up such reports with a statement on disagreements, if any,
that have arisen with the outgoing auditor and their nature; (i} it will ensure that the
Company and auditor abide by the regulations in force on the provision of services other
than auditing and, in general, that they abide by all other regulations established to ensure
the independence of auditors; and (iii) in the event of an external auditor resigning, it must
examine the circumstances behind the resignation.

e Ensure that the auditor takes full liability for the audits of each company in the group in the
case of group audits.

To ensure the independence of financial analysts, merchant banks and rating agencies:

The Company must maintain a relationship with financiai analysts and merchant banks that
safeguards the transparency, non-discrimination, veracity and reliability of all information supplied.
The Manager for Corporate Finance, through the Manager for Investor Relations, coordinates the
processing and management of all requests for information from private and institutional investors.
The mandates to merchant banks are granted by the General Manager for Corporate Finance. The
Manager for Development grants any mandates for advice that may be deemed necessary from
merchant banks in their field of operations and in coordination with the General Manager for
Corporate Finance.,

The Company does not have a credit rating and, therefore, does not have a relationship with credit
rating agencies.

The independence of financial analysts is safeguarded through the Manager for Investor Relations,
whose specific remit is to deal with investors in an objective, fair and non-discriminatory way.

in compliance with the regulations set out by the Securities Commission, the Company has several
channels of communication in order to safeguard the principles of transparency and non-
discrimination:

+  Personalised customer services for analysts and investors.
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»  Publication of information relative to the quarterly results, relevant facts and other hotices.

+  Publication of press releases.

»  E-mail on the website (investor relations@fluidra.com} and a shareholders’ helpline
(+34902026039)}.

+  List of presentations either made in person or over the phone.

+  Visits to the Company's facilities.

All of the above information is available on the Company's website (www.fluidra.com).

B.1.36. State whether during the financial year, the Company has changed external auditor.
If so, identify the incoming and outgoing auditor.

The external auditors were not changed by the Company in 2009.
B.1.37. State whether the firm of auditors performs other work for the company and/or its

group other than those of auditing. If applicable, state the fees paid for that work and the
percentage in terms of the overall fees that were billed.

COMPANY GROUP TOTAL

Amounts for work other
than auditing
(thousands of euros) * | 3 7 10
includes  fees for
Market listing

Amount for work other
than auditing/total
amount billed by the | 18,800 0.750 1,050
auditing firm in %

B.1.38. State whether the audit report on the Annual Accounts of the previous financial year
has reservations or qualifications. If appropriate, state the reasons given by the Chairman
of the Audit Committee to explain the content and scope of those reservations or
qualifications.

YES NGO X

B.1.39 State the number of years the current auditing firm has uninterruptedly performed the
auditing of the annual accounts of the Company and/or Group. Likewise, state in percentage terms
the number of years the current auditing firm has heen responsible for auditing the accounts.

Company Group
Number of uninterrupted years 8 g

Company Group
Number of years audited by the current 100% 100%
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auditing firm/number of years the
company has been audited (%)

B.1.40 State the shares held by members of the Company’s Board of Directors in the capital of firms
that carry out the same, similar or complementary activities to those that are the corporate object of
both the company and its group, and that have been reported to the Company. Likewise, state the
posts held or duties performed at those companies:

Mr Juan Planes Vila Dispur, S. L 51,340% PRESIDENT
Mr Bernat Garrigos Aniol, S.L. 14% CEO
Castro

BanSabadell Inversié Companyia d'Aiglies de 7,070%
Desenvolumpament, S.A. | Sabadell, S.A.

Mr Eloy Pianes Corts Dispur, S.L. 10% DIRECTOR
Mr Oscar Serra Duffo Aqualink, S.L.. (en 20% _
liquidacion)

B.1.41. State and, if appropriate, specify whether there is a procedure for the directors to be
able to obtain external advice:

YES X NO

Pursuant to Article 21 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors, all the directors, in order to
he aided in exercise of their duties, may obtain the necessary advice from the Company to
perform their duties. To that end, the Company will provide the adequate channels that, under
special circumstances, may include external advice at the Company's expense.
In any case, the commission must necessarily concern the specific problems that are of a
certain nature and complexity that arise in the performance of duties.
The decision to hire must be reported to the Chairman of the Company and may be vetoed by
the Board of Directors if the following is accredited:
a) Thatitis not necessary for the full perfarmance of the duties with which the external
directors are entrusted.
b) That its cost is not reasonable with regard to the importance of the problem and the
assets and revenue of the company.
¢) That the professional advice abtained may be adequately dealt with by experts and
technicians in the Company.

B.1.42 State, and if appropriate, specify whether there is a procedure for directors to obtain
the necessary information to prepare the meetings of the governing bodies with sufficient
time in advance:

YES X NO

'Artacle' 23 of the Regulatlons of .the Board of Directors establlshes the following mechanism:

1. Directors may request information on any matter for which the Board is responsible and to
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this end may examine the books, records, documents and other documentation. The right to
information includes investees, whenever this is possible.

2. The request for information must be addressed to the Secretary of the Board of Directors,
who will convey it to the Chairman of the Board and the appropriate contact at the Company.

3. The Secretary will advise the director of the confidential nature of the information requested
and received and of his duty to maintain confidentiality under the terms in the Regulations of the
Board.

4. The Chairman may refuse to provide information if he considers (i) that it is not necessary for
the full performance of the duties with which the director is entrusted or (i) that its cost is not
reasonable in view of the importance of the problem and the assets and revenue of the
Company.

B.1.43 State and, if appropriate, specify whether the company has established rules that
oblige the directors to notify, and if appropriate resign, in cases in which they may damage
the credibility and reputation of the company:

YES X NO

;- Expla
Article 26 of the Regulations of the Board of Directors establishes, among other obligations of
directors, that they must notify the Appointments and Remuneration Committee of their other
professional obligations, in case they interfere with the dedication required.

Article 28 of the same Regulations establishes that directors may not hold office as
administrators or executives of companies that compete with the Company, with the exception
of the posts they might hold, if applicable, in a company in the group. Likewise, although they
may provide professional services to firms that have a corporate object that is totally or partially
similar to that of the company, they must previously inform the Board of Directors, which may
provide justified refusal to authorise such activities.

Article 34.2 of the same Regulations establishes the obligation of directors to inform the
Company of posts held on the Board of Directors of other listed companies and, in general, of
facts, circumstances or situations that may be relevant to their management activities. Likewise,
all directors must inform the Company in cases in which they may damage the credibility and
reputation of the company and, in particular, they must inform the Board of criminal cases in
which they are charged as accused, as well as the subsequent result of such proceedings.
Lastly, that same article establishes that, in the event of a director being prosecuted, or a court
order being handed down to take trial proceedings against him for any of the offences stated
under Article 124 of the Stock Company Act, the Board shall examine the case as soon as
possible and, depending on the specific circumstances, will decide whether or not it is
appropriate for the director to remain in office.

B.1.44 State whether any member of the Board of Directors has notified the company that he
has been prosecuted or had trial proceedings ordered against him, for any of the offences
pursuant to Article 124 of the Stock Company Act:

YES NO X

B.21 List all of the committees pertaining to the Board of Directors and their members:

L EXECUTIVE OR DELEGATE COMMITTEE
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Mr Eloy Planes Corts Chalrman Executive director

Mr Oscar Serra Duffo Member External directors representing
controlling shareholders

Mr Bernardo Corbera Serra Member : External directors representing
controlling shareholders

Bansabadell Inversi6 Member External directors representing

Desenvolupament, S.AU. controlling shareholders

Mr Juan Ignacio Acha-Orbea | Member independent director

Echeverrla

Mr Bernat Garrigos Castro Non-member secretary External directors representing
controlling shareholders

. AUDIT COMMITTEE

pe
Mr Juan Ignacio Acha-Orbea | Chairman Independent director
Echeverria
Bansabadell Inversi¢ Secretary External directors representing
Desenvolupament, S.A.U. controlling shareholders
Mr Juan Planes Vila Member External directors representing
controlling shareholders

. APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr Richard J. Cathcart Chairman Independent director

Mr Bernat Garrigés Castro Member External directors representing
controlling shareholders

Mr Kam Son Leong Member Independent director

B.2.2 State whether the Audit Committee is responsible for carrying out the following:

_ | Yes | No

Supervising the drawing up and integrity of the company's and, if applicable, the
group's financial statements. Ensuring that regulations are complied with, that the
scope of consolidation is abided by and that accounting standards are properly
applied.

Regularly reviewing internal control and risk management systems in order to
ensure that the main risks are properly identified, managed and made known.
Ensuring that internal auditing systems are objective and efficient. Proposing the
selection, appointment, re-election and dismissal of the head of the internal
auditing department. Proposing the budget for this department. Receiving regular
information about the department’s activities. Checking that senior management
takes the conclusions and recommendations in reports into account.

Establishing and monitoring a system whereby employees are able to supply X




38
FLUIDRA, S.A.
Birectors’ Report
2009
ENGLISH VERSION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

confidential or anonymous information about irregularities that they have detected
in the company, which have potentially serious consequences, particularly with

| regard to financial and accounting praclices.
Presenting the Board with proposals for the selection, appointment, re-election
and replacement of the external auditor and suggesting amendments to the X
auditor's contract,
Receiving regular information from the external auditor about its auditing policy

and the results of its application. Checking that senior management takes the X
auditor's recommendations into account.
Ensuring the objectivily of the external auditor. X

Encouraging auditor to take responsibility for all of the audits that are carried out
in the companiss that make up the group, if applicable.

B.2.3. Describe the rules governing the organisation, functions, and responsibilities of
each of the Board committees.

The Board of Directors may appoint one or more Delegate Directors. Moreover, it may delegate,
fotally or partially, ternporarily or permanently, all the powers which are subject to delegation
pursuant to Law, In order to be valid, the delegation and appointment of the members of the
Board to occupy such posts will require the favourable vote of two thirds of the members of the
Board. Such posts will not come Into effect until they have been recorded in the Company
Registry.

Delegate Comimittee:

Without prejudice to the delegation of powers in favour of one or more delegate directors and
powers of attorney that may be granted to any individual, the Board of Directors, in the same way
as described in the point above, may appoint a Delegate Committee that will be made up of five
directors. In as far as is possible, the Delegate Committee shall reflect the make-up of the Board
in terms of the quality and balance hetween executive, external directors representing controlling
shareholders and independent directors.

Audit Commitlee:

An Audit Committee has been set up within the Board of Directors. It is made up of a minimum of
three directors, non-executives and who are appointed by the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee will exercise, notwithstanding any other duties it might be assigned by the
Board of Directors from time to time, the following basic duties:

Inform in the General Shareholders’ Meeting of matters raised therein by the shareholders in
matters that fall within the scope of their responsibility.

Propose fo the Board of Directors the appointment of the external accounts auditors referred
to in article 204 of the Spanish Public Limited Liahility Companies Act, as well as their
contracting conditions, the scope of their professional mandate and, where applicable, their
revocation or non-renewal, which shall subsequently be submitied to the General
Shareholders’ Meeting.

Supervise the internal auditing systems.

Review the accounts of the Company, ensure the fulfilment of the legal requirements and the
correct application of the generally accepted accounting principles, with the direct
collaboration of the external and internal auditors to do so.

Supervise the policy on control and risk management involved in the achieving of the
corporate objectives.
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Be familiar with the processes for financial information, the internal control systems of the
Company, verify the suitability and integral nature of the same and review the appointing or
replacing of those responsible.

Take care of and supervise the relationships with the external auditors.

Supervise compliance with the auditing agreement, ensuring that the opinion regarding the
annual accounts and the main contents of the auditing report are drawn up clearly and
precisely, and evaluate the resuits of each audit.

Examine the fulfilment of the Internal Code of Conduct, of these Regulations and, in general,
of the rules of management of the Company, and make the proposals necessary for their
improvement.

Receive information and, where applicable, issue reports on the disciplinary measures which

they intend to impose on members of the senior executive team of the Company.

Furthermore, the foilowing corresponds to the Audit Committee:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(c)

(d)

In relation to the information and internal control systems:

Supervise the preparation process and integral nature of the financial information
regarding the Company and, where applicable, the group, reviewing the fulfiment of
the regulation requisites, the appropriate delimiting of the scope of consolidation of the
accounts and the correct application of the accounting criteria.

Review periodically the internal control and risk management systems, so that the
main risks are identified, handled and recognised suitably.

Ensure the independence and efficacy of the internal auditing function; propose the
selection, appointment, re-election and removal of the head of the internal auditing
service, propose the budget of the service; receive periodical information on its
activities; and verify that the senior executive team takes into account the conclusions
and recommendations of their reports.

Establish and supervise a mechanism which enables the employees to communicate
confidentially and, if deemed appropriate, anonymously, any irregularities of potential
transcendence, especially financial and accounts information, which they might notice
within the Company.

In relation to the external auditor:

Raise hefore the Board the proposals of the selection, appointment, re-efection and
replacement of the external auditor, as well as the conditions of their contracts.

Receive regularly from the external auditor information regarding the auditing plan and
the results of the execution thereof, and verify that the senior executive team takes into
account its recommendations.

Ensure the independence of the external auditor and, to such end: (i} that the
Company informs as a relevant event to the CNMV any change in auditor and
accompanies this with a statement regarding the possible existence of disagreements
with the outgoing auditor and, should these have existed, of their content; (ii) that it is
ensured that the Company and the auditor respect prevailing norms on the provision of
services other than those on auditing and, in general, all other established norms in
order to ensure the independence of the auditors; and (iii) that in the event of the
resignation of the external auditor, that it examines the circumstances giving rise
thereto.

In the case of groups, encourage the auditor of the Group to assume responsibility for
the auditing of the companies comprising it.




(a)

{b)
{c)

(d)
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In refation o policy and risk management:

Identify the various different types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal,
reputation-related) which the Company faces, including the financial or economic,
contingent liabilities and other risks beyond the balance sheet.

Identify the establishing of the level of risk the Company considers acceptable.

[dentify the measures envisaged in order to mitigate the impact of the risks identified,
should they materialise.

ldentify the information and internal control systems to be used to contro! and manage
said risks, including contingent liahilities and other risks beyond the balance sheet.

In relation to the obligations inherent in listed companies:

Inform the Board of Directors, prior to the latter adopting the corresponding decisions regarding:

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

The financial information which, due to it being listed, the Company must make
public periodically. The Audit Committee must ensure the interim accounts are
prepared using the same accounting criteria as the annual accounts and, to such
end, consider the appropriateness of a limited review of the external auditor.

The creation or acquisition of participations in special purpose entities or those
domiciled in countries or territories considered to be tax havens, as well as any other
transactions or operations of a similar nature which, due to their complexity, might be
detrimental to the transparency of the Group.

Any connected operations, unless this duty of prior reporting has heen attributed to
another Committee for supervision and control.

Any operations that involve or may involve confiicts of interest.

The Audit Committee shall be held accountable for its aclivities and be answerahle for its work at
the first plenary meeting of the Board of Directors that is held after it has met The Audit
Committee shaill likewise keep minutes of its meetings, a copy of which must be sent to all of the
members of the Board. The Audit Committee shall draw up an annual report, in which it shall
highlight the main incidents that have occurred, if any, in relation to the performance of its normal
duties. Furthermore, whenever the Audit Committee deems fit, it shall include proposals in its
report to improve the Company’s governance regulations. The Audit Committee’s report shall be
attached to the Company's annual report on corporate governance and shall be made available
to shareholders and investors on the Company’s website.

Appointments and Remuneration Committee:

An Appeointments and Remuneration Committee has also been set up within the Board of Directors.
It is made up of a minimum of three external directors, the majority of whom are independent and
who are appointed by the Board of Directors.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee, notwithstanding any other duties which might be
assigned to it by the Board of Directors, will carry out the following basic duties:

Formulate and review the criteria to be followed for the compaosition of the management
team of the Company and its subsidiaries and for the selection of candidates.

Evaluate the competence, knowledge and experience necessary on the Board, define,
as a result, the duties and aptitudes necessary in the candidates to cover each
vacancy, and evaluate the time and dedication needed in order for them to carry out
their duties properiy.
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° Inform, and raise before, the Board of Directors of the appointments and removals of
senior executives and managers that the chief executive proposes, in order for the
Board o appoint them.

° Inform the Board on matters of gender diversification and qualifications of directors, as
set forth in article 6.2 of the Board of Directors’ Regulations.

] It will propose to the Board of Directors: (i} the remunsration policy for the directors and
senior executives; (i) the individual remuneration of the senior executives and any other
conditions of their agreements; (iii} the contract policies and bhasic conditions of the
senior executives agreements of the Company.

° Examine or organise, so that it is suitably understood, the succession of the Chairman
and of the chief executive and, where applicable, make proposals to the Board so that
such successlon takes place in an orderly, well-planned manner.

° Ensure the observance of the payment policy established by the Company and the
transparency of payments.

The Committee must give an account of its activity and be answerable for the work carried out
hefore the first plenary session of the Board of Directors subsequent o its meetings. Furthermore,
the Committee must record Minutes of its meetings, of which it will send copies to all members of the
Board.

The Committee must consult the Chairman and chief executive of the Company, especially
when dealing with matters relating to the executive directors and senior executives.

The Board of Directors must discuss the proposals and reports presented to it by the
Committee.

B.2.4. State, if applicable, the advisory powers and, if applicable, powers that have heen
delegated to each of the committees: SEE THE ABOVE POINT

B.2.5. State, if applicable, whether there are regulations fo which the Board’s committees
are subject, and if so, where they are available for consultation and any amendments made
to them during the financial year. Likewise, state whether any non-mandatory annual
reports have been issued concerning the activities of each committee.

The Committees are subject to the Regulations for Boards of Directors that are published by the
CNMV and that can also be found on the Company's website.

The Company voluntariiy compiled two separate annual reports on the Audit Commitiee and on
the Appointments and Remuneration Committee.

B.2.6. State whether the make-up of the executive committee reflects the Board Member's
responsibilities according to their posts:

Yes.

c TRANSFER PRICING

C.1  State whether subsequent to a favourable report by the Audit Committee or any other
body entrusted to draw one up, the Board reserves the right to approve the transactions that

the Company carries out with its directors, significant shareholders or shareholders
represented by the Board, or individuals related to them at its plenary sessions:

Vo Yes o No
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C.2 Describe any relevant transactions that entail a fransfer of resources or obligations
between the Company or its subsidiaries, and the Company’s significant shareholders:

BOYSER,S.L, and others ASTRAL PISCINE, S.AS Commercial Purchases 630
BOYSER,S.L. and others FLUIDRA ESPANA SAU Commeicial Purchases 1,338
BOYSER,S.L. and cthers ECA SARL Contractual Real estate lease 616
BOYSER, S.L. and others METALAST, S.AU Contractual Real estate lease 802

- We reported the transactions with related organisations that were of a significant amount (above
0.1% of the sale of merchandise and finished products: approximately €650,000).

- The sale of fixed assets corresponded to the sale of four properties (three in Spain and one in
France) for a sale price of €6,150,000 at market conditions, and for which the Group made a
profit of €3,691,000.

- The transaction listed as Other Expenses for a total of €750,000 corresponds to the purchase of
part of a transferred business’ client portfolio.

C.3 Describe any relevant transactions that entail a transfer of resources or obligations
between the Company or its subsidiaries, and the Company’s administrators or directors:

BANC SABADELL INVERSIO

I DESENVOLUPAMENT, S.L Fluidra Remuneration  oyer expenses 101
BERNAT CORBERA SERRA Fluidra Remuneration Qther expenses 93
BERNAT GARRIGOS CASTRO Fluidra Remuneration Other expenses 91

ELOY PLANES CORTS Fluidra Remuneration Other expenses 348
GRUPO CORPORATIVO

Emggiso'?{,‘qh %EE g?ég IEIE Fluidra Remuneration

DE NAVARRA Other expenses 28
JUAN IGNACIO ACHA-ORBEA . ;

ECHEVERRIA Fluidra Remuneration Other expenses 103
JUAN PLANES VILA Fluidra Remuneration Other expenses 117
KAM SON LEONG Fluidra Remuneration Other expenses a1

OSCAR SERRA DUFFO Fluidra Remuneration Other expenses 93
RICHARD J CATHCART Fluidra Remuneration Other expenses 93

C.4 Describe any relevant transactions that the Company performed with other companies
belonging to the group, provided they are not cancelled out in the consolidated financial
statements and that they do not form part of the Company’s normal scope of business
operations:

C.5 State, if applicable, any circumstances in which company directors were involved that
may constitute a conflict of interest, pursuant to the provisions of Article 127.3 of the Limited
Companies Act.

o Yes Vo No
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- To be consistent with the information estated in the paragraph C.2 above this paragraph does
not report transactions that do not exceed significant amounts (i.e. above 0.1% of the sale of
merchandise and finished products: approximately €650,000).

Pending the completion of the nofification and acknowledgement of receipt process.

C.6 Describe the mechanisms in place to detect, determine and resolve possible conflicts of
interest between the Company and/or its group and its directors, managers and significant
shareholders.

. In accordance with the provisions in the Regulations of the Board of Directors, members
must notify the Board of Directors of any cases of conflict of interest and refrain from
attending or intervening in deliberations that affect affairs in which they may have a personal
interest.

It is also considered that a director has a personal interest when a matter affects any of the
following individuals: spouse or person with whom there is a similar relationship; ascendants,
dascendents and siblings and their respective spouses or persons with whom there is a
similar relationship; and individuals, companies or organisations over which any of the
persons mentioned above may have a significant infiuence.

In the case of directors that are corporate entities, it shall be understood that they are
individuals related to the following: shareholders who find themselves in any of the situations
described in Article 4 of Act 24/1988 on Stock Markets, of 28 July; de facto or de jure
directors, receivers and proxies with general power of atlorney for directors who are
corporate entities; the companies and their shareholders that belong to the group, as defined
in Article 4 of Act 24/1988 on Stock Markets, of 28 July; the individuals that are considered to
be related to proxies and directors that are corporate entities. The Directors may not use the
Company's name or act in their capacity as Directors to carry out transactions on their own
hehalf or for related individuals.

Directors may not directly or indirectly carry out professional or trading fransactions with the
Company unless prior notice has been given of a possible conflict of interest and the Board
approves the transaction.

Transactions that are part of the Company’s ordinary business and that are of a habitual and
recurring nature may be carried out providing the Board of Directors has issued a general
authorisation to do so.

In accordance with Article 10 of the Internal Regulations on Conduct, the following is set out with
regard to conflicts of interest;

Liable [ndividuals subject to conflicts of interest must abide by the following general principles of
conduct;

Independence: Liable Individuals must at all times act fairly and loyally to the Company and its
shareholders, regardiess of their own interests or those of third parties. Therefore, they shall abstain
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from placing their own interests before those of the Company or other investors at the expense of
others.

Abstention: They must abstain from intervening in or influencing any decisions taken that may affect
individuals or organisations with which there are conflicts of interest and from accessing any
Relevant Information that may have a bearing on such conflicts.

Notification: Liable Individuals must notify the Director of the Company's Legal Department of any
possible conflicts of interest to which they may be subject as a result of their activities outside the
Company, their family ties, their personal assets, or any other interests they may have in:

(i) The Company or any of the companies that belong to the Fluidra Group.

(i) The suppliers or major customers of the Company or any of the companies that belong
to the Fluidra Group.

(1ii) Organisations that are devoted to the same line of business or that are competitors of

the Company or any of the companies that belong to the Fluidra Group,

Any doubts as to a possible conflict of interest must be addressed to the Director of the Company's
Legal Department and the final decision will rest with the Audit Committee.
A conflict of interest arises if Liable Individuals fulfil any of the following conditions with regard to the
organisations mentioned in this article.

(i) They are directors or senior managers.

{ii) They have a significant shareholding (the latter being understood, in the case of listed
companies on any official secondary market in Spain or abroad, as that defined in article
53 of the LMV (Stock Exchange Act) and any other legistation that may apply, and in the
case of unlisted Spanish or foreign companies, any direct or indirect holding over and
above twenty per cent of the equity issued).

(iii) They have a family tie to the second degree of affinity or to the third degree by blood
with the directors, significant shareholders or senior managers.

(V) They have a relevant contractual relationship, either directly or indirectly.

C.7. Is more than one of the Group’s companies listed in Spain?

YES NO X

D RISK CONTROL SYSTEMS

D.1 General description of the risk policy of the company and/or its group. Provide details
and assess the risks covered by the system. Justify the adequacy of these systems with
regard to the profile of each kind of risk.

The company carried out a study to identify and assess the corpeorate risk to which the Group is
subject in its current envircnment, as well as the controls associated with each risk. The risk
assessment took into account strategic, financial, operational and force majeure risks. Based on this
assessment, the business’ main risks were identified and were prioritised in order of probability and
according to the impact or effects they could have on the Company. The controls that the Company
has in place to monitor these risks were also identified. They were classified according to they level
of effectiveness and those that should be strengthened were identified in order to achieve a better
risk profile.

A schedule was agreed upon with the Management in order for work to continue on the project over
the 2009-2010 tax year and on the update of the risk map for 2010. A commitment was made fo
place particular emphasis on the risks classified as high and/or whose control systems were weak. In
accordance with this schedule, work will continue on the analysis of the information and internal
control systems for monitoring and managing the risks identified, the measures planned to mitigate
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their impact and, should they actually occur, to ensure an acceptable level of risk, and the
identification of passive liabilities andfor off-balance sheet risks.

The Company believes it is important to identify the improvements that can be made fo these
measures and controls in order to make existing risk management practices more efficient and
effective.

D.2  State whether any of the different types of risks have materialised (operational,
technological, financial, legal, reputation, tax, etc.) that affect the company and/or its group:

o Yes Jo No

If affirmative, state the circumstances that have given rise to these and whether the control
systems established have worked.

D.3 State whether there is any committee or other governing body responsible for
establishing and monitoring these control devices:

Vo Yes = No

If affirmative, detail what their duties are.
Name of the committee or body:
Audit Committee
Description of duties:
The responsibilities that arise from the Company’s risk management control mechanism are as
follows:
» Related to risk policies and management:

o ldentifying the various types of risk (operational, technological, financial, legal,
reputational) that the Company faces, including contingent liabilities and other off-
balance sheet risks.

o Identifying the set level of risk that the Company considers acceptable.

o ldentifying the measures foreseen to mitigate the impact of the risks identified
should they actually arise.

o ldentifying the information and internal control systems that monitor and manage
these risks, including contingent liabilities and off-balance sheet risks.

+ Related to the obligations of a listed company:

o Giving the Board prior notice that it should adopt the corresponding decision on
transfer pricing operations and any transactions that involve or may involve a conflict
of interest.

Name of the committee or body:

Body Responsible for the Fulfilment of Regulations

Description of duties:
« Fuifilment of regulations on obligations as a listed company
¢« Management of risks derived from the listing
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D.4 Identification and description of the processes to comply with the various regulations

that affect the company andlor its group.

All the processes and controls that are essential to ensuring compliance with the various regulations
that significantly affect the group have been implemented. The processes are set out in detail in the
Regulations of the General Shareholders Meeting, the Regulations of the Board of Directors and the
Internal Code of Conduct, about which comments have been made in Section B of this report. At the

close of this report, no incidents had been detected.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS MEETING

E.1 State, and if applicable describe, whether the quorum required to hold a General

Shareholders’ Meeting differs in any way to the provisions set out in the Limited Companies

Act (LSA).

YES

x NO

for the 2™ call

Quorum required N/A N/A
for the 1% call
Quorum required N/A N/A

NOT APPLICABLE

E.2 Explain the system for adopting corporate resolutions. Describe any differences
with regard to the system provided for in the Limited Companies Act (LSA):

YES

XNO

Describe how the system differs to that in the LSA.

Different supermajority to
that provided for in Art.
103.2 of the LSA

Other instances of a
supermajority

% established by
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the organisation
for adopting
agreements

Describe the differences

E.3 List any of the shareholders’ rights at general meetings that are different fo those
provided for in the LSA.

N/A

E.4 If applicable, state the measures adopted to encourage shareholders to attend the general
meetings.

N/A
E.5 State whether the post of chairman for the General Shareholders’ Meeting is held by the

Chairman of the Board of Directors. If applicable, provide details about the measures in place
to insure the objectivity and smooth running of the General Meeting:

XYES NO

Describe the measures

According to Article 16 of the Regulations of the General Shareholders’
Meeting, it shall be chaired by the chairman of the Board of Directors or,
in his absence, by the Vice-chairman, and in the absences of both, by a
member of the Board of Directors that the General Meeting designates.

Measures for guaranteeing the objectivity and smooth running of the
General Meeting:

The Regulations of the General Shareholders’' Meeting were approved at
the meeting held on September 5" 2007. A set of measures were
included in these reguiations to ensure the objectivity and smooth running
of General Meetings.

These Regulations are available on the Company's website.

E.6 Describe, if any, the amendments made over the year to the regulations that govern
General Shareholders’ Meetings.

At the Annual General Meeting held on 5 June 2009, arlicles 12 and 24 of the Regulations of the
Annual General Meeting were amended. Their wording now stands as follows:

‘Article 12: Voting by proxy
Notwithstanding the attendance of legal shareholder entities through a proxy, all shareholders who

are entitled to attend may be represented at the Annual General Meeting by any individual, whether
a Company shareholder or not.
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Proxies may be revoked at any time and the attendance in person of a represented individual shall
be deemed as the revocation of the proxy. As a general rule, and providing there is a reliable record
of the date, the last action taken by a shareholder prior to the Annual General Meeting shall be taken
as valid. Should there be no such record, the shareholder’s vote shall take precedence over that of
the proxy. In any event, the attendance in person of a represented individual shall be deemed as the
revocation of the proxy.

Representation by proxy must be specifically granted for each General Shareholders Meeting, either
in writing or through distance means of communication that have been expressly provided for by the
governing body in the call to the meeting, providing the set requirements of each call are met and, in
any event, the identities of the represented individual and the proxy must be duly proven.
Notwithstanding the provisions of article 108 of the Limited Companies Act, voting by proxy must be
specifically granted in writing for each General Meeting.

Distance communication may be made by post, providing the Company is sent an attendance card
issued by the organisation or organisations responsible for recording the entry of shares in the
corresponding registers duly filled in and signed by the shareholder. Other written means may be
used that have been approved by the Board of Directors, and providing prior permission to do so has
been obtained. If such other means are used, it must be possible to check the identity of the
shareholder who votes by proxy in this way.

in order to be valid, voting by proxy granted by post must reach the Company at least twenty-four
hours before the first call of the Annual General Meeting is due to be held. The Board of Directors
may set a shorter deadline pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association.

Likewise, the documents certifying proxy votes that are submitted to the General Meeting must
contain the following information:

(i) Date of the General Meeting and its agenda.

(i) The identity of the person represented and the proxy. In the event that no proxy is specified, it
shall be understood that voting rights have been granted to either the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, the Managing Director or the Secretary of the Board of Directors, or any other member of
the governing body who has been specifically assigned for each call.

(iii) The number of shares held by the shareholder who votes by proxy.

(iv) The instructions as to how the proxy should vote for each of the items on the agenda.

The Chairman of the General Meeting, or the individuals acting on his behalf, shall be understood to
have the powers to determine the validity of the representation granted and the performance of the
General Meeting's attendance requirements.

The provisions set out in the above paragraphs shall not apply if the proxy is the spouse, ascendant
or descendant of the individual represented. The same shall apply if the proxy is appointed by
means of a public instrument that grants powers to administer all of the represented individual's
assets in the national territory. '

Article 24; Voting by means of distance communication

Shareholders who are entitled to attend any class of General Meeting may cast their vote on the
proposals contained on the agenda by post, providing the Company is sent an attendance and vote
card issued by the organisation or organisations responsible for recording the entry of shares in the
corresponding registers duly filled in and signed by the shareholder. Other written means may be
used that have been approved by the Board of Directors, and providing prior permission to do so has
been obtained. If such other means are used, it must be possible to check the identity of the
shareholder who votes by proxy in this way.

Votes cast by post shall only be valid if they reach the Company at least twenty-four hours hefore the
first call of the Annual General Mesting is due to be held. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board
of Directors may set a shorter deadline for the reception of distance votes.

Shareholders who cast distance votes under the terms set out in this article shall be deemed to be
attendees for the purposes of the General Meeting in question. Therefore, previously appointed
proxies shall be deemed to be revoked and those subsequently appointed shall be understood to be
null and void.

The distance votes cast as described in this article shall be deemed null and void under the following
circumstances:

(i) The subsequent express revocation of the vote via the same means used to cast it, providing it
reaches the Company within the set deadlines.
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(ii) The shareholder who casts a distance vote attends the General Meeting in person.

(i) The sale of shares with voting rights about which the Company has been notified at least five
days before the date on which the General Meeting is due to be held.

The Board of Directors shall have the powers to put the above provisions in place and to establish
the proper rules, means and procedures to cast votes and to delegate voting rights by post, in
compliance with any iegal rules that may apply under this system and with the provisions in the
Articles of Association and these Regulations. Such means and procedures must be posted on the
Company’s website. The Board of Directors shall adopt the measures required to ensure that
whomsoever casts a vote or delegates voting rights by post is duly entitled to do so as provided for
in the Articles of Association and these Regulations.

The addition of postal voters to the list of attendees shall be carried out by combining the electronic
data file on which they are registered with the file that contains the rest of the list. Should the list be
drawn up by means of an attendance card file, the addition of voters shall take place by generating a
document on paper in which the same information as appears on the card is shown for each of the
shareholders who have voted by post, notwithstanding the right to store the electronic data file
through which the vote was cast as a permanent record.

E.7 Provide attendance figures for the general meetings held over the year to which this
report refers:

Attendance figures
Date of % % by Total
General physically proxy % Distance voting
Meeting present Electronic
votes Other
5.06.2009 5,323% 73,022 0 0 78,345
N/A

E.8 Give a brief description of the agreements adopted at the general shareholders’ meetings
held over the year to which this report refers and the percentage of votes cast for the
adoption of each vote.

One: Examination and approval, if fitting, of the financial statements and of the management report
both of the Company and of its consolidated group of companies, for the financial year closed as of
December 31, 2008. Approved by 99,994%

Two: Allocation of profits/losses for the financial year closed as of December 31, 2008. Approved by
100%

Three: Examination and approval, if fitting, of the management of the Company by the Board of
Directors in financial year 2008. Approved by 99,999%

Four: Reelection or appointment of the auditor, both of the Company and of its consolidated group
of companies. Approved by 100%

Five: Authorization for the Company to be able to proceed to the derivative acquisition of treasury
stock, directly or through companies in the group, with express power to reduce capital to redeem
treasury stock, delegating to the Board of Directors the powers necessary to implement the
resolutions to be adopted by the Shareholders’Mesting related to this matter, rendering the
previous authorization null and void to allocate, if appropriate, the portfolic of treasury stock to
implementation or coverage of compensation systems. Approved by 99,713%
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Seven: Amendment of article 44 of the Bylaws related to the compensation of the directors.
Approved by 100% :

Nine: Establishing of the annual compensation to he received by the directors in the aggregate
pursuant to new article 44 of the Bylaws. Approved by 99,713%

Ten: Establishment of a compensation system referenced to the value of the shares for the
members of the Board of Directors of the Company. Approved by 89,685%

Eleven: Amendment of articles 31 and 33 of the Bylaws as regards electronic voting and
consequent amendment of articles 12 and 24 of the Shareholders’ Mesting Regulations. Approved
by 99,855%

Eleven bis: Dstermination of the number of Directars of the Board between the limits established in
the articles of Association of the Company and appointment, if appropriate, of Directors:

- Establish the number of Directors in ten (10).

- Appointment of "Grupo Corporativo Empresarial de la Caja de Ahorros y Monte de Piedad de
Navarra, S.A. Unipersonal” as Director of the Company.

Approved by 96,930%

Twelve: Delegation of powers to execute in a public instrument, construe, remedy and implement
the resolutions adopted by the Shareholders’ Meeting. Approved by 100%

E.9 State whether any of the articles of association set out a minimum number of shares as a
requirement to attend the General Shareholders’ Meeting:

Negative reply

No. of shares required to atiend a General Mesting | Minimum of one share |

E.10 Describe and justify the policies followed by the Company with regard to voting by
proxy at the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

All shareholders who are entitled to attend General Meetings may vote by a proxy, who does not
necessarily have to be a shareholder, at the General Meetings. Votes cast by proxy must be done so
in accordance with the requisites and formalities set out in the act, in Article 29 of the Arlicles of
Association and in Article 12 of the Regulations of the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

All votes cast by proxy shall be certified by means of an attendance card or a letter, which in both
cases must bear the original signature of the person represented. The document that certifies voting
by proxy must contain the following information: the date of the General Meeting and its agenda; the
identity of the person represented and the proxy, although in the event that no proxy is specified, it
shall be understood that voting rights have been granted to either the chairman of the Board of
Directors, the managing director or the secretary of the Board of Directors; the number of shares the
shareholder has and instructions as to how the proxy should vote for each of the items that are on
the agenda.
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Should public requests be made to be represented by proxy, in addition to the items mentioned in
the paragraph above, the document that designates the proxy must contain an indication as to how
the proxy should vote if precise instructions are not provided.

Voting by proxy may also be granted by post providing the Company is sent an attendance and vote
card that must have been obtained from and issued by the organisation or organisations responsible
for recording the entry of shares in the corresponding register. Other written means may be used
that have been approved by the Board of Directors, and providing prior permission to do so has heen
obtained. If other such means are used, it must be possible to check the identity of the shareholder
who votes by proxy in this way.

E. 11 State whether or not the Company is aware any policies of institutional investors to
participate or in Company decisions:

Negative reply

E.{2 State the address and access route to the contents the corporate governance
regulations of your Wehsite.

www.fluidra.com

Go to the SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS section and a CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
submenu will appear.

|F DEGREE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE RECOMMENDATIONS ]

Indicate the company's degree of compliance with the recommendations given in the unified
code of good governance,

In the event of failure to comply with any such recommendations, explain the
recommendations, standards, practices or critetla applied by the company.

1. The articles of association of listed companies should not limit the maximum number
of votes that can be issued by the same shareholder or contain other restrictions that prevent
the company from being taken over through the purchase of its shares on the market.

See epigraphs: A9, B.1.22,B.1.23 and EA, E.2,

Complies x Explain O

2, When the parent company and the subsidiary are listed, they must both publicly
define the following in detail:

a) Their respective activity areas and possible business relations between them, as
well as those of the listed subsidiary with the other companies in the group;

b) The mechanisms laid down to solve possible conflicts of interests as they arise.
See epigraphs: CdandC.7

Complies 0 Complies partially [J Explain D Not applicable x
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3. Although it is not expressly required in mercantile legislation, they should submit the
transactions that involve a modification to the company's structure for approval by the
General Shareholders Meeting, especially the following:

a) The change of Ilisted companies into helding companies through
“subsidiarisation" or the incorporation into entities dependent on essential activities carried
out until then by the company itself, even though the said company maintains full control
over them;

bh) The acquisition or transfer of essential operating assets when there is an actual
modification of the corporate purpose;

c) The transactions whose effect is equivalent to that of the company’s liquidation,
Complies x Complies partially O ExplainO
4, The detailed proposals of the agreements to be adopted by the General Shareholders

Meeting, including the information referred to in recommendation 28, should be published
with the publication of the announcement of the call to the meeting.

Complies x Explain O

5. In the General Shareholders Meeting, the matters that are substantially independent
must be voted separately so that shareholders can exercise their voting preferences
separately. And the said rule should be applied, in particular:

a) On the appointment or ratification of the members of the board, which should he
voted individually;

b) In the case of modifications to the articles of association, each article or group of
articles that is substantially independent.

See epigraph:  E.8
Complies x Complies partially 0 Explain 0

8. The companies should allow the division of the vote so that the financial brokers
legitimated as shareholders hut acting on behalf of different clients can issue their votes in
accordance with the instructions given by the said clients.

See epigraph: E4
Complies x Expiain O

7. The hoard should carry out its functions on the basis of a unified purpose and
independence, giving the same treatment to all the shareholders and following the company's
interest, understood as maximising the company's economic value in a sustained manner.

It should also ensure that, in s relations with the stakeholders, the company observes
legislation and regulations; fulfils its duties and confracts in good faith; observes the uses
and good practices of the sectors and territories in which it operates; and observes the
additional principles of corporate liability it has voluntarily accepted.

Complies x Complies partially D ExplainO
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8. As the core of its mission, the board should adopt the company's strategy and the
organisation required for ifs implementation, as well as supervising and controlling the
management's fulfilment of targets and observance of the company’'s corporate interest and
purpose. Accordingly, in its plenary session, the board reserves the power to adopt the
following:

a) The company’s general strategies and policies, in particular:

i} The strategic or business plan, as well as management targets and annual budgets;

i) The investment and finance policy;

iif) The definition of the structure of the group of companies;

iv) The corporate governance policy;

v) The corporate liability policy;

vi) The salary policy and appraisal of senior management performance;

vii) The risk management and control policy, as well as the regular monitoring
of internal information and control systems.

viii) The dividend policy, as well as the treasury stock policy and, in particular,
its limits.

See epigraphs: B.1.10,B.1.13,B.1.14 and D.3

b) The following decisions:

i) On the proposal of the company's chief executive, the appointment and

removal of senior managers, as well as their severance clauses,

See epigraph: B.1.14.

ii) The salaries for the members of the board, as well as, in the case of
executives, the additional payment for their executive functions and other conditions to be
observed in their contracts.

See epigraph: B.1.14.

iii) The financial information which, due to its status as a listed company, it
has to publish on a regular basis.

iv) The investments or transactions of all kinds which, owing to their high
amount or special characteristics, are of a strategic nature, unless their approval
corresponds to the General Shareholders Mesting;

v) The creation or acquisition of shares in entities with special purposes or
domiciled in countries or territories that are considered as tax havens, as well as whatsoever
other similar transaction or operation which, owing to its complexity, could undermine the
group's transparency.
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C) The transactions completed by the company with members of the board,
important shareholders or shareholders represented on the board or with related individuals
("related transactions").

However, this authorisation by the board should not he considered necessary for the related
transactions that meet the following three conditions:

1. They are carried out by virtue of contracts whose terms and conditions are standardised
and applied generaliy to many clients;

2. They are carried out at prices or rates generally established by the person acting as the
supplier of the good or service in question;

3. Their amount does not exceed 1% of the company's annual revenue,

It is recommended that the board should approve the related transactions after a favourable
report has been issued by the Audit Committee or, where applicable, any other party to which
that function has been commissioned; and, hesides not exercising or delegating their right to
vote, the members of the board who are affected should leave the meeting room while the
board deliberates and votes on the matter.

It is recommended that it shoufd not be possible fo delegate the powers attributed fo the
hoard here, except for those mentioned in paragraphs b) and c), which may be adopted in
emergencies by the Delegate Commission and subsequently ratified by the board in its
plenary session.

See epigraphs: C.1and C.6
Complies x Complies partially O Explain O

9. The board should have the necessary size for effective, participatory operation, which
means that it should not have fewer than five or more than fifteen members.

See epigraph: B.1A

Complies x Explain 0

10. The external directors representing controlling shareholders and independent
directors should represent a broad majority of the Board and the number of executive
directors should be the required minimum, taking into account the complexity of the

corporate group and the percentage of interest of the executive directors in the company's
capital.

Ses epigraphs: A2, A3,B.A1.3 and B.1.14.
Complies x Complies partially 0 Explain &

11. if there is an external director who cannot be considered as either an external director
representing controlling shareholders or an independsnt director, the company should
explain the said circumstance and his association either with the company or its managers,
as well as with its shareholders.

See epigraph: B.1.3

Complies x Explain Not applicable 00
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12. Among the external directors, the ratio between the number of external directors
representing controlling shareholders and the independent directors should reflect the
proportion between the company's share capital represented by the external directors
representing controlling shareholders and the rest of the share capital.

This criterion of strict proportionality could be reduced as the weight of the external directors
representing controlling shareholders is greater than that which would correspond to the
total percentage of the share capital they represent:

1. In companies with a high level of capitalisation, when the shares that are legally
considered as significant are zero or low-level, but where shareholders exist, with blocks of
shares of high absolute value.

2, When it is a question of companies in which there is a plurality of shareholders
represented on the Board who are not related between them.

See epigraphs: B13,A.2and A3
Complies x Explain 0
13, The number of independent directors should represent at least one third of the total

number of directors.
See epigraph: B.1.3

Complies Explain 0 The number of independent directors are 3 of the total 10 members of the
Board of Directors.

14.  The nature of each director must be explained by the Board before the General
Shareholders Meeting that is to carry out or ratify his appointment, which should be
confirmed or reviewed annually, as appropriate, in the annual report on corporate
governance, with prior confirmation by the Appointments Committee. The said report shouid
also explain the reasons why external directors representing controlling shareholders have
been appointed at the request of shareholders whose holding is less than 5% of the share
capital; and reasons should be given for the rejection, where applicable, of formal requests
for presence on the Board from shareholders whose holding is equal to or higher than that of
others at whose request exfernal directors representing controlling shareholders have been
appointed.

See epigraphs: B.13and B.1.4
Complies x Complies partially © Explain [

15. When the number of female directors is zero or almost zero, the board should explain
the reasons and the initiatives adopted to correct the said situation; in particular, the
Appointments Committee should ensure that, when new vacancies arise:

a) The selection process does not involve implicit bias that prevents the selection of
female directors

b) The company should deliberately look for and include among potential candidates
women that comply with the professional profile being sought.

See epigraphs: B.1.2, B.1.27 and B.2.3.
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Complies x Complies partially  ExplainO Not applicable O

No gender discrimination practices are carried out. The directors are chosen according to the
opportunities that arise among external directors representing controlling shareholders and
according to professional experience in the case of independent shareholders. it has been planned
to deal with this issue in 2008,

16. As the person responsible for the effective operation of the Board, the Chairman
should ensure that the directors receive sufficient information beforehand; stimulate debate
and the active participation of the directors during the board’s sessions, safeguarding his
free standpoint and opinion; and organise and coordinate with the chairmen of the relevant
commissions the regular assessment of the board, as well as that of the CEC or chief
executive, where applicable.

See epigraph: B.1 42
Complies x  Complies partially {1 Explain 0

17. When the Chairman of the Board is also the company's chief executive, one of the
independent directors should be empowered to request the call to meeting of the Board or
the inclusion of new matters on the agenda; coordinate and echo the concerns of the external
directors; and direct the Board's assessment of its Chairman.

See eplgraph: B.1.21
Complies U Complies partially O Explain U Not applicable x
18. The Secretary of the Board should make sure, in particular, that the board's actions:

a) Comply with the content and spirit of legislation and the corresponding
regulations, including those adopted by the regulating bodies;

b) Comply with the company’s articles of association and with the regulations of the
Generail Shareholders Meeting, the Board and other company regulations;

c) Take into account the recommendations on good governance laid down in the
unified code accepted by the company.

And, in order to safeguard the Secretary's independence, impartiality and professionalism,
his appointment and removal must be reported by the Appointments Committee and
approved by the Board in its plenary session; and the said appointment and dismissal
procedure must be laid down in the Board regulations.

See epigraph: B.1.34

Complies x Complies partialty U Explain U

19. The bhoard should meet as regularly as necessary to carry out its functions effectively,
following the schedule of dates and business laid down at the beginning of the year, where
each director may propose other business for the agenda not considered initially.

See epigraph: B.1.29
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Complies x Complies partially 0 Explain O

20. The non-attendance of the directors should be reduced to essential cases and
quantified in the annual corporate governance report. And If representation Is essential, it
must be designated with instructions.

See epigraphs: B.1.28 and B.1.30
Complies x Complies partially 1) Explain [0

21, When the directors or the Secretary express concern for any proposal or, In the case
of the directors, for the company's progress and the said concern is not resolved by the
board, it should be recorded in the minutes of the meeting at the request of the person
expressing the said concern.

Complies x Complies partially O Exptain LI Not applicable

22, In its plenary session, the board should assess the following once a year:

a) The quality and efficiency of the hoard's operations;

b) Based on the report issued by the Appointments Committee, the functions carried

out by the Chairman of the Board and the company's chief executive;

¢) The running of its Committees, hased on the reports they issue.
See epigraph: B.1.19

Complies x  Complies partially G ExplainQ

23.  All the directors should be able to exercise the right to compile any additional
information they consider necessary on business that falls within the remit of the Board. And,
unless the articles of association or the regulations of the board lay down otherwise, they
should address their requirement to the chairman or secretary of the board.

See epigraph: B.1.42

Complies x Explain U

24.  All the directors have the right to obtain the advice they need for the fulfilment of their
functions from the company. The company should lay down the appropriate ways of
exercising this right, which, under special circumstances, could include external advisory
services on the company's account.

See epigraph: B.1.41

Complies x Explain O

25.  The company should establish a guidance programme to provide new directors with
rapid and sufficient knowledge of the company, as well as its rules on corporate governance.
They should also offer directors programmes for updating their knowledge when
circumstances so recommend.

Complies x Complies partially 0 Explain D
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26. The company should require the directors to devote the time and effort necessary for
carrying out their function effectively and, consequently:

a) The directors shouid report to the Appointments Committee on their other other
professional duties in case they interfere with the required devotion;

b) The companies should lay down rules on the number of boards on which their
directors can sit.

See epigraphs: B.1.8, B.1.9 and B.1.17
Complies x Complies partially I Explain U

27, The proposal for the appointment or re-election of directors raised by the Board to the
General Shareholders Meeting, as well as their provisional appeointment by co-optation,
should be approved by the hoard:

a) At the proposal of the Appointmenis Committee, in the case of independent
directors.
b) After a report issued by the Appoiniments Committee, in the case of the other
directors.

See epigraph: B.1.2

Complies x Complies partially 0 ExplainO

28. The companies should publish the following information about their directors on their
website and keep the said information up-to-date:

a) Professional and biographical profile

b} Other boards on which they sit, whether the companies are listed or not;

¢) Indication of the category of director to which they belong, where applicable,
indicating, in the case of the external directors representing controlling shareholders, the
shareholder they represent or with whom they are related.

d) Date of their first appointment as a director of the company, as well as of the
subsequent appointments; and

e) The shares they own in the company and the stock options over the said shares.

x Complies o Explain

29, The independent directors should not remain as such for a continued term of more
than 12 years.

See epigraph: B.1.2
Complies x Explain 0

30.The external directors representing controlling shareholders should present their
resighation when the shareholder they represent sells all his shares in the company. They
should also present their resignation, in the corresponding number, when the said
sharsholder lowers his shares in the company to a level that requires a reduction in the
number of his external directors representing controlling shareholders.

See epigraphs: A2, AJandB.1.2
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Complies x Complies partially O ExplainO

31. The Board of Directors should not propose the removal of any independent director
before the fulfilment of the statutory term for which he has been appointed, except when
there is just cause, understood as such by the Board after a report issued by the
Appointments Committee. In particular, just cause shall be understood as applicable when
the director is in breach of the duties inherent to his post or has entered into any of the
circumstances laid down in epigraph 5 of section Il on definitions in this code.

The removal of independent directors resulting from takeover bids, mergers or other similar
corporate transactions that represent a change to the company's share capital structure
could be proposed when the said changes to the sfructure of the board are brought about by
the criterion of proportionality indicated in Recommendation 12,

See epigraphs: B.1.2, B.1.5 and B.1.26

Complies x Explain

32. The company should establish rules that oblige the directors to report and, where
applicable, resign in cases that can damage the company's reputation and credit and, in
particular, oblige them to inform the board of the criminal cases in which they appear as an
accused party, as well as their subsequent procedural events.

If a director is tried or a sentence is issued against him for the commencement of a hearing
for any of the crimes laid down in article 124 of the Spanish Public Limited Companies Act,
the Board should examine the case as soon as possible and, in view of the specific
circumstances, decide whether or not it is fitting for the director to continue in his post. And,
the Board should give a reasoned account of all the events in the Annual Corporate
Governance report.

See epigraphs: B.1.43, B.1.44

Complies x Complies partially & Explain D

33.  All the directors should clearly express their opposition when they consider that any
proposed decision submitted to the Board may bhe contrary to the company's interests. And
this should apply especially fo the independent directors and other directors not affected hy
the potential conflict of interest in the case of decisions that may damage the shareholders
not represented on the Board.

When the Board adopts significant or reiterated decisions on which the director has
formulated serious reservations, the said director should draw the corresponding
conclusions and, if he decides to resign, explain the reasons in the letter referred to in the
following recommendation.

The scope of this recommendation also includes the Secretary of the Board, even though he
does not have the status of director.

Complies x Complies partiaily 0 Explain Not applicable 0

34. When, either due to resignation or any other reason, a director abandons his post
before the end of his mandate, he should explain the reasons in a letter sent to all the
members of the Board. And, without prejudice to the said resignation being notified as a
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relevant event, the reason for the resignation should be accounted for in the Annual
Corporate Governance report.

See epigraph: B.1.5
Complies O Complies partially | Explaind  Not applicable0 X

According to internal standards, there is no obligation fo include the reason for the resignation in the
Annual Report.

35. The salary policy approved by the Board should indicate at least the following:

a) The amount of the fixed components, with a breakdown, where applicable, of
the expenses for participation in the bhoard and its commissions and an estimate of the
annual fixed salary resulting therefrom;

b} Variable salary concepts, including, in particular:

i) Classes of directors to which they are applied, as well as an explanation of
the relative importance of the variable salary concepts with regard to the fixed salary
concepts.

ii) Results assessment criteria on which any right to payment in shares, stock
options or any variable component is based;

iii}) Fundamental parameters and basis of any annual premium system (bonus) or other
benefits not paid in cash; and

iv) An estimate of the absolute amount of the variable salary payments arising
from the proposed salary plan in accordance with the level of fulfilment of the hypotheses or
objectives taken as reference.

c) Main characteristics of the company pension plans (e.g. top-up schemes, life
insurance policies and similar), with an estimate of their amount or equivalent annual cost.

d) Conditions tc be ohserved in the contracts of those who exercise senior
management functions as executive directors including:

i) Term,;
i) Terms of notice; and
fif) Any other clauses related to contracting premiums, such as severance

payments or golden parachutes for early termination or cancellation of the contractual
relations between the company and the executive director.

See eplgraph: B.1.15

Complies x Complies partially O Explain O

36. The payments made through shares in the company or companies in the group, stock
options or instruments referenced to the value of the share, variable payments associated
with the company's performance or company pension plans should he limited to the
executive directors.
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This recommendation will not cover the provision of shares when it is conditioned to the
directors maintaining them until their resignation as a director.

See epigraphs: A3,B.13

Complies x Explain U

37. The salary payments of the external directors must be the amount necessary for
compensating the devotion, qualification and responsibility required by the post; but not so
high as to compromise their independence.

Complies x Explain

38. The salary payments related to the company's results should take into account the
possible exceptions included in the external auditor's report, which may reduce the said
results.

CompliesD Explain 0 Not applicable X

39, In the case of variable salary payments, the salary policies should incorporate the
necessary technical precautionary measures to ensure that the sald salary payments are
related to the professional devotion of the beneficiaries and do not result simply from the
general evolution of the markets or the company's activity sector or other similar
circumstances.

Complies D) Explain Ul Not applicable X

40. The Board should submit a report on the directors’ salary policy to vote at the General
Shareholders Meeting, as a separate, consultative matter on the agenda. The said report
should be made available to the shareholders either separately or in any other way the
company considers appropriate.

The said report should focus particularly on the salary policy approved by the Board for the
present year, as well as, where applicable, the policies anticipated for future years. It shall
include all the matters referred to in Recommendation 35, except for circumstances that may
suppose the revelation of sensitive commercial information. It shall underline the most
sighificant changes in the said policies with regard to that applied during the past year to
which the General Shareholders Meeting refers. it shall also include an overall summary of
how the salary policy was applied during the past year.

The Board should also report on the role played hy the Remunerations Committee in the
preparation of the salary policy and, if external consultancy services are used, on the identity
of the external consultants providing the service.

See epigraph: B.1.16
Complies 0 Complies partially [1 Explain X
Not applicable last year. Applicable this year.

41. The Report should give details of the individual salaries paid to directors during the
year and include:
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a) The individualised breakdown of the salary of each director, which shall include,
where applicable:

i) The allowances for attendance or other fixed payments as a director,;

if) The additional remuneration as chairman or member of one of the board's
committees; '

iii) Any payments for profit sharing or premiums and the reason why they were
made;

iv) Contributions in the director's favour to fixed-contribution pension

schemes; or the increase of the director's consolidated rights in the case of contributions to
fixed-benefit plans;

V) Any severance payments agreed or paid in the case of the termination of his
functions;

vi) The payments received as a director of other companies in the group;

vii) Faymenis for carrying out the senior-management functions of the

executive directors;

viii) Any other salary concepts other than the above, regardless of their nature or the
entity of the group making the payment, especially when they are considered as related
transactions or their omission distorts the fair view of the total salary payments received by
the director.

b) The individualised breakdown of the shares, stock options or any other instrument
referenced to the value of the share eventually awarded to directors, with detalls on the
following:

i) Number of shares or options awarded during the year and the terms and
conditions of their exercise;

i) Number of options exercised during the year, indicating the number of shares
affected and the price of the exercise;

iii) Number of pending options at the end of the year, indicating their price, date and
other exercise requirements;

iv) Whatsoever modification during the year to the conditions for exercising the
options already awarded.

c) Information about the ratio during the said past year between the salary obtained by
the executive directors and the results or other measurements of the company's
performance.

Complies x Complies partially & Explain
Not applicable last year. Applicable this year.

42, When there is a Delegate or Executive Commitiee (hereinafter called "Delegate
Committee"), the participation structure of the various categories of directors should be
similar to that of the Board itself and its secretary should be the Secretary of the Board.




63
FLUIDRA, S.A.
Directors’ Report
2009
ENGLISH VERSION FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY

See epigraphs: B.2.1 and B.2.6
Complies x Complies partially O Explain 1 Not applicable U

The Vice-secretary of the Board performs the duties of Secretary on the Delegate Committee,

43. The Board should always be aware of the matters dealt with and the decisions
adopted by the Delegate Committee and all the members of the Board should receive a copy
of the minutes of the meetings of the Delegate Committee.

Complies x Explain O Not applicable O

44, The Board of Directors should constitute not only the Audit Committee required by
the Stock Exchange Act, but also one or two separate Committees: the Appointments
Committee and the Remuneration Commiitee.

The rules governing the make-up and operation of the Audit Committee and the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee or Committees should be recorded in the
regulations of the Board and include the following:

a) The board should appoint the members of these Committees, bearing in mind the
know-how, skills and experience of the directors and the missions of each Committee; it
should deliberate on its proposals and report; and it should report on its activities and
respond for the work carried out during the first plenary session of the Board after its
meetings.

b) The sald Commitiees should be made up exclusively of a minimum of three external
directors. The abhove is understood as without prejudice to the attendance of executive
directors or senior managers when so agreed expressly by the members of the Committee.

Their Chairmen should be independent directors.

d) They should bhe able to seek external consuitancy services when they
consider it necessary for their functions.

e) Minutes should be recorded of their meetings and a copy of the said minutes should
be sent to all the members of the Board.

See epigraphs: B.2.1 and B.2.3

Compilies x Complies partially 0 Exptain O

45, The supervision of compliance with the internal code of conduct and the rules of
corporate governance should be the responsibility of the Audit Committes, the

Appointments Committee or, if they exist separately, the Corporate Governance or
Fulfilment Committees.

x Complies o Explain

46. The members of the Audit Committee and, in particular, its chairman should be
appointed on the basis of their know-how and experience in bookkeeping, audits and
risk management.
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x Complies o Explain

47. The listed companies should have an internal audit function which, under the
supervision of the Audit Committee, should monitor the correct functioning of the
internal control and information systems.

xComplies o Explain

48. The person responsible for the internal audit function should present his annual
work plan to the Audit Committee; he should inform it directly of the incidents
occurring during its development; and, at the end of each year, submit an activities
report.

x Complies o Complies partially o Explain

49. The risk management and control policies should identify at least:

a) The different types of risk (operative, technological, financial, legal, reputational, etc.)
facing the company, where the financial or economic risks should include the
contingent liahilities and other off-balance-sheet risks,

b) The levsl of risk considered acceptable by the company;

¢) The measures laid down to reduce the impact of the risks that are identified should
they occur;

d) The internal control and information systems that will be used to contro! and process
the said risks, including the contingent liabilities or off-balance-sheet risks.

See epigraph: D

o Complies X Complies partially o Explain

Over the tax year, we have carried out a study to identify and assess the Group's business risks in
view of its activity and the current climate. The controls associated with these risks were alsc subject
to the same study.

In 2009, work will centinue to study the control measures intended to improve existing risk
management practices sa that they become more effective and more efficient. The Company will pay
particular attention to the risks classified as high and/or those with weak control mechanisms

5. The Audit Committee should be responsible for the following:

1. In relation to the internal control and information systems:

a) Supervising the preparation process and integrity of the financial information related to the
company and, where applicable, the group, reviewing compliance with the standard
requirements, the appropriate definition of the consolidation perimeter and the correct
application of the bookkeaping criteria.

b) Regularly reviewing the internal contro! and risk management systems so that the main
risks can he identified, processed and appropriately publicised.

¢} Ensuring the independence and effectiveness of the function of the internal audit;
proposing the selection, appointment, re-election and dismissal of the person responsible for
the internal audit service; proposing the budget of the service; receiving regufar information
on its activities; and ensuring that senior management takes into account the conclusions
and recommendations put forward in its report. ‘

d) Setting up and supervising a mechanism that enables employees to communicate any
significant irregularities, especially those related to finance and bookkeeping, and to do so in
a confidential manner.
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2. In relation to the external auditor:

a) Raising the selection, appointment, re-election and substitution proposals concerning the
external auditor to the Board, as well as the terms and conditions of his contract.

b} Regularly receiving information from the external auditor on the audit plan and the results
of its implementation and ensuring that senior management takes Into account the
corresponding recommendations,

¢) Guaranteeing the independence of the external auditor and, accordingly:

i} The company should report the change of auditor to the Spanish National Securities Market
Commission as a relevant event and accompany the said report with the declaration on the
existence of disagreements with the departing auditor and, where applicable, the
corresponding content.

ii) 1t should be ensured that the company and the auditor observe current standards on the
provision of services other than auditing services, the limits to the auditor's business
concentration and, in general, the other standards established to guarantee the
independence of auditors;

iii} In the case of the resignation of the external auditor, it should examine the circumstances
leading to the said resignation.

d} In the case of groups, it should favour the group's auditor assuming the responsibility for
the audits of the companies in the group.

See epigraphs: B.1.35,B.2,.2,B.2.3 and D.3

o Complies x Complies partially o Explain
The point that was not put into practice in the 2008 tax year and that will be applied in 2009 is as
follows:

In the 2008 tax year, the external auditor was appointed for a one-year term by virtue of the
agreement adopted by the General Shareholders Meeting on 30/05/08. With regard to 2009, the
Audit Committee will be informed so that is able to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection, appointment, re-election and replacement of the external auditor, and the terms and
conditions of the latter's contract.

51. The Audit Committee should be able to call any of the company's employee or manager
and also have them appear without the presence of any other manager.

x Complies o Explain

62, The Audit Committee should report to the Board before the Board adopts the
corresponding decisions on the following matters indicated in Recommendation 8:

a} The financial information which, due to its status as a listed company, must be published
by the company on a regular basis. The committee should ensure that the interim accounts
are prepared under the same hookkeeping criteria as the annual accounts and, accordingly,
consider the appropriateness of a limited review by the external auditor.

b) The creation or acquisition of shares in entities with special purposes or domiciled in
countries or territories that are considered as tax havens, as well as whatsoever other similar
transaction or operation which, owing to its complexity, could undermine the group's
transparency.

¢) The related transactions, unless the preliminary report function has been attributed to
another control and supervision Committee,

See epigraphs: B.2,2 and B.2.3

x Complies o Complies partially o Explain

53. The Board of Directors should seek fo present the accounts fo the General Shareholders
Meeting without any reservations or qualifications in the audit report and, in whatsoever
exceptional case, both the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the auditors should clearly
explain to the shareholders the content and scope of the said reservations or qualifications.
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See epigraph: B.1.38

X Complies o Complies partially o Explain

Historically, we have had consolidated audit reports without reservations or qualifications. The
external auditors stand before the Audit Committee before the presentation of the Annual Accounts
to the Board of Directors to explain the conclusions drawn from their audit.

54, Most of the members of the Appointments Committee (or the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, if there is only one Committee) should be independent directors.

See epigraph: B.2.1
Complies x Explain 0 Not applicable

55, Besides the functions indicated in the above recommendations, the following
responsibilities should correspond to the Appointments Committee:

a) Assessing the skills, know-how and experience required of "the Board and,
consequently, defining the functions and skills required of the candidates to cover each
vacancy; and assessing the time and devotion necessary for them to carry out their task
correctly.

b} Examining or organising, as considered appropriate, the succession of the Chairman
and the chief executive and, where applicable, making proposals to the Board so thaf the said
succession occurs in an orderly and well-planned manner.,

c) Reporting the appointments and resignations of senior executives as proposed to the
Board hy the chief executive.

o) Reporting to the Board on matters of gender diversity as per Recommendation 14 of
this code.

See epigraph: B.2.3
Complies x Complies partially O ExplainO Not applicabte

56. The Appointments Committee should consult the company's Chairman and chief
executive, especially with regard to business concerning the executive directors.

And any director should be able to ask the Appointments Committee to consider potential
candidates for the vacancy of director if they consider them to be ideal.

Complies x Complies partially 0 Explain O Not applicable 0

57. Besides the functions indicated in the above recommendations, the following
responsibilities should correspond to the Remuneration Committee:

a) Proposing to the Board of Directors:
i) The salary policy for directors and senior managers;
i) The indlvidual salaries of the executive directors and the other terms and

conditions of their contracts
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iti) The basic terms and conditions of the senior managers’ contracts.
b) Ensuring the observance of the salary policy laid down by the company.
See epigraphs: B.1.14,B.2.3

Complies x Complies partially D Explain 0 Not applicable {1

58. The Remuneration Committee shouid consult the company's Ghairman and chief
executive, especially with regard to business concerning the executive directors.

Complies x Explains O Not applicable 0

G, OTHER INFORMATION OF INTEREST

If you consider that there is any Important principle or aspect regarding the corporate
governance practices applied by your company which have not been covered in this report,
please explain below.

Negative reply.

More specifically, indicate whether your company is subject to any corporate governance
legislation other than Spanish law, and if so, include any information that is mandatory and
different from that requested herein.

Negative reply.

Binding definition of independent director:

Indicate whether or not any of the independent directors has or has had any relationship with
the company, its significant shareholders or managers which, if sufficiently significant or
important, would have meant that the director could not be considered as independent In
accordance with the definition laid down in section 5§ of the unified code of good governance:
Negative reply.

This Annual Report was approved at the meeting held on April 25™ 2010 by the Board of Directors.




FLUIDRA, S.A.
Notes fo the Annual Accounts

(Free translation from the original In Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version
prevails.)

On 26 March 2010 the board of directors of Fluidra, S.A. prepared the annual accounts in accordance with the
new Spanish Chart of Accounts approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007, comprising the balance sheet, income
statement, statement of recognised income and expenses, statement changes in equity, statement of cash
flows, notes to the annual accounts and directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2009. All the members
of the board of directors sign this sheet as a sign of conformity and the non-executive Secretary to the Board Mr
Albert Collado Armengol has signed each of the pages of the aforementioned documents for identification

purposes.
Mr Juan Planes Vila {signed) BANSABADELL INVERSIO DESENVOLUPAMENT, S.A.
Mr Carlos Ventura Santamans (signed)
Mr Eloy Planes Corts (signed) Mr Richard Cathcart (signed)
Mr Bernat Garrigos Castro (signed) Mr Kam Son Leong (signed)
Mr Oscar Serra Duffo (signed) Mr Juan Ignacio Acha-Orbea Echevarria (signed)
Mr Bernardo Corbera Serra (signed) Grupo Corporativo Empresarial de la Caja de Ahorros y

Monte de Piedad de Navarra, S.A.U.
Mr Eduardo Lépez Milagro (signed)

The accompanying notes form an inte zral part of the annual accounts for 2009,
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FLUIDRA, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the statufory activity
of subsidiaries, associates

and jointly controlled entities in which the Group holds direct and indirect interests
31 December 2009

(Free transtation from the original in Spanish. In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails)

Fully consolidated subsidiaries

- Fluidra Commercial, 8.A.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Barcelona), dedicated to the holding
and use of stocks and shares and advising, managing and administrating the companies in which it
has an interest.

- Fluidra Espafia, S.A.U., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), dedicated to the manufacture,
sale and purchase and distribution of all types of machinery, equipment, components and parts of
machinery, instruments, accessories and specific products for swimming pools, irrigation, and water
treatment and purification syslems.

- 8Ci 11 Rue Denfert Rochereau, with registered offices in Saint Dennis (France), operates in the real
eslate sector.

- Astral Piscine, 8.A.S., with registered offices in Perpighan (France), the statutory activity of which
involves the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, export and import of all
types of swimming pool-related products.

Astral Pool Belgique, S.R.L. with registered offices in Carcelles (Belgium), the statutory activity of which
is the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, export and import of all types
of swimming pool- related products.

- Astral UK, Ltd., with registered offices In Hants (Engtand), the statutory activity of which involves the
manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, export and import of all types of
swimming pool-related products.

- Astral Pool Deutschland, GMBH, with registered offices in Hirschberg (Germany), the statutory
activity of which involves the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, export
and import of all types of swimming pool-related products.

- Astral ltalia, 5.P.A., with registered offices in Brescia (lialy), the statufory activity of which involves the
manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, export and import of all types of
swimming pool-related products.

- Fluidra Services ltalia, S.R.L (formerly Astral Service, S.R.L.) with registered offices in Brescia {ltaly),
the statutory activity of which involves rendering services and conducting real estate activities.

-~ Astral Poo! Switzerland, S.A., with registered offices in Bedano (Switzerland), the principal activily of
which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related materials.

- Astral Export, S.A., with registered offices in Barbera de Vallés (Spain) is dedicated to trading all type
of products and goods on both domestic and foreign markets, whilst its principal activity involves the
commercialisation of swimming pool-related products, basically acquired from related companies.

- Astral Middle East, Fze., with registered offices in Jebel Ali (Dubai), dedicated to the
commercialisation of equipment for swimming pools and water treatment and related accessories.

- Asfral Havuz Ekipmanlari, S.V.T.A., with registered offices in Kartal (Turkey), dedicated to the import
of equipment, chemical products and other accessories for swimming pools, for thelr subsequent
distribution.

- Maghrebine Des Equipements d'Eau, S.A.R.L., with registered offices in Casablanca (Morocco), the
statutory activity of which is the import, export, manufacture, commercialisation, sale and distribution
of parts for swimming pools, irrigation and water treatment systems.
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AND SUBSIDIARIES

Detalls of the statutory activity
of subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities in which the Group holds direct and indirect interests
31 December 2009

- Astral Bazénove Prilslusenstvi Spol, S.R.0., with registered offices in Prague (the Czech Republic),
the principal activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related accessaries.

- Astral Scandinavia, A/S, with regislered offices in Roedekro (Denmark), importer of technical
components and equipment for afl types of water treatment processes.

- Zao "Astral Sng", with registered offices in Moscow (Russia), the principal activity of which is the
purchase of swimming pool-related materials for their subsequent sale on the domestic market.

- Magyar Astral Pool, Kft., with registered offices in Budapest (Hungary), the principal activity of which
is the commercialisation and assembly of machinery and accessories for swimming pools, irrigation
and water treatment and purification systems.

Astral Pool Polska 8P, Z.0.0., with registered offices in Wroclaw (Poland), the principal activity of which
is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related accessories.

- Astral Pool Chile, S.A., with registered offices in Santiago de Chile (Chile), the principal activity of
which is the distribution and commercialisation of products for swimming pools, irrigation and water
treatment and purification systems.

- Astral Pool México, S.A. de C.V., with registered offices in Tlaquepaque (Mexico), the principal
actlivity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related materials.

Astral Products, Inc., with registered offices in Jacksonville (USA), dedicated to the commercialisation of
swimming pool-related products and accessories.

- Astral India PVT LTD, with registered offices in Mumbai (India), the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of swimming pool-related materials.

- Marazul Importagao, Exportagao, Comercio e Industria Limitada, with registered offices in S#o
Domingo da Rana (Portugal), dedicated to the manufaclure, sale and purchase, distribution
commercialisation, export and import of all types of swimming poal-related products.

- Poo! Supplier, S.L.U., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), dedicated to the sale and
purchase of swimming pool-related products and the distribution of these products among group
companies,

- Fluidra Commercial Services, 5.L.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Spain), the statutory activity
of which involves economic support by rendering administration services, providing legal, financial
and accounting advisory services, managing and training personnel, and providing IT, R&D and
marketing services.

Astral Poo! Hellas, S.A., with registered offices in Aspropyrgos (Greece), the principal activity of which is
the distribution of swimming pool-related materials.

- Ya Shi Tu (Ningbo Water Treatment Equipment, LTD)., with registered offices in Donquiao Town
(China), the principal activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

- Catpool 8A de C.V., with registered offices in Mexico DF (Mexico), the principal activity of which is the
purchase, sale and distribution of chemical products related with the maintenance of swimming pools
and water systems.

- Astral Pool Australia PTY LTD, with registered offices in Melboume (Australia), the principal activity of
which is the purchase, sale, production and distribution of machinery, equipment, products and
special equipment for the maintenance of swimming pools and water systems.
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Details of the statutory activity
of subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities in which the Group holds direct and indirect interests
31 December 2009

- Astral Pool Hongkong CO. LTD, with registered offices in Hong Kong (Hong Kong), the principal
activity of which is the commaercialisation of swimming pool accessorigs.

- Aslral Pool Singapore PTE LTD, with registered offices in Singapore (Singapore), the principal activity
of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool accessories.

- Astral Pool Balkans JSK, with registered offices in Plovdiv {Bulgaria), the principal activity of which is
the purchase, sale and distribution of machinery, equipment, materials, products and special
equipment for the maintenance of swimming pools and water systems,

- Ya Shi Tu Swimming Pool Equipment {Shanghai) Co. Ltd., with registered offices in Tower E, Building
18, num. 238, Nandandong Road, Xu Hui District (Shanghai), the principal activity of which is the
commeircialisation of swimming pool products.

- MTH Moderne Wassertechnik AG, with registered offices in Gilching (Germanyy), the principal acfivity
of which is the purchase, sale, production and distribution of machinery, equipment, products and
special equipment for the maintenance of swimming pools and water systems.

- Blue Water Parts, S.A.S., with registered offices in Villeurbanne (France), mainly dedicated to selling
replacement materials for swimming pools.

Astral Pool Cyprus LTD, with registered offices in Limassol (Cyprus), the principal activity of which is the
distribution of swimming pool-related products.

- Metalasl, S5.A.U., with registered offices in Polinyéa (Barcelona), dedicated to the manufacture of metal
products, piping and street furniture, and the wholesale of accessories.

- Poltank, S.A.U., with registered offices in Tortella (Girona), the statutory activity of which involves the
manufacture and commercialisation of swimming pool filters by injection-moulding, projection or
lamination.

- Sacopa, S.A.U., with registered offices in Sant Jaume de Llierca (Girona), the principal aclivity of
which is the transformation and commercialisation of plastic materials.

- Unistral Recambios, S.A.U., with registered offices in Massanet de la Selva {Girona), the statutory
activity of which involves the manufacture, sale and purchase and distribution of machinery,
accessories, spare parls, components and specific products for the freatment and purification of
water,

- Talleres de! Agua, S.L., with registered offices in Poligono Industrial de Barros, Ayuntamiento de los
Corrales de Buelna (Cantabria), the statutory aclivity of which involves the construction, sale,
installation, conditioning and maintenance of swimming pools, as well as the manufacture, sale and
purchase, import and export of all types of swimiming pool-retated tools,

- Maber Plast, S.L., with registered offices in Sant Joan les Fonts (Girana), the principal activity of
which is the transformation of plastic materials.

Togama, S.A., with registered offices in Villareal (Castellon), the statutory activity of which is the
manufacture of ceramic insulators and insulating parts for electrical installations.

- Llierca Naus, S.A., with registered offices in Sant Jaume de Llierca (Girona), rents its industrial
buildings to several group companies.

- Exex Pool, S.L., with registered offices in Paolinya (Barcelona), the statutory activity of which involves
rendering administration services, providing legal, financial and accounting advisory services,
managing and training personnel, and providing |T, R&D and marketing services.
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Details of the statutory activity
of subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities in which the Group holds direct and indirect interests
31 December 2008

- Fluidra Industry, S.A.U., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), dedicated to the holding and
use of shares and advising, managing and administrating the companies in which it has an interest.

- Productes Elastomers, S.A. with registered offices iin Sant Joan Les Fonts (Girona) is dedicated to the
manufacture of rubber moulded parts and all kinds of natural rubber and synthetic products; the
development of techniques for the maintenance of pressure cylinders; their repair and modification
and in general, the preparation, manufacture and transformation of all kinds of rubber and plastic
products.

- Ningbo Linya Swimming Pool & Water Treatment Co. Ningbo Linya Swimming Pool & Water
Treatment Co. Ltd., with registered offices in Ningbo (China), the statutory activity of which is the
design, research and development and manufacture of equipment for swimming pools and water
disinfection, pumps, dehumidifiers, metallic products, plastic products and vitreous linings.

Turcat Polyester Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S., with registered offices in Istanbul (Turkey), the statutory activity
of which is the production, import, export and commercialisation of products and accessories,
purification fillers and chemical products.

Europeenne de Couverleurs Automatiques, S.A.R.L., with registered offices in Perpignan (France), the
statutory activity of which is the manufacture of motorised swimming pool covers.

Rotoplastics, S.L., with registered offices in Saint Antonin Nable Val (France), the statutory activity of
which is the manufacture of material for swimming pools and water treatment.

- Aguant Trading Co. LTD, with registered offices in Shanghai (China), the statutory activity of which is
the commercialisation, import and export of swimming pool equipment, accessories and other
swimming pool sector-related components, together with the rendering of services related to its
statutory activity.

- Ningbo Dongchuan Swimmingpool, with registered offices in Ningbo (China), the statutory activity of
which is the manufacture and installation of swimming pool equipment, brushes, plastic and
aluminium products, industrial thermometers, water disinfection equipment and water testing
equipment.  also imports and exports technology for its own use or as an agent

- 1D Electrogquimica, S.L., with registered offices in Alicante (Spain), the statutory activity of which is the
sale of all kinds of machinery for the development of electrochemical processes and reactors.

Pacific Industiies, S.A.S. with registered offices in Boulazac (France), the statufory activity of which is
the manufacture and warehousing of material for water treatment, filtering equipment and domestic
and industrial accessories.

Swimco Corp., S.L., with registered offices in Munguia (Vizcaya) the statutory activity of which involves
the holding and use of shares, securities and other interests and advising, managing and
administrating the companies In which it has an interest.

- Meip Internacional, S.L., with registered offices in Barberd del Vallés (Barcelona), dedicated to the
sale of swimming pool-related products, materials and accessories.

Manufacturas Gre, S.A., with registered offices in Munguia (Vizcaya), the statutory activity of which
involves the manufacture and commercialisation of swimming pool-related products, materials and
accessories.

Gre, Aqua and Pool, S.L., with registered offices in Munguia, Vizcaya (Spain). The principal activity of
this company is based on the statutory activily which consists of the distribution and sale of swimming
pools and spas.
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Certikin Halia, S.p.A., with registered offices in Brescia (ltaly), the statutory activity of which involves the
manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, export and import of all types of
swimming pool-related products.

- Me 2000, S.R.L.,, with registered offices in Brescia (ltaly), the statutory activity of which is the
development and lease of buildings.

- Certikin Internactonal, Ltd., with registered offices in Witney Oxon (England), the principal activity of
which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

- Hydroswim International, $.A.S. (formerly MMC, S.A.S.), with registered offices in La Chevroliere
(France), the principal activity of which involves the manufacture and commercialisation of swimming
pool filters and pumps.

- Industrias Mecanicas Lago, S.A., with registered offices in Sant Julia de Ramis {Girona), the statutory
activity of which invoives the manufacture and commercialisation of water pumps, swimming pools
and associated accessories.

- Certikin Pool Ibérica S.L., with registered offices in Palafolls (Barcelona), the principal activity of which
is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

- Certikin Swimming Pool Products India Private Limited, with registered offices in Bangalore (India),
the principal activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products,

- Cepex, S.A.U., with registered offices in Granolfers, Barcelona (Spain), the principal activity of which
is the manufacture and distribution of injected plastics and in particular, plastic parts for valves.

- Valvules i Racods Canovelles, S.A., with registered offices in La Garriga, Barcelona (Spain), the
principal activity of which is the manufacture and distribution of injected plastics and in particular,
plastic parts for valves.

- Pro Cepex, S.A.R.L., with registered offices in Casablanca (Morocco), the principal activity of which is
the commercialisation of fiuid conduction products.

- Ningbo Xi Pei Valves and Fitlings, with registered offices in Beilun, Ningbo (China}, the principal
activity of which is the manufacture and assembly of valves, accessories and moulds and their
cominercialisation and after-sales service.

- Cepex Portugal, with registered offices in Quinta Do Anjo {Portugal), the principal acfivity of which is
the commercialisation of fluid conduction products.

- Cepex S.R.L., with registered offices in Bedizzole, Brescia (Italy), the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of fluid conduction products.

- Cepex USA Inc., with registered offices in Jacksonville, Florida (USA), the principal activity of which is
the commercialisation of fluid conduction products.

- Cepex Mexico, S.A. de CV., with registered offices in Mexico City (Mexico), the principal aclivity of
which is the commercialisation of fluld conduction products,

- Agro Cepex, S.AR.L., with registered offices in Casablanca (Morocce), the principal activity of which
is the commercialisation of fluid conduction products.

- Cepex GmbH, with registered offices in Munich {(Germany), the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of fluid conduction products.
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- Cepex Middle East, F.Z.E., with registered offices in Dubai (United Arab Emirates), the principal
activity of which is the commercialisation of fluid conduction products.

- Irrigaronne with registered offices in Zone Industriekke 47550, 47000 Agen (France), the activity of
which is the assembly and repair of hydraulic installations for irrigation, agricultural hydraulics and
mechanised agriculture.

- Inquide, S.A., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), the principal activity of which is the
manufacture of products and chemical speciailies in general, with the exclusion of pharmaceuticals.

- SENTEX, S.AR.L., with registered coffices in Perpignan (France}, the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of chemical water disinfection products.

- CTX Chemicals, S.R.L., with registered offices in Bedizzole, Brescia (Italy), the principal activity of
which is the commercialisation of chemical water disinfection products.,

- Agquambiente, S.A., with registered offices in Estrada Nacional 249 — Parque Industrial Cabra Figa,
Lote 15 Cabra Figa (Portugal), the principal activity of which is the commercialisation of chemical
water disinfection products.

- Servaqua, S.A.U., with registered offices in C/Iindusfria S/N P. Ind La Coromina, Balsareny (Spain),
the principal activity of which is the commercialisation and manufacture of water treatment filters and
accessories.

- Astramatic, S.A.U., with registered offices in C/ Mogoda 75, P. Industrial Can Salvatelia, Barbera del
Vallés (Spain), the principal activily of which is the commercialisation and manufacture of industrial
water treatment equipment and items to be applied in the water sector.

- 8. C.L Cerisay, with registered offices in Avenue Maurice Bellonte, Perpignan, (France), the principal
activity of which is the holding of real estate securities.

- ATH Aplicaciones Técnicas Hidraulicas, S.L., with registered offices in Cervelld, Calle Joan Torruella |
Urbina, 31, Barcelona (Spain), the activity of which is the wholesale and retail sale of machinery,
materials, tools and accessories for water installations and treatment systems.

Caldereria Plastica del Norte, S.L., with registered offices in Renteria (Guiptizcoa), the principal activity
of which is the manufacture and commercialisation of plastic water purifying and treatment
equipment.

- Trace Logistics, S.A., with registered offices in Massanet de 1a Selva (Girona}, the statutory activities
of which is the consignment of goods in its warehouses and premises for storage, control and
distribution io third parties upon request of the consigner; storage, loading and unloading and other
supplementary services required to manage the distribution of these goods upon instruction of the
consigner, as well as transport hiring and management.

AP Inmobiliere, with registered offices in Perpignan (France), the statutory activity of which is the
development and rental of real estate.

- ADBE Cartera, S.A.U., with registered offices Sabadell (Spain), the principal activity of which is the
rendering of administrative, legal, fiscal and financial advisory services.

- Dispreau, G.|L.E., with registered offices in Perpignan (France), the principal activity of which is the

rendering of administrative, legal, fiscal, financial advisory services, management, personnel training
and IT services.
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~ Fluidra Services, S.A.U., with registered offices in Sabadeil (Spain), mainly involved in rendering
administration services, providing legal and financial services, managing and training personnel, and
providing IT services.

Accent Graphic, S.L., wilh registered offices in Santa Perpélua de Mogoda (Spain), dedicated to
rendering all types of advertising and graphic design services. Responsible for the corporate image of
the Astral Group hy designing price lists, catalogues, elc.

- Inmebiliaria Swim 38, S.L.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Barcelona), the statutory activity of
which is the development and rental of real estate.

- Fluidra France, S.A.S. with registered offices in Perpignan (France), the principal activity of which
involves rendering administration services, providing legal and financial services, managing and
training personnel, and providing IT services.

- Astral South Africa (Pty} Lid., with registered offices in Brooklyn (Pretoria), dedicated to the
manufacture, sale and purchase and distribution of ali types of machinery, equipment, components
and parts of machinery, instruments, accessories and specific products for swimming pools, irfigation,
and water treatment and purification systems.

- Way Fit, S.L., with registered offices in the Barros indusfrial estate, Corrales de Buslna (Cantabria),
the statutory activity of which comprises management, advisory services and execution of projects
and works relating to sports, leisure and health centres, employing its own technical, personnel and
organisational resources or subcontracting to third parties.

- Loitech {Ningbo) Heating Equipment, Co, Lid., with registered offices in Zhenhai (China}, the statutory
activity of which is the production and instailation of swimming pool heating pumps, and products for
their assembly.

Astral Pool (Thailand) Co., Lid, with registered offices in Samuthprakarn (Thailand}, the principal activity
of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool accessories.

- Fluidra (Thailand) Co., Ltd, with registered offices in Samuthprakamn (Thailand), dedicated to the
holding and use of stocks and shares.

- Fluidra Services Espafia, S.L.U., with registered offices in Sabadell {Spain), mainly involved in
rendering administration services, providing legal and financial services, managing and training
personnel, and providing IT services.

- Fluidra Services Portugal, Unipessoal Lda., with registered offices in Sabadell (Spain), mainly
Involved in rendering administration services, providing legal and financial services, managing and
training personnel, and providing IT services.

Equity accounted associates

- Astral Nigeria, Ltd, with registered offices in Surulere-Lagos (Nigeria), the principal activity of which is
the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

- Inquevap, A.LE, with registered offices in Monzén (Huesca), mainly engaged in energy cogeneration
activities.

Proportionally consolidated jointly-controlled companies
- Schwimmbad-Sauna-Ausstattungs, GMBH, with registered offices in Salzburg (Austria), the principal
activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool products. This company is joinlly
managed with Mr. Helmut Brabenetz and Mr Walter Brabenetz.
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Fully consolidated subsidiaries

- Astral Pool, S.A.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Barcelona), dedicated to the holding and use
of stocks and shares and advising, managing and administrating the companies in which it has an
interest.

- Astral Pool Espafia, S.AU., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), dedicated to the
manufacture, sale and purchase and distribution of all types of machinery, equipment, components
and parts of machinery, instruments, accessories and specific products for swimming pools, irrigation,
and waler treatment and purification systems.

- SCI 11 Rue Denfert Rochereau, with registered offices in Saint Dennis {France), operates in the real
estate sector.

- Astral Piscine, S.A.S., with registered offices in Perpignan (France), the statutory activity of which
involves the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, comrercialisation, export and import of all
types of swimming pool-related products.

- Astral Pool Belgique, S.R.L. with registered offices in Carceltes (Belgium), the statutory activity of
which involves the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, export and import
of alf types of swimming pool-related products,

- Astral UK, Ltd., with registered offices in Hants (England}, the statutory activity of which involves the
manufaciure, sale and purchase, distribution commercialisation, export and import of all types of
swimming pool-related products.

- Mercamaster Group, S.L.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Barcelona), the statutory activity of
which involves commercial and service intermediation.

- Astral Pool Deutschland, GMBH, with registered offices in Hirschberg (Germany), the statutory
activity of which involves the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution commercialisation, export
and import of all types of swimming pool-related products.

- Astral Italia, S.P.A., with registered offices in Brescia (ltaly), the statutory activity of which involves the
manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution commercialisation, export and import of all types of
swimming poaol-related products.

- Astral Service, S.R.L., with registered offices in Brescia (ltaly), the statutory activity of which involves
rendering services and conducting real estate activities.

- Astral Pool Switzerland, S.A., with registered offices in Bedano (Switzerland), the principal activity of
which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related materials.

- Astral Export, S.A., with registered offices in Barbera del Vallés (Spain) is dedicated to trading all type
of products and goods on both domestic and foreign markets, whilst its principal activity involves the
commercialisation of swimming pool-refated products, basically acquired from related companies.

- Asltral Middle East, Fze., with registered offices in Jebel Ali (Dubai), dedicated to the
commercialisation of equipment for swimming pools and water treatment and related accesscries.

- Astral Havuz Ekipmaniari, S.V.T.A., with registered offices in Kartal (Turkey), dedicated to the import
of equipment, chemical products and other accessories for swimming pools, for their subsequent
distribution.
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Maghrebine Des Equipements d'Eau, S.A.R.L., with registered offices in Casablanca (Morocco), the
statutory activity of which is the import, export, manufacture, commercialisation, sale and distribution
of parts for swimming pools, irrigation and water treatment systems.

Astral Bazénové Prilslusenstvi Spol, S.R.0., with registered offices in Prague (the Czech Republic),
the principat activity of which is the commercialisation of swimmiing pool-related accessories.

Astral Scandinavia, A/S, with registered offices in Roedekro (Denmark), importer of technical
components and equipment for all types of water treatment processes.

Zao “Astral Sng", with registered offices in Moscow (Russia), the principal activity of which is the
purchase of swimming pool-related materials for their subsequent sale on the naticnal market.

Magyar Astrai Pool, Kit., with registered offices in Budapest (Hungary), the principal activity of which
is the commercialisation and assembly of machinery and accessories for swimming pools, irrigation
and water treatment and purification systems.

Astral Pool Polska SP, Z.0.0., with registered offices in Wroclaw (Poland), the principal activily of
which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-refated accessories.

Astral Pool Chile, S.A., with registered offices in Santiago de Chile (Chile), the principal activity of
which is the distribution and commercizalisation of products for swimming pools, irrgation and water
treatment and purification systems.

Astral Pool México, S.A. de C.V., with registered offices in Tlaquepaque {Mexico), the principal
activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pooi-related materials.

Astral Products, Inc., with registered offices in Jacksonville (USA), dedicated to the commercialisation
of swimming pool-related products and accessories.

Astral India PVT LTD, with registered coffices in Mumbai (India), the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of swimming pool-related materials.

Marazul Importacao, Exporiagao, Comerclo e Industria Limitada, with registered offices in S@o
Domingo da Rana (Portugal), dedicated to the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution
commercialisation, export and import of all types of swimming pool-related products.,

Pool Supplier, S.L.U., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), dedicated to the sale and
purchase of swimming pool-related products and the distribution of these products among group
companies.

Astral Pool Group, S.L.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Spain), the statutory activity of which
involves economic support by rendering administration services, providing legal, financial and
accounting advisory services, managing and training personnel, and providing IT, R&D and marketing
services.

Astral Pool Hellas, S.A., with registered offices in Aspropyrgos (Greece), the principal activity of which
is the distribution of swimming poot accessorles.

Ya Shi Tu (Ningbo Water Treatment Equipment, LTD)., with registered offices in Donquiao Town
(China), the principal activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

Catpool SA de C.V. with registered offices in Mexico DF (Mexico), the principal activity of which is the
purchase, sale and distribution of chemical products related with the maintenance of swimming pools
and water systems.
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Astral Pool Australia PTY LTD, with registered offices in Melbourne (Australia), the principal activity of
which is the purchase, sale, production and distribution of machinery, equipment, products and
special equipment for the maintenance of swimming pools and water systems.

Astral Pool Hongkong CO. LTD, with registered offices in Hong Kong (Hong Kong), the principat
activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related accessories.

Astral Pool Singapore PTE LTD, registered offices in Singapore (Singapore), the principal activity of
which is the commercialisation of swimming pool accessories.

Astral Pool Balkans JSK, with registered offices in Plovdiv {Bulgaria), the principal activity of which is
the purchase, sale and distriibution of machinery, equipment, materials, products and special
equipment for the maintenance of swimming pools and water systems.

Ya Shi Ty Swimming Pool Equipment (Shanghai) Co. Ltd with registered offices in Tower E, Building
18, No. 238, Nandandong Raod, Xu Hui District (Shanghai), the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of swimming pool products.

MTH Moderne Wassertechnik AG, with registered offices in Gilching (Germany), the principal activity
of which is the sale and purchase, manufacture and distribution of machinery, equipment, products
and special maintenance equipment for swimming pools and waler systems.

Biue Water Parts, S.A.S., with registered offices in Villeurbanne (France), mainly dedicated to
selling reptacement materials for swimming pools.

Astra Pools Cyprus, LTD with registered offices in Limassol (Cyprus), the principal activity of which
is the commercialisation of swimming pool accessories.

Metalast, S.A.U., with registered offices in Polinya {Barcelona), dedicated to the manufacture of metal
products, piping and street furniture, and the wholesale of accessories.

Unipen, S.L.U., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), the statutory activity of which is the
development and rental of real estate.

Poltank, S.A.U., with registered offices in Tortella (Girona), the statutory activity of which involves the
manufacture and commercidlisation of swimming podl filters by injection-moulding, projection or
lamination.

Sacopa, S.A.U., with registered offices in Sant Jaume de Llierca (Girona), the principal aclivity of
which is the transformation and commercialisation of plastic materials.

Unisfral Recambios, S.A.U., with registered offices in Massanet de la Selva (Girona), the statutory
activity of which involves the manufacture, sale and purchase and distribution of machinery,
accessories, spare parts, components and specific products for the treatment and purification of
water,

Revicer, S.L., with regisiered offices in Arganda de! Rey (Madrid), dedicated to the manufacture and
commercialisation, sale and distribution of varlous sized tiles and other matertals for the construction
industry.

Talleres del Agua, S.L., with registered offices in Poligono Industrial de Barros, Ayuntamiento de los
Corrales de Buelna (Cantabria), the statutory activity of which involves the construction, sale,
installation, conditioning and maintenance of swimming pools, as well as the manufacture, sale and
purchase, import and export of all fypes of swimming pool-related tools.
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- Maber Plast, S.l.., with registered offices in Sant Joan les Fonts {Girona), the principal activity of
which is the transformation of plastic materials.

- Togama, S.A., with registered offices in Villareal (Castellén), the statutory aclivity of which is the
manufacture of ceramic insulators and insulating parts for electrical installations.

- Llierca Naus, S.A., with registered offices In Sant Jaume de Llierca (Girona), rents its Industrial
buildings to several group companies.

- Exex Pool, S.L., with registered offices in Polinya (Barcelona), the statutory activity of which involves
rendering administration services, providing legal, financial and accounting advisory services,
inanaging and training personnel, and providing IT, R&D and marketing services.

- Auric Pool, 5.A.U., with regislered offices in Polinya {Barcelona), dedicated te the holding and use of
shares and advising, managing and administrating the companies in which it has an interest.

- Productes Elastomers, S.A., with registered offices in Sant Joan Les Fonts (Girona), dedicated to the
manufacture of moulded rubber parts and all types of natural and synthefic rubber items, the
implementation and development of technigues for maintaining, repairing and adjusting pressure
chambers, and in general, the preparation, manufacture and transformation of all types of rubber and
plastic products.

Ningbo Linya Swimming Pool & Water Treatment Co. Ltd., with registered offices in Ningbo (China),
the statutory aclivity of which is the design, research and development and manufacture of equipment
for swirnming pools and water disinfection, pumps, dehumidifiers, metallic products, plastic products
and vitreous fnings.

- Turcat Polyester Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S., with registered offices in Istanbul (Turkey), the statutory
activity of which is the production, import, export and commercialisation of products and accessories,
purification filters and chemical products.

- Europeenne de Couverieurs Automatiques, S.A.R.L., , with registered offices in Perpignan {(France),
the statutory activity of which is the manufacture of motorised swimming pool covers.,

- Rotoplastics, S.L. with registered offices in Saint Antonin Noble Val (France), the statutory activity of
which is the manufacture of swimming-pool and water treatment materials.

- Agquant Trading Co. LTD, with registered offices in Shanghai (China), the statutory activity of which is
the commercialisation, import and export of swimming pocl equipment, accessories and other
swimming pool sector-related components, together with the rendering of services related to ils
statutory activity.

- Ningbo Dongchuan Swimmingpool, with registered offices in Ningbo (China), the statutory activity of
which is the manufacture and installation of swimming pool equipment, brushes, plastic and
aluminium products, industrial thermomsters, water disinfection equipment and water testing
equipment. It also imports and exports technology for its own use or as an agent.

- |D Electroquimica, S.L., with registered offices in Alicante (Spain), the statutory activity of which is the
sale of all kinds of machinery for the development of electrochemical processes and reactors.

- Paclific Industries, S.A.8, with registered offices in Boulazac (France), the statutory activity of which is
the manufacture and storage of water treatment materials, filtration equipment and domestic and
industrial accessories.

- Swimco Corp., S.L., with registered offices in Munguia (Vizcaya) the statutory activity of which involves
the holding and use of shares, securities and other interests and advising, managing and
administrating the companies in which it has an interest,
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Meip Internacional, S.L., with registered offices in Barbera del Vallés (Barcelona), dedicated to the
sale of swimming pool-related products, materials and accessories.

- Manufacturas Gre, S.A., with registered offices in Munguia (Vizcaya), the statutory activity of which

involves the manufacture and commercialisation of swimming pool-related products, materials and
accessories.

- Gre, Agua and Pool, S.L. with registered offices in Munguia, Vizcaya (Spain), the principal activity of

which is identical to the stafutory activity consisting of the distribution and sale of swimming pools and
spas.

Swimming Pool Equipment Italy, S.R.L. with registered offices in Brescia (Italy), the statutory activity
of which involves the manufacture, sale and purchase, distribution, commercialisation, as well import
and export of all types of swimming pool-related products.

Me 2000, S.R.L. with registered offices in Brescia (ltaly), the stalutory activity of which is the
development and rental of real estate,

Certikin Internacional, Ltd., with registered offices in Withey Oxon (England}, the principal activity of
which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

Hydroswim Internafional, S.A.S. (formerly MMC, S.A.S)), with registered offices in La Chevroliere
{France), the principal activity of which involves the manufacture and commercialisation of swimming
pool filters and pumps.

Industrias Mecénicas Lago, S.A., with registered offices in Sant Juliad de Ramis (Girona}, the statutory
activity of which involves the manufacture and commercialisation of water pumps, swimming pools
and associated accessoriges.

Certikin Pool Ibérica S.L., with registered offices in Palafolls (Barcelona), the principal activity of which
is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

Comercial de Exclusivas [nternacionales Blage, S.A. with registered offices on the Mas Puigvert
Industiial Estate, Oeste, Parcela 3, n° 19, Palafolls, Barcelona, the statutory activity of which is the
distribution and assembly of swimming pool products.

Certikin Swimming Pool Products India Private Limited, with registered offices in Bangalore {India),
the principal activity of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

Cepex Holding, S.A.U. with registered offices in La Garriga (Barcelona, Spain), the principal activity of
which is the management of holding companies.

Cepex, S.A.U. with registered offices in Granollers, Barcelona (Spain), the principal activity of which is
the manufacture and distribution of injected ptastics and in particular, plastic parts for valves.

Valvules i Racords Canovelles, S.A. with registered offices in La Garriga, Barcelona (Spain}, the
principal activity of which is the manufacture and distribution of injected plastics and in particular,
plastic parts for valves,

Manufactures de Plastics Sola, S.A.U., with registered offices in Vic, Barcelona (Spain), the principat
activity of which is the manufacture of moulds for fluid conduction.

Pro Cepex, 5.A.R.L., with registered offices in Casablanca {Morocco), the principal activity of which is
the commercialisation of fluid conduction products.
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Nlngbo Xi Pei Valves and Fittings, with registered offices in Bellun Nlngbo {China), the principal
activity of which is the manufacture and assembly of valves, accessories and moulds and their
commercialisation and after-sales service.

Cepex Comercial, S.A.U., with registered offices in La Garriga, ‘Barcelona (Spain), the principal
activity of which is the commercialisation of fluid conduction products,

Cepex Portugal, witﬁ registered offices in Quinta do Anjo (Portugal), the principat activity of which is
the commercialisation of fiuid conduction products.

Cepex S.R.L., with registered oﬂ" ices in Bedizzole, Brescia (Italy) the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of fluid conduction preducts.

Cepex USA Inc. with registered offices in Jacksonvii[e. Florida (USA), the principal activity of which is
the commercialisation of fluid conduction products. ]

Cepex Mexico, S.A. de CV. with registered offices in Mexico City (Mexico), the principal activity of
which is the commercialisation of fluid conduction products. .

Agro Cepex, S.AAR.L., with registered offices in Casablanca {(Morocco), the principal activity of which
i$ the commercialisation of ﬂuid conduction products.

Cepex GmbH with registered offices in Munich (Germany) the principal actwlty of which is the
commercialisation of piping products.

Cepex Middle East, F.Z.E., with registered offices in Dubai (United Arab Emirates), the principal
activity of which is the commercialisation of fluid conduction products. .

Master Riego, S.A. with registered offices in Algete, calle El Nogal nimero 3, nave 2, poligono
industrial Los Nogales (Madrid, Spain}, the activity of which is the commercialisation of al! types of
spnnkler irrigation materials.

Irrigaronne, S.A.S. with registered offi ces at Zone Industriekke 47550, 47000 Agen (France}), the
activity of which is the assembly and repair of hydraulic plant for irrigation, agricultural irrigation and
mechanised agriculture. .

v

Nedkem Grup, S.A., wiih registered offices in Barberd del Vallés, Barcelona (Spain), the principal
activity of which is the rendering of administrative management services.

Inquide, S.A., with registered offices in Polinya, Barcelona (Spain), the principal activity of which is the
manufacture of products and chemical specialties in general, with the exclusion of pharmaceutieals.

Inquide Flix, S.A. with registered offices at calle Mogoda 75 in Barbera del Valles, Barcelona (Spain),
the principal aclivity of which is the manufaclure, purchase, sale, distribution and commercialisation of -
trichloroisocyanuric acid.

Iwerguimica, S.L., with registered offices at calle Rio Gallego, 27 in Cuarte de Huerva (Zaragoza), the
principal activity of which s the manufacture and commercialisation of chemical products for water
disinfection. .

CTX, S.A. with registered offices In calle Pintor Fom}ny 6 in Polinya, Barcelona, (Spain), the principal
activity of which is the commercialisation of chemical water disinfection products.

SENTEX, S.A.R.L., with registered offices In Perpignan (France), the principal activity of which is the
commercialisation of chemlcal water disanfectlon products.
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CTX Chemicals, S.R.L., with reglstered offices in Bedizzole, Brescia (italy), the prmcmal activity of
which is the commercnahsallon of chemical water disinfection products,

~Aquambiente, S.A. with registered offices in Estrada Naclonal 249 — Parque Industnal Cabra Figa,

Lote 15 Cabra Figa (Portugal), the prmcnpa[ activity of which is the commercialisation of chem[cal
water disinfection products.

- Waterchem, S.L., with registered offices at calle Mogoda 75 in Barbera del Vallés, (Barcelona), the

principal activity of which is the rendering of services to group companie‘s

SNTE Agua Group, S.A, with reglstered offices at C/Mogoda 75 P, Industrlal Can Salvatella (Barbera
del Valles - Spain), the principal activity of which is the holding of shares in group companies,

Servaqua, S.A.U., with reg:stered offices in Cfindustria SIN P. Ind La Coromina Balsareny (Spain),

the prlnCIpal acliwty of which is the commerCIallsallon and manufacture of water treatment filters and
accessories.

Grupsente, S.L. with registered offices in" C/Mogoda 76 P. Industrial Can Salvatela, Barbera del
Vallés (Spain); the principal activity of which is the rendering of services for Snte Group companies.

Astramatic, S.A.U., with registered offices in C/ Mogoda 75, P. Industrial Can Salvatella, Barbera del
Vallés (Spain), the principal activity of which is the commercialisation and manufaciure of industrial
water treatment equipment and items to be applied in the water seclor.

S, CllL. Censay, w;th reglstered offices in Avenue Maurice Bellonte, Perpignan, (France), the principal
actmty of which is the holding of real estate securities.

SNTE Espafia, S.L. with registered offices in C/Mogoda 75, P. Industrial Can Salvatella, Barhera del
Vallas (Spain), the principal activity of which is the manufacture and commercialisation of equipment
for the freatment of household water supplies.

ATH Apiicaciones Técnicas Hidraulicas, S.L. with registered offices in Cervelld, Calle Joan Torruella |
Urbina, 31 (Barcelona, Spain), the activity of which is the refailing and wholesale of machinery,
materials, equment and accessories for water lnstallailons and treatment.

Caldereria Plastica del Norte, S.L. with registered offices in Renteria {Guiplizcoa, Spain), lhe prmclpal
activity of which is the manufactunng and commercialisation of plastic utensils for water punf ication
and treatment.

- Trace-Logistics, S.A., with reglstered offices in Massanet de la Selva (Girona), the stalutory activity of
" which involves holdsng third-party assets on deposit in its warehouses and premises 16 store, control

and distribute them to third parties at the request of its depositors, performing storage, loading and
unloading and other associated tasks required to manage the distribution of these assets following
“the instructions of the depositors, as well as contracting and managing fransport services.

AP Inmobiliere, with registered offices in Perplgnan (France), the statutory aclnnty of WhlGh is the
development and rental of real estate.

ADBE Cartera, S.A.U. with registered offices Sabadell (Spain), the principal activity of which is the
rendering of admlmstralwe legal, fiscal and financial advisory services.

- Dispreau, G.1.E. with registered offices In Perpigrian (France) the principal activity of which is the

rendering of administration services, providing legal, tax and fi nanmal advice, personnel management
and training and IT services.

Prohogar, S.L., with registered offices in Sabadeil (Spain), operates in the real estate sector.
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- Fluidra Services, S.A.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Spain), mainly dedicated to rendering
administration services and providing legal, tax and financial advice, personnel management and
training and IT services.

- Accent Graphic, S.L.; with registered offices in Santa Perpétua de Mogoda (Spain), dedicated to
rendering all types of advertising and graphic design services, Responsible for the corporate irnage of
the Astral Group by designing price lists, catalogues, etc.

- Inmobiliaria Swim 38, S.L.U., with registered offices in Sabadell (Barcelona), the statutor-y activity of
which is the development and rental of real estate.

- Fluldra France, S.A.S. with registered offices in Perpignan (France), the principal activity of which is
the rendering of administration, legal, tax, financial, managemént, personnel training and IT services.

Eg‘uity accounted associates

- Astral Nigeria, Ltd, wuh regaslered ‘offices in Surulere- Lagos (thena) the principal actwlty of whichis
the commercialisation of swimming pool-related products.

Inquevap, A.LE, with registered offices in Monzén (Huesca), the principal actwliy of which is eleclncﬂy
cogeneration. .

- Laminats de Catalunya, S.L., with registered offices in Amposta (Tarragona), the statutory activity of
which is the design, manufacture and distribution of all types products involving compound materials

~and their components applications, by-products and auxiliary materials required for their
“mantifacture.

Propoﬂioﬁallv consolidated jointly-controlled companies

- . Schwimmbad-Sauna- Ausstattungs GMBH, - with registereci offices in Salzburg (Austria), the
principal activily of which is the commercialisation of swimming pool products. This company is
jointly managed with Mr Helmut Brabenetz and Mr Walter Brabenetz.
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Astral italia, S.P.A.

Sole director

Astral Bazenove Prislusentsvi, S.R.0.

Joint and several director

Astral India Private, Limited Director . -
Fluidra Singapore, Pte Ltd. Director - —
Certikin International, Limited Director -—-

AP Inmobiliere

Sole director

Turcat Polyester Sanayi Ve Ticaret

Anonim Sirketi Director -

Cepex USA, inc. Director o —

Zao Astral, SNG Director —

Asfral Poot Polska, S5.A. Director -
Astral Pool México, S.A. de C.V. Director —
Astral Scandinavia AS/ Director --=

Magyar Astral Pool, Kit.

Joint and several director

Astral Products, Inc.

Director

Fluidra Chile, Scociedad Anénima
Cerrada

Director

ADBE Cartera, S.A.U,

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Agquaambiente Tratamiento de aguas
o solugoes para o ambiente, S.A,

Director

Fluidra Commercial Services, S.L.U.

Sole director

Fluidra Services, S.A.U.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Prohogar, S.L.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Astral Pool Dautschland Gmbh

Joint and several director

Astral Equipment Australia pty, Lid. Director - -
Astral Pool Heilas Director - —

Fluidra Balkans JSC Director ---
Moderne Wassertechnick AG (MTH} Director -
Catpool, S.A. de C.V. Director can

Astral pool UK, Limited Director

Marazul, Lda.

Sole director

This appendix forms an integral part of note 18 to the annual accounts, in conjunction vvith which it should be read.
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Eloy Planes
Corts

Gre Agua and Pool, S.L..U.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

SNTE Agua Group, S.A.U.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Astral Havuz Ekipmanlari Sanayi ve

Ticaret

Director

Cepex Holding, S.A.U.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Neokem Grup, S.A.U. )

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Fluidra Industry, S.AU.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Fluidra Commercial, S.A.U.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Mercamaster Group, S.L.U, ®

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Inmobiliaria Swim 38, S.L.U.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Swimce Corp, S.L.U.

Representative of sole
director Fluidra, S.A.

Fluidra Cyprus, Ltd Director
CTX Chemicals, SRL Director —-- -—-
Cepex, S.R.L. Director . -
Cerlikin Italia, Spa Director

Astral Pool Thailand, Co., Ltd

Joint and several director

Fluidra Thailand, Co., Lid

Joint and several director

Fiuidra South Africa, Pty, Ltd

Joint and several director

Astral Pool Switzerland, S.A.

Proxy

Dispreau, G.|.E.

Management controller

DISPUR, s.L. &9

Board member

10.00%

12,194.00

This appendix forms an integral part of note 18 to the annual accounis, in conjunction with which it should be read.
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Mr. Juan Planes Vila Dispur, S.L. 51.34% Chairman
Preblau, S.R.L. (indirectly 95%
through Dispur}
Mr. Oscar Serra Duffo — -
Mr. Bernarde Corbera Serra --- —
Mr. Bernat Garrigds Castro -- -
Bansabadell inversit Companyia d'Aigues de
Desenvolupament, S.A. Sabadell, S.A. 7.07% -

Mr. Juan ignacio Acha-Orbea .- - -
Echevarria

Mr. Kam Son Leong

Mr. Richard J. Cathcart --
Grupo Corporativo Empresarial
de la Caja de Ahorros y Monte - —
de Piedad de Navarra, S.A.U.

) Company liquidated or absorbed by another company during 2009
U statutory activity of holding company “Holding of all kinds of Enterprises and Companies” (section “d” of the statutory activity of
Fluidra, S.A.")

This appendix forms an integral part of note 18 to the annual accounts, in conjunction with which it should be read.




